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Chairman’s Statement

On behalf of the Board (“Board”) of Directors ("Directors”,
each being a “Director”), | am pleased to announce
that Zhejiang Tengy Environmental Technology Co.,
Ltd ("“Company” or “Tengy Environmental”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) recorded solid
financial results for the year ended 31 December 2019
(“Year").

The Group is a well-established integrated atmospheric
pollution control solution provider, with a primary focus
on particulate emission control by offering mega-sized
precipitators to customers in various industries. The Group
is with over 21 years of industry experience and continue to
innovate in industrial technologies.

The Group's operating income during the Year decreased by
approximately 15.4% to approximately RMB726.6 million,
while the profit before tax during the Year decreased by
approximately 2.8% compared to the corresponding period
of last year, to approximately RMB45.1 million. Meanwhile,
the profit attributable to shareholders of the Company
(“Shareholders”, each being a “Shareholder”) was
approximately RMB34.3 million, representing an increase of
approximately 9.9% compared to the corresponding period
of last year.

AAEBRRER ((EE) g (EEE])MAE
AT RERERBEROBRARE ([RDF] L
[RBRE|) REMBAR (GHER [ A5H] )R
BE_Z-NAE+_A=+—BLEFE(XEF
B SBIRRamsEeE-

REBRZELBNEERRISRIARR T REE
B ETERINRAYMATERES A ETE
REPRERFAERESR AKERABB21F
BITEERBETERM D BT EERAIH -

AEERARFEREERABDH15.4%E LA
R¥726.6 8 & 7T © M AFE T A0 F B A F
RER D H2.8%ZEHAREAS 1B BT Rk -
ARATRRE ([BRER]) B aFAaARK34.38
BT RAFRHEINH9.9% °
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Chairman’s Statement

V28

Approximately 81% of the revenue for the Year of the Group
is from the sales of electrostatic precipitator (approximately
66%) and bag filter precipitator (approximately 15%),
amounting to approximately RMB458.9 million and
approximately RMB101.8 million respectively.

The Group believes that, with its leveraging years of
industry experience and continual innovation in industrial
technologies, the Group possesses a competitive advantage
over existing market competitors as well as new entrants in
new projects, and also can obtain more new projects from
customers in the national electricity industries and also from
other industries due to its enhanced reputation as reliable
atmospheric pollution control solution provider.

From 2018 to 2019, China’s environmental protection
efforts have been further strengthened by strictly control
the emission of air pollutants and by rolling out a stringent
accountability system. Up to now, almost all provinces
and cities in China have promulgated relevant policies,
financial support or project management plans for ecological
environment protection, providing strong support for China’s
comprehensive promotion of the environmental protection
industry.

With increasingly stringent environmental protection
inspection, the environmental protection equipment which
does not meet the requirements must be upgraded and
modified immediately, which in turn will give significant rise
to a certain demand for precipitators.

Looking forward, more effort will be put by the Group to
enhance its research and development capabilities and to
actively seek appropriate acquisition projects, to expand its
capabilities of research and development, manufacturing and
sales, as well as to access new domestic and international
markets.

REE  RNEEXB1 %K mK BFERER (4
66% ) M RAFREERS (#915% ) HHE » D RIRL

ARAS8 OB E T RN AREKI01.8EE T -

AEERE BEZFNTRERBETERM
HEFEERAEF AREEFIHAEEKERR
EMEBRFHFURMATEEARFES &
MEEERRAEARSRD AR RHER R
mIERNBE AKERENESREEAKE
CEAREMITEEFPHHIAR -

—E\E-T-AF RENBRNEE—S
A+ RS 1) SRS SR R 3 9 AR AR
PRI BER A RELTHANET 1
HAARBERERERE AL XRRERE
BHR ARERERERRELEHRENOL
12 -

EEBRENBREENET  HRTAERY
BIRREBLMRE TS ETABESHR
EEDERS

RERK AEEGEERRREAAEENLE
BERSENWEERR  EMRERAEENTE -
SUENIHERL S A SE AFTB BRI -
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Chairman’s Statement

V2

The Group believes that its established customer base in the
PRC and its exposure to overseas markets could help it lay
a solid foundation for future expansion in both domestic and
overseas markets of the Group, and enable it to become the
leading player in the atmospheric pollution control solution
industry.

Last, on behalf of the Board, | would like to thank the
management team and employees for their tireless efforts
and | sincerely thank the Shareholders and investors for their
continuing trust in and support to the Group.

The Group will continue to seize market opportunities,
protect the blue sky and clear water and build a century-
lasting Tengy!

AEERE AREZFRETEREINERPE
REEESITENER AHAKEE TR
EBEASNTISETNIBEER W EAEERS
KRG RBTAMRTT FRIT R R

RE AABRREFTE ROBHEEEBL
BENTRE N UREBRREREE —BHIUK
HAKENEEESF-

AEEBEELEDSHE REEXEK ]
EHFREZR
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Financial Highlights
k5 40k 2

Year ended 31 December

BEtT-A=1t—HLEE

2019 2018 Change
—E-hEF —T-N\F gg)
RMB’000 RMB'000
Results E3 ARET T AREBTT
Revenue g 726,647 858,817 (15.4)%
Profit before tax 754 il i A 45,114 46,408 (2.8)%
Income tax expense FrisRiFE (10,825) (15,172) (28.7)%
Profit and total comprehensive  F A% A & 2B A
income for the year B 34,289 31,236 9.8%
Earnings per share attributable A A E@ERSHE A
to ordinary equity holders of FEE G R AT
the parent
— For profit for the year —FRRM 0.25 0.23 8.7%
As at 31 December
W+=-A=+—~H
2019 2018 Change
—E-hEF —E-N\F s
RMB’000 RMB'000
Results ES ARBT R ARBTT
Total assets BEESLEAE 1,598,680 1,504,288 6.3%
Net current assets mBEEFE 589,241 557353 5.7%
Total assets less current liabilities & E&ER T E & 755,515 721,226 4.8%
Total liabilities BfELHE 843,165 783,062 77%
Total equity e ey 755,515 721,226 4.8%
As at 31 December
R+=—HA=+—8H
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
Financial Statistics B % SUE AR¥T T AREFIT
Current ratio Mete B b 2R (i) 1.7 1.7
Gearing ratio ™ B G &L & hE2) 11.5% 12.8%
Inventory turnover days (days) et 3 GFEREXE (X) W) 1973 164.9
Trade receivables turnover days 5 W IE B E R
(days) Mote (R) (i) 300.1 2114
Trade payables turnover days B P EMNFIERE R
(days) Mete & (R) (hizs) 194.6 172.4

8
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Financial Highlights
A5 ki 2L

Notes:

Current ratio = current assets/current liabilities

Gearing ratio = (total bank loan - cash and cash equivalents)/total
equity x 100%

Inventory turnover days = 365 days/(costs of sales/average balance of
inventory (net off impairment))

Trade receivables turnover days = 365 days/(revenue/average balance
of trade receivables balance (net off impairment))

Trade payables turnover days = 365 days/(cost of sales/average trade
payables balance)

Bt -

MBLLE=RBEE RBHEE

BRAELE= (RTSXBE-BLRESZEY)
/A B EX100%

FERBRB=365K, (HEKA, FEFHEL (1
BomiE) )

B 5 R IEAE R =365K, (Wi, B 5 EKR
BT (HIRBE) )

P ENRERBRE =365k, (HERKEHE
NRIEF 9 85)
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B BRIk B 23 B

OVERVIEW

The Group is a well-established integrated atmospheric
pollution control solution provider, with a primary focus
on particulate emission control by offering mega-sized
precipitators to customers in various industries. The Group
has years of industry experience and record of continual
innovation in industrial technologies.

During the Year, the Group generated its revenue primarily
from (i) sales of environmental protection equipment; (ii)
sales of materials; and (iii) rendering of services.

The Group's sales of environmental protection equipment
represented tailor-made and integrated atmospheric
pollution control solutions offered by the Group to its
customers, comprising engineering design, equipment
procurement and manufacturing, supervision of installation
and commissioning, customer training, and repair and
maintenance services provided to its customers on a project
basis. During the Year, the Group mainly offered three
types of precipitators: electrostatic precipitators, bag filter
precipitators and electrostatic-bag composite precipitators.

The Group's sales of materials represented sales of
materials, including raw materials, spare parts and
components and scrap materials to related parties or
independent third parties.

The Group's rendering of services represented its
technology consultancy services provided to its customers
on a stand-alone basis, which include repair and
replacement, and on-site engineering and maintenance
services for those projects which were not constructed by
the Group.

Precipitators are widely installed at coal-fired power
plants, metallurgical plants, paper mills and other industrial
production plants. As such, the Group has an extensive
range of customers including the project owners of power
plants and industrial production plants, or contractors
who undertake the construction work of power plants and
industrial production plants.

gL

AEBEREBNEEANRISRI AR RHEE
B ETER NN ERES A ETE
REPREBARKER ASEEEZFNT
ERBAGETERM D EFEEREIF-

AEE ARENREEIEELB(HERRR
G E MR G BR HAR 7

AEBEHERARRBEARERTPIRENE S
EEWGEARRSRN AR ER  BIEKEAR

AEPRHTER REFBREE BER

KR FPEII RS GRS AFE

Z’KEIIK}EL\f%@M%?'H?%%E%ﬁ‘%&(ﬂ
PREEZE M EREARES

AEBEHEMRIERBEBE B FE =T HEDN
PR B RA R AR e REHY o

AEBRHRBEASEBIRBTEERTFRMH
BT ARY ERAL IR AREZENEA
REEENRES ARIRIGTIEREERS -

ARBESRCEREER AR E8mEE
WIELEEREECZR Bt AEENES
HBEES BREBERMERIELEREHNER
BEN NEBRBEEREIELERENEET
AR -
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B PRI ki B 23 B

BUSINESS REVIEW

As one of the largest economies in the world, numerous
environmental protection policies have been introduced in
the PRC. Following the successive promulgation of related
laws and regulations such as the “Ten Requirements
Controlling Air Pollution”, China's environmental protection
industry revolution has continued to deepen, making the
environmental protection industry to be one of China's key
strategic emerging industries with boundless prospects for
development.

From 2018 to 2019, China’s environmental protection
efforts have been further strengthened. Environmental
protection policies and measures have been extended
from administrative means to legal, administrative
and economic means, which has fully mobilized the
proactiveness and initiatives of third parties for pollution
control. Market-oriented approach such as environmental
protection taxes and sewage permits have been introduced
successively. Given the increasingly stringent environmental
protection inspection in the PRC, the pace of upgrade and
transformation of environmental equipment, which are not
in line with the requirements, will surely speed up, creating
certain demands for dust-removal equipment.

As China’s key strategic industries, governments at all levels
throughout the country also attach great importance to
environmental protection industries in provinces and cities,
and actively promote energy saving, emission reduction and
environmental governance works. For example, Zhejiang
Province issued the “Overall Plan for the Reform of Eco-
civilization System in Zhejiang Province” ( CGiT/T % 4 B B
BEHINEERE T ) ) in July 2017; Shaanxi Province issued
the “13th Five-Year Plan for the Protection of Ecological
Environment in Shaanxi Province”( (BRi%& [+=h| 4%
REIRIBIREMEI) ) in October 2017; Beijing issued the”
Administrative Measures of Special Funds for Energy Saving
and Emission Reduction and Environmental Protection
Projects in Beijing”( (dt RTAEFRERBE RIRFEREZIBE ©
BIRBHHEY ) in June 2018; and Jiangsu Province introduced
the “Three-year Construction Plan for Environmental
Infrastructure in Jiangsu Province (2018-2020)" ( {T#k%&
RIGEPRE=F 2RI F (2018-2020% ) ) ) in March
2019.

£ e

ERERZFALER — FERRBERTEH
B HFEEE AR TE] SHEERNEEL & -
HERREXSDRHERL ERAREZXN/RK
HERBRENEER . — BAAGANERA

=
= °

“E-NEZTNF RENRRIRE-D
A BRRBREEARITER TR FDARA 1T
BB FRIEH - £ =701 )5 AR
FMEBERITT D F AL K - RRB - IS FF Al 58
EMSCTFREEHD - ERERABREHRE
BENET  MANTAERNRRRES L INR
FHME EERHBRERE -ENFER-

EEBBEESEESEREE 2RSS RABUREAT
MIRREELSEER  DHERHESETRERSE
MBERABETI(E-I—ZT—tFt A HTHE
i OMTAERHEEBHRERERTER) (=%
—tF+ A BREEENE (BRAA [+ =5h] £8&
BIZRERE) - N\EXA L REMG L
AR ENIREREZEE S EEIE)
TE-NF=R IHAHED CIHEREER
R = FER A E (2018-20204F ) ) £
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B BRIk B 23 B

Up to now, almost all provinces and cities in China have
promulgated relevant policies, financial support or project
management plans for ecological environment protection,
providing strong support for China's comprehensive
promotion of the environmental protection industry.

The Group believes that leveraging on its track record and
advanced technologies together with its stable workplaces
and staff, its ability to secure new projects will be improved.

Moreover, the Group has completed substantial orders
in respect of precipitators related works for different
state-owned and private enterprises in 2019. This laid a
solid foundation for the Group to secure orders in the
environmental protection industry.

For the Year, the revenue and total comprehensive income
of the Group amounted to approximately RMB726.6 million
and approximately RMB34.3 million respectively. During the
Year, the Group's gross profit amounted to approximately
RMB125.3 million, representing a decrease of approximately
11.3% as compared with approximately RMB141.2 million
of the corresponding period of last year; while the Group’s
gross margin increased by approximately 16.4% from last
year to approximately 17.2%. The increase in the gross
margin for the Year of the Group was mainly attributable to
the decrease in the price of raw materials of the products
produced by the Group during the Year.

For the Year, the value of the Group’s new contracts (which
represents the aggregate value of the contracts it entered
into during a specified period) was approximately RMB790
million. As at 31 December 2019, the Group's backlog
(including applicable value-added tax) (which represents the
total estimated contract value of work that remains to be
completed pursuant to outstanding contracts as of a certain
date and assuming performance in accordance with the
terms of the contract) was approximately RMB2,231 million.

BEBR RBEEFHRAENET HEH LR
BREREEBER BeXPHAEREETR
REREEE#ERFREXREB IR

AEERE BEAER A E S E ORI N
FRENTEGAMIEAS  NEEFIRHIE
BRBEN AR

I E_F-NF AEELSTRANEALE
MAABETK T RENRERITETLE BE
RREFXET TRENER-

AEE AEENREREEBRARES R AL
AR#T726 6B B TRAOARBI4IFE T - NF
B AEBEFREFRPNHARE141288
TLRAEINI%EHARB125 3F B LM A& E
FERREEFNL6.4%IEINEL72% o NEEH
RAFEHEMEREN TEHNAEBRAE
EEENEREMRER T

REE AEBHARNEE (NALEEREE
T LM ERBE) HABARBINEETT - R
—E-NF+ZA=Zt—H AEBENRZEKE
R (REEAEER) (BREBEX BT
HHEMARTRARESHNEFEZXN IENETE
FERARBESREFTELHERERR)OAEA
Ri#E2 231 HE T
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B PRI ki B 23 B

The Group's profit before tax for the Year decreased to
approximately RMB45.1 million while profits attributable
to owners of the Company increased to approximately
RMB34.3 million, representing a yearon-year decrease of
approximately 2.8% and increase of approximately 9.9%
respectively. The aforesaid increase in profits attributable to
owners of the Company is mainly due to the decrease in
the income tax during the Year to approximately RMB10.8
million.

At the time of raising the amount of product sales, the
Group spent great effort in enhancing cost management
to make its products and solutions more cost competitive.
The atmospheric pollution control solutions offered by the
Group mainly comprise the atmospheric pollution control
devices designed and manufactured on its own. The Group
possesses the qualifications and expertise in manufacture
and supply of the key atmospheric pollution control
system of the projects it undertakes based on customised
design proposals. The Group is dedicated to improving
its manufacturing process and management system by
managing the product quality and operation, reducing
energy consumption and assessing the environmental
impact in accordance with international standards. The
quantitative management, environmental management and
quality management systems of the Group were awarded
with a number of ISO certificates. These systems help
the company in estimating costs, smoothening project
operations and improving operating efficiency.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had 35 registered
patents (including 3 invention patents and 32 utility
model patents) in the PRC. Based on its strong design
and engineering capabilities, the Group primarily provides
comprehensive atmospheric pollution control solutions to
its customers. The Group offers a wide range of models
of electrostatic precipitators which support electricity
generators with capacity spanning from 6MW to over
1,240MW. The Group is one of the few manufacturers in
the PRC which provides electrostatic precipitators for single
generator unit with capacity of 1,000MW or above.

AEBRAFEENBANG MR D ZLHAREA5.1
BEL MARBES AEEGENAIEMEDHA
R¥343B & T 2 ANRF R KI2.8% K IE IN#)
9.9% ° LIl AREHEE ARME ENIEM T E
HRAFEMEHRDENARK108BETTH
B o

EREERBEENRE  AEBEXDIMBKA
IR EEMMRNREBAKARES T - AEE
RHEMARRISRIEBANTREEIEBREE TR
NELEMARISRIARE - AEBHERIERT
R D REERFRAAZIRENETEARS
AUARGNERENER AEERONKEL
ERELEERG RRAKREEEERLGE
& RAMEMARRIETRERZEN G-
AEENGEEE RREENGEEERGE
BZIBISORBE RERZRNAYRABENKE
FE(RIE B IBF B h A R BRI &K -

R-ZE—hhF+-_A=1+—H AEBEHR%
E36IEFMER (BIE3BEEPEF K32BE A
REF|) c ERANEER AR R IRZEN A%
EXrZnEFREEZEARSRGHERAL R
AEBREMFERESUFES  THNT6K
FLZE81,240)K FL R B B o NS (B 2 P B 2 g
#1,000JK F sk LA E R B8 — 2B R ERHEFFERR
EE 2% A RUAEPY o
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B BRIk B 23 B

As at 31 December 2019, the Group maintained a total
of 550 full-time employees (2018: 617). The remuneration
payable to the Group’'s employees includes basic wages,
bonuses and other staff benefit. The Group conducts
periodic performance reviews for the employees and
determine their remuneration based on factors including
qualifications, contributions, years of experience and
performance.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The revenue of the Group amounted to approximately
RMB726.6 million for the Year representing a decrease of
approximately 15.4% from approximately RMB858.8 million
of the corresponding period of last year. The decrease was
mainly due to the fact that some large-scale projects of the
Group will be completed in 2020 and the revenue of these
projects are only recognized in 2020.

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the Group's
revenue by segment and each item as a percentage of
revenue for the respective years indicated:

R-ZB-NF+-_A=+—H8 AEE*AL0%
2RES (ZT—/\F:6178) BN TAEEE
EMNFMEREATE EAREMBTREM-
AEBERRTEENRE REENEE &
B FERRAZARBEMMINZH-

Bt %5 o R
1B 25

AEEMWZHAEFTRNL ARS8 8AE T
OB A% ERFEHNHARKTI266EE T
BEARLTIEERRAEBE T AREER BHR
—ECTFERT - MEZERBWREER-_ZT_F
FHER -

FRESIFRETEARERS M5 K3
MREER RSB D L

Year ended 31 December

BET-RA=T-HLEE

2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
RMB'000 % RMB'000 %
ARBTR % ARBTT %
(Audited) (Audited)
(BER) (BERZ)
Revenue g
Sales of environmental HERRE
protection equipment 696,284 96 848,815 98
Sales of materials HEME 10,596 1 8,002 1
Rendering of services R R 19,767 3 2,000 1
Total st 726,647 100 858,817 100
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B PRI ki B 23 B

Revenue generated from sales of environmental protection
equipment of the Group amounted to over 96% of its total
revenue. Depending on the specifications and requirements
of its customers, the Group may provide an integrated
set of atmospheric pollution control devices comprising
precipitators, desulfurisation system and/or denitrification
system, or only provide one type of the said atmospheric
pollution control devices on a stand-alone basis towards new
installation projects or upgrading or modification projects.
A majority of the Group's sales of environmental protection
equipment are related to the manufacturing, installation and
sales of electrostatic precipitators.

The following table sets forth a further revenue breakdown
of sales of environmental protection equipment by types of
atmospheric pollution control solutions for the respective
years indicated:

AR B S ERIRR B E £ G B IEE6 %

in BEEFPHRBRENR REEBARHZ
55718 B ok A AR sk s TE B kfﬁ BERRG nﬁﬁ

/ﬁ%ﬁ @%EBT%%Q fihn R K&, Skl R 4R

jszﬁﬁﬁmf %Ej(ﬂ/q RBREE - Z'KE
E XD ﬁﬁ’;ia% SEERE TRRIPEHSE
FREERR B

TREIFIREFEIZARDRIAHRT R
BRI D MEERRRERE — P WRERAA:

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=t-HLEFE

2019 2018
—E-hE —T-N\E
RMB'000 % RMB'000 %
ARETR % ARBTT %
(Audited) (Audited)
(BER) (BE%)
Environmental protection RARRE
equipment
Ash removal and transfers BR R EBRE
- Electrostatic precipitator - FERER 458,886 66 537173 63
- Electronstatic-bag composite ~ —EREAKRER
precipitator 78,916 1" 132,711 16
- Bag filter precipitator KRABREER 101,844 15 71,093 8
- Others (e.g. Pneumatic ash —H’r@ (MEHERES)
conveying system) 3,481 1 23,342 3
- 502 and NOx emission reduction —i4 ~ &/t B R A ALY
(desulfurisation and EH(HRRREEE)
denitrification devices) 53,157 7 84,496 10
696,284 100 848,815 100
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B BRIk B 23 B

The Group's revenue for the Year was mainly generated
from sales of electrostatic precipitator and electronstatic-
bag composite precipitator. During the Year, as compared
with the corresponding period of last year, the revenue
derived from sales of electrostatic precipitator and
electronstatic-bag composite precipitator were decreased by
approximately RMB78.3 million and approximately RMB53.8
million respectively while the revenue derived from sales
of bag filter precipitator was increased by approximately
RMB30.8 million.

With the experience in delivery of new installation
projects, the Group also provided large scale upgrading and
modification projects for power plants and other industries.
The following table sets forth a revenue breakdown of sales
of environmental protection equipment by types of new
installation project as well as upgrading/modification project
for the respective years indicated:

AEERAFENNZEZREHEF EHRESS
RERIEESKRER -HRAFE  EBEFRHEAML -
REHEFERESNERESRESH KT D
AR AREISIBEE TR HARKEICHE
JC MK B HERABRESAHUREIZE NN AR
30.8AE T

BREAMMLKBEBNINER AEET A%
ERMEMITRERARBARLBCGEREB - T
REIIPTREFEIRIN L RKIE R ARTHR, &
THERAE D M SRR R AR WA

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=t-HLEFE

2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F

RMB'000 % RMB'000 %
ARETR % ARBTT %

(Audited) (Audited)

(BER) (lB&%)

Revenue U

Newly installed e 570,106 82 779,208 92
Upgrading/modification /i 126,178 18 69,607 8
696,284 100 848,815 100
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Cost of sales

The Group's costs incurred in sales of environmental
protection equipment principally comprise material costs,
staff costs, depreciation and overhead costs. The Group's
major raw materials used in the manufacturing process of
ash removal and transfer devices and desulfurisation and
denitrification devices are steel, electrical instruments, filter
bags and others.

The cost of sales of the Group amounted to approximately
RMBG601.3 million for the Year representing a decrease of
approximately 16.2% from approximately RMB717.6 million
of the corresponding period of last year.

Gross profit and gross margin
The following table sets forth the breakdown of gross profit

and gross margin of the Group (stated as a percentage of
revenue) for the respective years indicated:

HERAE

AEBEHERRRBAEENXN AT EBREMH
AR BTRAFTEREEERKA - NEE A
PR BB IX R B A M N B A S B
EBRENTIERMA RN ENES BER
Ko At

AEBMHEEXRABEFRPNHARETI76E
BRI 2% ERFEMHARKC01.3EE

JG o

ENREFNR

TERBFINF TS FEREBNERNRERE
(A M 5RO B 9 L 2 51)) BB 4R

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=1tT—-HLEE

2019 2018

—E-hE ZZE—N\F

(Audited) (Audited)

(fEEX) (&%)

Gross profit (RMB'000) EM(ARETT) 125,314 141,240
Gross margin (%) EFE(%) 17.2% 16.4%

The Group's gross profit of the Year amounted to
approximately RMB125.3 million, representing a decrease
of approximately RMB15.9 million or 11.3% as compared
with approximately RMB141.2 million of the corresponding
period of last year. The gross margin of the Group increased
to approximately 17.2% for the Year. The increase in gross
margin of the Group was attributable to the decrease in
the price of raw materials of the products produced by the
Group during the Year.

AEBENENBEFRPNHARK141.2BET
WMAOMARBISIOAETHNINERFENL
AR¥126 38 BT - AEBEAFEHENRIEZN
BEN172% AEBEEMNEENEEARAEH
EENEREMBEERRAFE THRAE-
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Other income and gains

Other income and gains of the Group during the Year
increased to approximately RMB11.3 million, representing
an increase of approximately 205.4% from approximately
RMB3.7 million of the corresponding period of last year.
Such increase is mainly attributable to the following:

()  There was a reversal of impairment loss on bill
receivables for the Year amounting to approximately
RMB2.3 million; and

(i)  Compared with last year, the income from
Government grants in 2019 increased by approximately
RMB5.7 million.

Selling and distribution expenses

The Group's selling and distribution expenses of the Year
amounted to approximately RMB20.9 million, representing
an increase of approximately RMBO0.2 million as compared
with approximately RMB20.7 million of the corresponding
period of last year.

(i) The travel expenses and business hospitality expenses
in 2019 decreased by approximately RMBO0.6 million, or
approximately 9.0%, to approximately RMB6.1 million
as compared with approximately RMB6.7 million of the
corresponding of last year.

(i) The bid services expenses in 2019 was approximately
RMB1.8 million. Compared with the corresponding
period of last year, the amount for the Year increased
by approximately RMBO0.8 million, or 80%, from
approximately RMB1.0 million.

HWARFE

ANER BN ER 2 B EL A W A R R4S B2 25 4 [R) B 9
WARE37TEETHELIBINA2064%EHAR
BN3EET ZENEZRAWT

(i) RAFERN BRERRESEREDINAR
Bo23BE&T: &

(i) ZF-NFENRFMEBUKALEFHELE
MOARESTAETT

HERDHMAX

AEBMEEMDERIAEFRENHARE
20.7EETTIE IO ARKEO2AEB LEARFENL
ARE2098 8T -

i) ZE-NFNEREMEFRGEHRLF
RIENOARE7TEETAL WP A
RE06E B THA.0%E N ARK1H

e —

HIT°

(i) ZFT-AENERERBEROARK18E
BT -AFENSREEZFRBNOARE
0B &AL - EINHARBOSEETH
80% °
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Administrative expenses

The administrative expenses of the Group for the Year
amounted to approximately RMB63.5 million, representing
a decrease of approximately 11.3% as compared with
approximately RMB71.6 million of the corresponding period
of last year, mainly due to:

(i) the impairment losses in 2019 decreased by
approximately RMB12 million from 2018 to
approximately RMB18.6 million; and

(i) the research and development expenses in 2019
decreased by approximately RMB1 million from 2018
to approximately RMB2 million, mainly due to the
decrease in the number of technicians employed by
the Group and the related efforts in research and
development during the Year.

Finance cost

The finance cost of the Year amounted to approximately
RMB6.9 million, representing an increase of 9.5% as
compared with approximately RMB6.3 million of the
corresponding period of last year.

Income tax expense

The Group's income tax expense of the Year amounted to
approximately RMB10.8 million, representing a decrease of
28.9% as compared with approximately RMB15.2 million of
the corresponding period of last year.

Trade and bills receivables

As at 31 December 2019, the trade and bills receivables
of the Group were approximately RMB800.5 million,
increased by approximately RMB146.9 million as compared
to approximately RMB653.6 million of the corresponding
period of last year, mainly due to (i) the acceleration in the
launch of projects, as well as (i) growth of revenue from
continuing operations.

ITHBX
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Inventories

As at 31 December 2019, the Group experienced an
increase of inventories by approximately RMB0.8 million
to approximately RMB325.1 million when compared to
approximately RMB324.3 million of the corresponding
period of last year. The inventories mainly consisted
of steels, filter bags, electrical instruments and other
components.

Liquidity and capital resources
Cash and cash equivalents

As at 31 December 2019, the cash and cash equivalents
of the Group increased by approximately RMB22.9 million
to approximately RMB39.3 million when compared to
approximately RMB16.4 million of the corresponding period
of last year, which was mainly due to:

() the net cash inflow of approximately RMB16.2 million
generated from financing activities, which mainly
consists of the cash inflow of approximately RMB16.1
million on proceeds from bank borrowings and
repayments of bank borrowings;

(i) the net cash outflow of approximately RMB4.9
million used in investing activities of the Group in the
Year, which mainly consists of the cash outflow of
approximately RMB1.1 million on purchase of plants
and equipment to cater for the expansion of the
Group's business scale and the growing sales; and

(i) the net cash inflow of approximately RMB11.6 million
generated from the operation of the Group in the Year.
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(iii)

BERDAEARERAFEOARK16.2
BET TERRBRRITEFMEHIARER
RITEFRNRESRANARKEI6IBET:

AEERAFENREETHRIARESRL
FROARKIOBE T T2EE/EAR
AEEEXBRBEANHE TEIER A
EREREMRENRSRHHAREL
BET: &

AEERAFENEEMEERSRAGF
BOAREBNEEET

20 Zhejiang Tengy Environmental Technology Co., Ltd  #i 1. K % BRBERH B0 15 LA 7]



Management Discussion and Analysis

B PRI ki B 23 B

Indebtedness

As at 31 December 2019, the Group incurred outstanding
bank loans of approximately RMB126.2 million.

=¢=]

R-IZE-—hhF+-A=1+—H KEBHAKRE
BIRTTERHOARKEI262BE Lo

The debt maturity profile of the Group as at 31 December HRNEBR -ZT—AF+-A=+—BWHEHKEIE
2019 is as follows:— BRmT: -

Balance Maturity

F ZHA

RMB126.2 million Within 1 year

ARE12628E T 15 A

The net debt to total capital ratio of the Group as at 31
December 2019 is 14.21%.

Net current assets

As at 31 December 2019, the net current assets of the
Group (the difference between total current assets and
current liabilities) increased by approximately 5.7% from
approximately RMB557.4 million of the corresponding period
of last year to approximately RMB589.2 million for the Year.

Capital expenditure

No capital expenditures of the Group were used for the
purchase of property, plant and equipment in the Year.

Capital structure

The Group generally finances its operations with internally
generated resources, bank borrowings and capital raising
activities. The liquidity and financing requirements of the
Group are reviewed regularly.

NEBR -_ZE—-AE+_A=+—AtNE%EE
HERNBHEOLEHE1421% ©
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Exchange risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from sales by operating units in currencies
other than the functional currencies adopted by the units.
Approximately 0.4% (2018: 0.9%) of its sales for the Year
were denominated in currencies other than the functional
currencies of the operating units making the sale. At
present, the Group does not intend to seek to hedge its
exposure to foreign exchange fluctuations. However, the
Group's management will constantly monitor the economic
situation and the foreign exchange risk profile of the Group,
and will consider appropriate hedging measures in the future
should the need arise.

Charge on assets

The Group had no charges on its assets as at 31 December
2019 (2018: Nil).

Major acquisitions and disposals

The Group did not have any material acquisition or disposals
during the Year.

Significant investments

The Group did not have any significant investments during
the Year.

Contingent liabilities

The Group is neither currently involved in any material legal
proceedings nor aware of any pending or potential material
legal proceedings involving itself. If the Group were involved
in such material legal proceedings, the Group would record
any loss or contingent events when, based on information
then available, it is likely that a loss has been incurred and
the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group did not have any
material contingent liabilities or guarantees.
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Directors’ interest in transaction, arrangement
or contract of significance

Save as disclosed in the section “Related Party
Transactions” in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements, no transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance to which the Company, any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party,
and in which a Director had a material interest, subsisted at
the end of the year ended 31 December 2019 or at any time
during the year ended 31 December 2019.

PROSPECTS

In active cooperation with the “Three-Year Action Plan for
Winning the Battle for a Blue Sky"( (JTHRERXREBH=
F17E)E1E) ) officially issued by the State Council on 27
June 2018, the Group will continue to enhance its research
and development capabilities, develop new technologies and
expand our product portfolio (such as ash conveyers) to fight
the atmospheric pollution control battle for our country for
protecting our country’s blue sky and water, and give back
to the society.

Besides, the Group will actively seek appropriate acquisition
projects to expand its capabilities of research and
development, manufacturing and sales, as well as to access
new domestic and international markets.

The Group hopes to capture the growing opportunities in
the atmospheric pollution control solution industry in the
PRC through internal research and development and external
expansion to consolidate the Group's existing business,
and enhance the Group's national and international brand
recognition in order to expand the its domestic and
international market share.

The Group believes that its established customer base in the
PRC and its exposure to overseas markets could help it lay
a solid foundation for future expansion in both domestic and
overseas markets of the Group, and enable it to become the
leading player in the atmospheric pollution control solution
industry.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently consists of nine members, comprising
three executive Directors, three non-executive Directors
and three independent non-executive Directors. The powers
and duties of the Board include convening Shareholders'
meetings and reporting the Board’'s work at Shareholders'
meetings, implementing resolutions passed at Shareholders’
meetings, determining the Group's business plans and
investment plans, formulating the Group’s annual budget
and final accounts, formulating proposals for profit
distributions and for the increase or reduction of share
capital as well as exercising other powers, functions and
duties as conferred by the articles of association of the
Company (“Articles of Association”). Each of the Directors
has entered into a service contract/letter of appointment
with the Group.

Executive Directors

Mr. BIAN Yu (325) (“Mr. Bian”), aged 36, is the chairman
of the Board and an executive Director appointed on 28
December 2009. Mr. Bian was also appointed as general
manager of the Company on 15 May 2017 Mr. Bian has
approximately 15 years of experience in the business of
provision of atmospheric pollution control solutions. Mr. Bian
has also been the executive director of various subsidiaries
of the Company including Zhuji City Tianjie Installation
Engineering Co., Ltd.* (FEMRRZLETEBRAA)
(“Tianjie Installation Engineering”) and Zhuji City Tianjie
Electronic and Technology Co., Ltd.* (FEmKXZEFRIEA
R A &]) and Turpan Environmental Technology Co., Ltd.* (i
BERZREREBRAAF]) since March 2008, June 2009
and July 2013 respectively.

Mr. Bian has worked as a director of Tengy Group Limited*
(RR&EBEABRAA)("TGL") since August 2003. He
is responsible for the overall strategies, planning and
business development of TGL. Particularly, he focuses
on the management of the business of the provision of
atmospheric pollution control solutions carried on by TGL
prior to the establishment of the Company in December
2009. From September 2005 to December 2007 he served
in various positions such as general commander and general
manager in different departments in the subsidiaries of TGL
such as Zhejiang Yaoyu Special Steel Co., Ltd.* (3T H
KU AR A F) (“Yaoyu Special Steel”), Zhejiang
Tianjie New Materials Co., Ltd.* (3T L KBZ#HMEBRAF])
("Tianjie New Materials”) and Zhejiang Tianjie Magnetic
Materials Co., Ltd*. (HT K2R EMERD AR A R]) which
were principally engaged in manufacturing, processing and
marketing of steel blade and he was mainly responsible for
the overall operation and production management.
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He worked as a director in various companies such as
Zhejiang Tianjie General Machinery Co., Ltd.* (¥ K2
F## B R 2 a]) (“Tianjie General Machinery”) (being
principally engaged in manufacturing and marketing of
machinery and parts) since April 2008, Shanghai Pingchuan
Metal Material Co., Ltd* (LB FJI€BM EHABER QD
7]) (being principally engaged in sale of metal materials,
construction materials and chemical raw materials) from July
2010 to October 2012, Shanghai Guotuo Mining Investments
Limited* ( L /8B X EE BR A F)) (being principally
engaged in management and exploration of mines and
development of mining technology) from August 2010 to
May 2015, Zhuji Tengy Small Loan Co. Ltd* (#E&HKXZ
NEEE FH AR AT (being principally engaged in providing
small loan and financial consultancy service in Zhuji City)
from June 2011 to December 2016, and as chairman of the
board of Zhuiji City Tianyu Industry Investment Ltd* (&2
MAFEEKREABRADQA) (being principally engaged in
real estate development and property investment) from
November 2011 to February 2016 and as executive director
of Zhuji City Runtian Property Management Ltd.* (&2
MEXYEEIEER A A) (being principally engaged in
property management) since September 2011. He was
mainly responsible for advising on operational and business
strategy of the foregoing entities.

Mr. Bian is currently the Vice President of Zhejiang
Association of Equipment Industries for Environmental
Protection (T A IRREBITEMSEES) . He has also
been the deputy officer member* (ElF L% &) of the
Electrostatic Precipitator Committee of The Environmental
Protection Industry* (FBIRBREEX M S ERELZE S
FNRNEEREZ B ) since February 2014.

Mr. Bian graduated with a bachelor’'s degree in mechanical
engineering and automation from Zhejiang University (47
JTKE) in June 2005. He obtained his master of science
degree in corporate and international finance from University
of Durham in the United Kingdom in January 2008. He is the
son of Mr. Bian Jianguang and the brother of Ms. Bian Shu.

Mr. Bian is a member of the family comprising Mr. Bian
Jianguang, Ms. Bian Shu and himself (“Bian Family”) and
the Bian Family is a controlling Shareholder (within the
meaning of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) of the Company
(“Controlling Shareholders”, each being a “Controlling
Shareholder”).
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Mr. BIAN Weican (2 1&#), aged 59, is an executive
Director and the deputy general manager of the Company
appointed on 28 December 2009 and 5 February 2018
respectively. Mr. Bian Weican has approximately 27 years
of experience in the business of provision of atmospheric
pollution control solutions.

Mr. Bian Weican successively worked in Zhuji County
Mechanical Model Plant* (7 B SR 5 ) and Zhejiang
Zhuji City Industrial Environmental Protection Equipment
Factory* (I E BB ™ L EIRRZEEM) from 1982
to 1995 in which he was responsible for manufacturing
machinery mould and procuring of raw materials. He worked
as the director of the material procuring department of TGL
from June 1995 to August 2013 in which he was responsible
for the materials procurement planning and management of
suppliers.

Mr. Bian Weican graduated from Zhuji County Tongshan
Community High School (FEE&REILARQAEFLER) in
Zhejiang Province in July 1976.
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Ms. BIAN Shu (%K), aged 38, is an executive Director
and the deputy manager of the administration department
of the Company. She was appointed as a Director on 1
June 2016, and has served as the deputy manager of the
administration department of the Company since September
2014. Previously, Ms. Bian Shu worked as the manager of
the human resources department of TGL from February
2006 to January 2010 and was responsible for the human
resources management and administration work of TGL.
She worked as the chief financial officer of TGL between
February 2010 to December 2011 and was responsible for
accounting matters and financial planning and management.
Ms. Bian Shu served as the vice president of TGL from
December 2011 to August 2014, and was responsible for
day-to-day operations and management and to deputise the
president when necessary. Furthermore, she served as the
chairman of the supervisory committee of the Company
("Supervisory Committee”, each member thereof being
“Supervisor”) from 28 December 2009 to 31 May 2016
and as the employee representative Supervisor from 10
May 2014 to 31 May 2016, and was primarily responsible
for supervising and overseeing the performance of the
Directors and other senior management members of the
Company.

Ms. Bian Shu holds a bachelor's degree of philosophy
from Zhejiang University in June 2003. She holds a master
degree of international business from the University of
Sydney in October 2006. She is the sister of Mr. Bian Yu and
the daughter of Mr. Bian Jianguang.

Ms. Bian Shu is a member of the Bian Family and the Bian
Family is a Controlling Shareholder.
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Non-executive Directors

Mr. BIAN Jianguang (B #3), aged 65, is the vice
chairman of the Board and a non-executive Director
appointed on 28 December 2009. Mr. Bian Jianguang has
approximately 29 years of experience in the business of the
provision of atmospheric pollution control solutions.

Mr. Bian Jianguang successively worked as the factory
director of Zhuji County Mechanical Model Plant* ( 7525 &
AR ) and Zhejiang Zhuji City Industrial Environmental
Protection Equipment Factory* (/T & B ™ T #IIRRK
4 ) from 1982 to 1995 in which he was responsible
for the overall management and business operation. From
June 1995 to August 2003, he served as the chairman of
the board of directors and the executive director of TGL and
he later resigned as chairman of the board of directors and
have been serving as vice chairman of the board of directors
of TGL since August 2003 responsible for the overall
management and business operation of TGL. He worked as
the director of Tianjie General Machinery (being principally
engaged in the manufacturing and marketing of machinery
and parts) from November 1999 to April 2008 in which he
was responsible for its overall management and business
operation.

Mr. Bian Jianguang has been working as the executive
director of Tianjie New Materials (principally engaged in
manufacturing, processing and marketing of steel blade)
since June 2009 and the chairman of the board of directors
of Tianjie General Machinery (being principally engaged
in manufacturing and marketing of machinery and parts)
from November 1999 to April 2008. Mr. Bian Jianguang
has been also working as an executive director for various
companies such as Yaoyu Special Steel (principally engaged
in manufacturing, processing and marketing of steel blade)
since April 2016 and Zhuiji City Tianjie Heavy Development
Limited* (REMRZETLHMBMR A A (being principally
engaged in research, design and development of heavy
machines) since April 2016, and he is mainly responsible for
day-to-day operation and management, and overall business
management in these companies.

Mr. Bian Jianguang is the father of Mr. Bian and Ms. Bian
Shu. Mr. Bian Jianguang is a member of the Bian Family and
the Bian Family is a Controlling Shareholder.
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Mr. ZHU Xian Bo (&) ("Mr. Zhu"), aged 53, is a non-
executive Director appointed on 31 May 2019. He was
appointed as the director of the corporate governance
department and project management department at the
second silk factory in Zhuji City from February 1987 to July
1994. the deputy general manager of Zhuji Jiasi Knitters
Co., Ltd* (BEBEBHEEREMEAF) from July 1994
to January 2002; the deputy general manager of Zhejiang
Hanyu Security Technology Co., Ltd.* (H T 2EF L 2K A
A &]) from February 2002 to September 2003; the deputy
factory director of Zhuji Chengguan Aluminum Products
Factory* (A EmM IR A M) from September 2003 to
January 2006; the general manager of Zhuji Huahai Anlun
Co., Ltd.* (EBEBRMABR A F]) from February 2006
to March 2009; the deputy general manager of Zhejiang
Junmashen Aluminium Co., Ltd.* G IESMIREBGR A
A)) from April 2009 to March 2017 He has served as the
vice president of TGL since March 2017

Mr. Zhu attended the national higher education entrance
examination in July 1984, was admitted to Zhejiang Ningbo
Mechanic Industrial School* (7T 5 7 # i T % &)
in September the same year, and obtained a Diploma of
Business Administration from Zhejiang Ningbo Mechanic
Industrial School* (/T 28/ #A% T2 24 ) in January 1987;
passed the self-study examination for higher education
in December 1991 and received a Diploma of Industrial
Management Engineering from Zhejiang University of
Technology; pursued postgraduate study of management
science and engineering in Zhejiang University from June
2000 to March 2002 and obtained completion certificate;
received an undergraduate diploma in law through online
education from Southwest University of Science and
Technology in June 2005. Mr. Zhu was recognised as a
senior economist by Zhuji Municipal Personnel Bureau
(#FZWAEBD), and was granted the qualification of
practising as a senior engineer by Accreditation Commission
of Technical Expertise Level of Shanghai Aluminum Trade
Association ( E/GIRE/TE S BERMKFRBBTERE
Z82)in April 2011.
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Mr. CHEN Jiancheng (FR#Z ), aged 56, is a non-
executive Director appointed on 5 December 2017 Mr. Chen
Jiancheng worked as an assistant to general manager of
TGL from June 1995 to January 2000. He served as the vice
general manager of Zhejiang Liyu Stainless Steel Co. Ltd.*
I FARFEMAR AR from June 2003 to December
2008, and became the chief technology officer (1l #4&
E2) of TGL since January 2004, primarily responsible for
technological research and development as well as product
quality control.

Mr. Chen Jiancheng graduated from Zhuji Paitou Middle
School* (FEEMEIEF ) in July 1979.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LI Jiannan (BFZE M) (“Mr. Li"), aged 42, is an
independent non-executive Director appointed on 18
September 2018. He has over 16 years of experience in
accounting and finance industry in the PRC.

Mr. LI obtained a Bachelor's degree in accounting at
Southwestern University of Finance and Economics, the
PRC in 2001. He is a certified public accountant and a
certified tax agent in the PRC. He is currently the director
of consultation department of Zhuji City Guangxin Certified
Public Accountants Company Limited* (& E(E&:HE1E
BRRERAIDR]) .

Mr. FUNG Kui Kei Jonas (S EE) (“Mr. FUNG"), aged
39, is an independent non-executive Director appointed
on 30 March 2018. Mr. FUNG has more than 17 years of
work experience in the accounting field. He is extremely
experienced in advising on corporate finance matters
including pre-IPO, acquisitions and mergers, and corporate
governance and general compliance issues for listed
companies and private companies.

REHEE o6 N_T—tF+_-_AHEHE
RERFATEST -REFHLEEE - NNLEFR
RE_ZZETF - AEATCLAKENE -5
ER=FRNAE_ZETN\F+-_AEENIZT
TEMBRAFRALE - _STWF—AR
BEETCLRMAE T2 ERMMERERE

ek

BREHREER—NENFLARERNEEM A

g
BUKNITES

BEfrs ((BEE]) 4250 R=ZF—/\FAh
A+ NBEZERBIIFNTES - RETEE
SR RERITEEEAI6F LR -

Brean— T2 FETERARYERENGE
AR TE  WRT B M S 5t R E MRS
B IR R EENEESAMEFEAERA A
ERAABEE

BERERE ([BELE]D) 395 R -_T—/\F=
A=1THEZERBIUIRTEE - HEEES
AEEBEABITFN TSR - RELARRE
FH(BELTRARMARANERAHEE
A-HERARE AR —RAREE)RMHES
7R A

30 Zhejiang Tengy Environmental Technology Co., Ltd  #i 1. K % BRBERH B0 15 LA 7]



Biographies of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

o~ B R A DI 1 R

Mr. FUNG graduated with a bachelor’'s degree in accounting
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University ( F# 18 T A
) in October 2003. Mr. FUNG is one of the founders of
JMD & PME CPA Limited and OCTOSEC CPA LIMITED,
providers of professional corporate advisory to enterprises
in Hong Kong, and has been a partner of the same since
August 2014 and July 2016 respectively. From May 2011 to
March 2014, he worked as the assistant finance manager of
AZONA (HK) LIMITED principally engaged in fashion retail.
From December 2008 to May 2011, he was the auditor of
Shu Lun Pan Hong Kong CPA LIMITED and subsequently
the assistant manager of BDO Limited (due to a merger
between Shu Lun Pan Hong Kong CPA LIMITED), which is
the Hong Kong member firm of BDO International Limited.
From January 2006 to October 2008, he was the auditor
of BDO Limited. From October 2003 to December 2005,
he was an auditor in CWCC, a professional advisory firm
providing a full range of business services in Hong Kong and
major cities in mainland China.

Mr. FUNG has been a member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants (“ACCA") since 2007 He
has also been a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") since 2011.

Mr. ZHANG Bing (R @), aged 38, is an independent
non-executive Director appointed on 15 September 2014.
Mr. Zhang Bing has approximately 10 years of experience in
the field of environmental planning.

Mr. Zhang Bing worked as a lecturer in the School of
Environment, Nanjing University (F R AKEZEREZERT) in
December 2008 in which he was responsible for teaching
and conducting research. He was promoted to an associate
professor and assumed the said role from December 2010
to December 2013 in which he was responsible for teaching,
conducting research and personnel training, and he later
became a professor and has been working since December
2013 in which he is responsible for teaching, conducting
research and supervising doctoral students. Mr. Zhang
Bing has been the director of the Center for Environmental
Management and Policy of Jiangsu Environmental
Protection.
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Mr. Zhang Bing was a committee member and the deputy
secretary of the second committee of the Society for
Environmental Economics of the Chinese Society for
Environmental Sciences (FF BIIRIZERI BB & IR L B 5
&) from October 2008 to September 2012 and has been
the director of Chinese Society of Optimisation, Overall
Planning and Economical Mathematics, Energy Economics
and Management* ( ff BI{B IR A S 2% B 48 F SR B T 2 6
RIS HEE IR 7D & ) since November 2012.

Mr. Zhang Bing obtained the Scientific and Technological
Progress Award (Second Class)* (RIE2 R i 2 — F48)
from the Ministry of Education of the People’'s Republic
of China (FZE AR LB E 2F) in January 2010, the
Eighth Young Scientist Award of the Chinese Society
for Environmental Sciences* (£ N\ @R EIRER 22
GFERLHE) in December 2012 from the Society of
Environmental Science of the PRC (M EiEERI 22 S)
and the Environmental Protection and Scientific Award (First
Class)* (RBIRERIBEIIT# 88 —F48) from the Ministry
of Environmental Protection of the PRC ( Fh#E A R M IR
BIRFEED) in December 2012.

Mr. Zhang Bing obtained a bachelor's degree in
environmental planning from Nanjing University ( @ & A
) in June 2003 and a doctorate degree in environmental
planning and management from Nanjing University ( E 5K
£) in December 2008.

Directors’ Service Contracts

All Directors have entered into letters of appointment or
service contracts with the Company. As at 31 December
2019, no Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company or its subsidiary which is not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

The Supervisory Committee consists of three members,
with two representatives of Shareholders and one
representative of employees. The employee representative
Supervisor is elected democratically by the employees
representative congress, while Shareholder representative
Supervisors are elected by the Shareholders. The term of
office of each Supervisor is three years, which is renewable
upon re-election and re-appointment. The powers and
duties of the Supervisory Committee include reviewing
and verifying financial reports, business reports and
profit distribution proposals prepared by the Board; and
if in doubt, appointing certified public accountants and
practicing auditors to re-examine the Company’s financial
information; monitoring the financial activities of the
Company, supervising the performance of the Directors,
the president and other senior management members, and
monitoring whether they had acted in violation of the laws,
regulations and Articles of Association in the performance
of their duties; requesting the Directors, the president and
senior management members to rectify actions which are
detrimental to the Company’s interests; and exercising
other rights given to them under the Articles of Association.
Each of the Supervisors has entered into a service contract/
appointment letter with the Group.
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SUPERVISORS

Mr. CHEN Xinhua (BR¥71%) , aged 57 is an employee
representative Supervisor and the head of the procurement
department of the Company. He joined the Group since
2010.

From January 1997 to May 2000, Mr. Chen Xinhua served
as the manager of the department of supplies of Zhejiang
Shengjie Environmental Engineering Co. Ltd.* ()T
BZ2IRIRITEABMRAA) and was responsible for the
overall departmental management. From June 2000 to
October 2001, he served as the manager of technology
transformation projects of Tianjie Strip Steel Factory*
(KZEME) . From November 2001 to May 2003 and
from January 2009 to December 2009, he served as
the procurement manager and vice general manager
of procurement centre, respectively, of TGL, and was
responsible for the procurement of raw materials. From
June 2003 to December 2008, he served as the vice general
manager of Zhejiang Liyu Stainless Steel Co. Ltd.* (7T 3L
FAFEMAR AT, and was responsible for assisting the
general manger in its overall operation.

Mr. Chen was graduated from Shaoxing Vocational
Secondary College* (#AE MR TR EHZEELT) in July 1990
majoring in industrial enterprise management.

Mr. FU Jun (f819), aged 39, is a Shareholder
representative Supervisor. Prior to joining the Group on 18
October 2014, Mr. Fu Jun taught at the school of computer
and information engineering of Zhejiang Gongshang
University G /)T T K2) in December 2009, being a
lecturer and an assistant professor successively, responsible
for teaching and conducting research.

Mr. Fu Jun obtained a bachelor's degree of bio-medical
engineering from Zhejiang University CHITAE) in June
2004 and a doctorate degree in bio-medical engineering
from Zhejiang University ()T X28) in December 2009.
He also completed two years of minor studies in Japanese
language in Zhejiang University )T A£2) in June 2003.
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Mr. FANG Zhiguo (5 3&Bl), aged 42, is a Shareholder
representative Supervisor. Prior to joining the Group on 18
October 2014, he worked as a post-doctoral researcher in
environmental science and engineering at the Research
Centre for Eco-Environment Sciences of the Chinese
Academy of Sciences (1 B} 7 &£ REIR B FTH L) from
July 2005 to August 2008, in which he was responsible for
conducting research. He joined the school of environmental
science and engineering of Zhejiang Gongshang University
ST ITREAZR) in August 2008 and became an assistant
professor since October 2009, in which he is responsible for
teaching and conducting research.

Mr. Fang Zhiguo obtained a master degree of science
majoring in ecology from Zhejiang University CGHfiT KZ2)
in June 2002 and a doctorate degree in science majoring in
ecology from the Graduate School of the Chinese Academy
of Science (FRERI 2RI 5 £ B ) (later renamed as the
University of Chinese Academy of Sciences (7 B &} £pz X
E) ) in July 2005. He was a visiting scholar at the University
of Oklahoma in the United States from June 2006 to May
2008.

Except as disclosed herein, to the best of the knowledge,
information and belief of the Directors having made all
reasonable enquiries, there are no other matters relating
to the appointment of Supervisors that need to be brought
to the attention of the Shareholders, nor is there any
information relating to the Supervisors that is required to
be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51 (2) of the Listing Rules
including matters relating to directorship held by Supervisors
in any public companies the securities of which are listed on
any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas in the last
three years.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. QIU Jinxin (BB %) , aged 57 is the deputy general
manager of the Company appointed on 15 May 2017. Mr. Qiu
Jinxin worked as a technician and deputy director of Zhuiji
City Fertiliser Factory* (F#EZ ML IEE) (being principally
engaged in the production and marketing of fertiliser) from
August 1983 to July 1993 in which he was responsible for
quality control and equipment management. Mr. Qiu Jinxin
has approximately 24 years of experience in the business of
provision of atmospheric pollution control solutions.

From July 1993 to June 2006, Mr. Qiu Jinxin worked
in TGL with the last position as chief engineer, and he
was responsible for the research and development of
environmental protection precipitator. He worked as the
general manager in Zhuji Jieda Environmental Protection
Equipment Installation Company Ltd* (#EZ M ZERFH
HZEER A A]) (being principally engaged in the design,
production and installation of environmental protection
projects) from July 2006 to December 2008 in which he was
responsible for its overall management and operation. From
January 2009 to August 2012, he worked as the vice general
manager in Zhejiang Oriental Environmental Protection
Equipment Co., Ltd* CINTE S RRZEER A F)) which
was principally engaged in the technology development and
marketing of environmental protection equipments, and he
was responsible for the overall management and operation.

Mr. Qiu Jinxin has been the vice president of the fifth
Council of the Environmental Protection Industry Association
of Zhejiang Province* (I IE RREXHESERLEES
@) since April 2013 and the deputy secretariat* ( B|f#E
£ ) of third Council of Environmental Protection Industry
Association of Zhuji City* (FEEMRRREEEHETFE =
[E¥E =& ) since December 2012. He has also been the
standing council member (F 73225 ) of the ninth Council
of Environmental Science Association of Zhejiang Province*
CIHIAREBERE22B2FNEESEE) since 17 April 2015. In
December 2005, Mr. Qiu was accredited as senior engineer
by Assessment Committee for Qualification of Senior
Position for Mechanical Engineering Technician of Zhejiang
Province* (I E MM TIERMAESRBBEEBER
FFEE B 2) . In July 2016, Mr. Qiu Jinxin was included in
the first batch of the expert list of the expert database of
Environmental Protection Industry Association of Zhejiang

Province* (AT I ERREEHE) .
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Ms. WU Fengdi (R Bl#) , aged 37 has been the Chief
Financial Officer of the Company (“CFO") and Board
Secretary. She joined the Group and was appointed as the
financial manager of the Company on 28 December 2009.
Ms. Wu Fengdi has approximately 15 years of experience
in accounting in the atmospheric pollution control solutions
industry. Ms. Wu Fengdi worked as the chief accountant
of TGL from April 2003 to December 2009 and she was
responsible for the financials and internal auditing of TGL.

Ms. Wu Fengdi completed three years of studies in
accounting at Shaoxing University (#3 # XX 3B 23 ) in
January 2008.

Mr. QIU Yonghui ( BBk #&) , aged 37 is the deputy general
manager of the Company appointed on 15 May 2017 He
joined the Group in July 2008 as the deputy manager of
the technology department. He was appointed as the
deputy general manager of the Company on 15 May 2017,
responsible for the operation of the technology department.

Mr. Qiu Yonghui is a first-class constructor ( —#kE&Rf) and
registered environmental protection engineer ( FFIRIR L2
B ) in China. He focused on developing movable collecting
electrode plate, wet precipitators and high-efficiency
desulfurisation equipment. He had participated in designing
the movable collecting electrode plate for various projects,
including the 2 X 600MW unit of B M ZEERFFZEEFR A F]
and 2 X 660MW unit of BE 4% % E F PR A 7. He had also
participated in designing the wet precipitators for various
projects, including the 3 X 50MW unit of 78 % P2 E and
12 X 50MW unit of & .

Mr. Qiu Yonghui had acted as a technician and participated
in the research and development of a provincial new product
“circulating fluidised bed boiler auxiliary electrostatic
precipitator (1B ML IRIAIER EERE ) for large
generator units (300MW-1000MW)"”. This product was
accredited with provincial product certification in 2010.
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Mr. ZHANG Rixing (& B 1T), aged 51, is the deputy
general manager of the Company appointed on 5 February
2018. He joined the Group in May 2013 as the director
of marketing. He was appointed as the deputy general
manager of the Company on 5 February 2018, responsible
for the operation of the sales department.

Mr. Zhang Rixing graduated from &% & ¥ i 1lf 2K
majoring in accounting in 1986. Mr. Zhang Rixing served
as the sales supervisor of Zhejiang Zhuji City Industrial
Environmental Protection Equipment Factory* (#1/L%& &
B IERRIMEER) from July 1993 to August 1994,
worked as the sales supervisor of #7 L K 2 &% B
fE 2 Al from September 1994 to May 1995 and the sales
supervisor of TGL from June 1995 to April 2003 and was
responsible for day-to-day sales management, aftersale
matters and liaison with buyers. He also served as the
general manager of Zhejiang Liyu Stainless Steel Co. Ltd.*
I FAESMAR A F) from May 2003 to February
2008.

Ms. XIN Lingling (¥3}%#¥), aged 44, is the deputy
general manager of the Company appointed on 5 February
2018. She joined the Group in March 2016 as the general
manager of the Hangzhou branch. She was appointed as
the deputy general manager of the Company on 5 February
2018, responsible for the operation of the research and
development department.

Ms. Xin Lingling was graduated from Shanghai University
of Electric Power (_E/8%E JJ X&) majoring in power plant
thermal power engineering (B MZALE) /) T2 ) . She is a
senior engineer in China.

Ms. Xin Lingling served as the chief engineer of 31T T X
M METIZBMRAF from March 2004 to October 2006
and was responsible for project planning. She served as the
general manager and the executive director of i/l A E
HRIB AR A from November 2006 to April 2010, served
as the general manager of #T) T FIfRIRE TR B R A7) from
November 2009 to November 2015 and also served as the
technical consultant of XJ Lianhua INT'L Environmental Co.,
Ltd. from April 2015 to February 2016.
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Mr. CHEN Jianguo (BR#Z ), aged 59, is the deputy
general manager of the Company appointed since 3 May
2010. He joined the Group on 28 December 2009 and was
appointed as the deputy general manager of the Company
on 3 May 2010. Mr. Chen Jianguo has approximately
26 years of experience in the business of provision of
atmospheric pollution control solutions.

Chen Jianguo was responsible for the research and
development of precipitators, installation of environmental
protection equipments and aftersale matters in enterprises
such as Zhuji City Industrial Environmental Protection
Equipment Factory* (7 B T 2 IRIRZ M L2E) from 1991
to 1998. From June 1995 to December 2009, he worked as
the head of the department of engineering and installation
of TGL and was responsible for the supervising installation
of environmental protection equipment, aftersale matters
and liaison with buyers.

Mr. Chen Jianguo graduated from Zhuji County Tongshan
Community High School* (FEZE&RILARAREFLER) in
Zhejiang Province in July 1977.
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. WONG Hon Kit (E3##), and Ms. SHEN Qiong (it
18) are the Company's joint company secretaries.

Mr. WONG Hon Kit ( E%#t) , aged 30, holds a Bachelor's
degree of Business Administration (Hons) in Accountancy
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Mr. Wong
Hong Kit is currently a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. He has over 9 years of
extensive experience in finance, auditing and consulting
fields, gaining from an international accounting firm and
listed corporation. He served as the financial controller of
China Qil Gangran Energy Group Holdings Limited (stock
code: 08132), a company listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange from 2011. He worked as a senior auditor in
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu from 2011 to 2015.

Ms. SHEN Qiong (Ji38), aged 35, has been one of
the joint company secretaries of the Company since 1
November 2014 primarily responsible for the company
secretarial and legal matters of the Group. She joined the
Group in September 2014 as a legal officer. Ms. Shen Qiong
has approximately 10 years of legal experience in relation to
business operations.

Ms. Shen Qiong worked as a legal officer in Zhejiang Group
Net Environmental Engineering Co., Ltd* (I T FIRE T
I B R A 7)) (being principally engaged in production
and sales of environmental protection equipment and
machineries) from August 2006 to December 2008 in which
she was responsible for legal and compliance matters. From
January 2009 to August 2014, she worked as a legal officer
and the assistant to the manager in TGL in which she was
responsible for legal and compliance matters.

Ms. Shen Qiong completed a long distance learning course
majoring in law from Southwest University of Political
Science & Law (Fam BUAAZ) in July 2008. She also
obtained a qualification certificate of assistant engineer
in municipal engineering issued by Zhuji City Personnel
Bureau* (FEEM AEE) in April 2010.
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The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance
report of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board is committed to upholding a high standard of
corporate governance and business ethics in the firm belief
that they are essential for enhancing investors’ confidence
and maximising shareholders’ returns. The Board reviews its
corporate governance practices from time to time in order to
meet the rising expectations of stakeholders, comply with
increasingly stringent regulatory requirements and fulfill its
commitment to excellence in corporate governance.

After reviewing the Company's corporate governance
practices and the relevant regulations of the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (“CG
Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, the
Board is satisfied that the Company complied with the CG
Code provisions for the Year save for the deviation below:

° The Board has not adopted a dividend policy during
the Year as required by code provision E.1.5 of the
CG Code. Nevertheless, it will adopt a dividend policy
subject to the shareholders’ approval in the upcoming
annual general meeting, details of which are set out
in the section “Dividend Policy” of this corporate
governance report.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is committed to providing an effective and
responsible leadership for the Company. The Directors,
individually and collectively, must act in good faith in the
best interests of the Company and the Shareholders. The
Board established three Board committees, being the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee (each a “Board Committee” and
collectively the “Board Committees”), to oversee different
areas of the Company's affairs.

The Board currently comprises three executive Directors,
namely Mr. Bian, Mr. Bian Weican and Ms. Bian Shu; three
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Bian Jianguang, Mr.
Zhu Xian Bo and Mr. Chen Jiancheng; three independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Li Jiannan, Mr. Fung
Kui Kei and Mr. Zhang Bing.
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Their biographical details and their family relationships
(where applicable) are set out in the section headed
“Biographies of Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Management” above in this annual report. A list of the
Directors identifying their roles, functions and independence
is available on the Company’s website.

Mr. Bian, an executive Director, the chairman of the Board
and the general manager of the Company, is the brother
of Ms. Bian Shu (an executive Director) and the son of Mr.
Bian Jianguang (a non-executive Director). Save as disclosed
herein, there are no other financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships among the members of the
Board.

The Company is committed to the view that the Board
should include a balanced composition of executive and
non-executive Directors (including independent non-
executive Directors) so that there is a strong element of
independency on the Board, which facilitates the effective
exercise of independent judgements in the course of
decision-making. The Company is also committed to the
view that the independent non-executive Directors should
be of sufficient number, calibre and experience for their
views to carry weight, and that they should be free of any
business or other relationship which could have interfered or
potentially interfere, to any material extent, with the exercise
of independent judgment for the purpose of assumptions of
directorship in the Company.

Mr. Bian is the chairman of the Board, the executive
Director and the general manager of the Company, and is
responsible for overseeing the strategic planning, policy
formulations as well as corporate development of the Group
as well as undertaking the principal decision-making role
in the supervision and management of the Company's
overall operations. The Board meets regularly to consider,
discuss and review the major and appropriate issues that
pertain to the operations of the Company. As such, the
Board considers that sufficient measures have been taken
and the vesting of the roles of Board management and the
management of day-to-day business of the Company in Mr.
Bian will not impair the balance of power and authority. It
is believed that the said balance is ensured by the effective
management of the Board, of which the structure provides
the Group with strong and consistent leadership and
allows for a more effective and efficient business planning,
decision making as well as execution of long term business
strategies.
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The Board sets the Group's overall objectives and
strategies, monitors and evaluates its operating and
financial performance and reviews its corporate governance
standards. It also decides on matters such as annual and
interim results, major transactions, director appointments
or re-appointments, investment policies, dividend and
accounting policies. The Board has delegated the authority
and responsibility for implementing its business strategies
and managing the daily operations of the Group's
businesses to the executive Directors and the senior
management of which the members should report back
and obtain prior approval from the Board before making
decisions or entering into any commitments for and on
behalf of the Group. In compliance with the code provision
D3.1 of the CG Code, the functions and powers that have
been delegated are reviewed periodically to ensure that they
remain appropriate to the needs of the Group.

The Board is also responsible for developing, reviewing
and monitoring the policies and practices on corporate
governance and legal and regulatory compliance of the
Group, and the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management.
The Board also reviews the disclosures herein to ensure
compliance.

All Board members have separate and independent access
to the Group's senior management to fulfill their duties.
Independent professional advice can be sought to assist the
relevant Directors to discharge their duties at the Group's
expense upon their request. Since November 2015, all
Directors have been provided with monthly updates on the
Company'’s performance and financial position to enable the
Board as a whole and each Director to effectively discharge
their duties.

All Directors are required to declare to the Board upon
their first appointment of directorships or other positions
concurrently held in other companies or organisations.
These interests are updated on an annual basis and when
necessary.
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING
AND PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

All Directors are aware of their responsibilities to the
Shareholders and have exercised their duties with care, skill
and diligence, in pursuit of the development of the Group.
Every newly appointed Director receives an induction to
ensure that he has a proper understanding of the business
and operations of the Group and that he is fully aware of
his duties and responsibilities as a director under applicable
rules and requirements.

In compliance with paragraph A.6.5 of the CG Code, during
the Year, the Company organised training sessions to each of
the Directors in relation to continuing obligations of a Hong
Kong listed company and its directors. In addition, briefings
and updates on the latest development regarding the Listing
Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements are
provided to each of the Directors during Board meetings to
ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of good
corporate governance practices.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The role of the independent non-executive Directors is
to provide independent and objective opinions to the
Board, giving adequate control and balances for the Group
to protect the overall interests of the shareholders and
the Group. They serve actively on the Board and Board
Committees to provide their independent and objective
views.

In compliance with Rules 3.10 (1) and 3.10A of the Listing
Rules, the Company appointed three independent non-
executive Directors, representing equal to one-third of the
Board. One of the independent non-executive Directors has
the appropriate professional qualifications in accounting or
related financial management expertise as required by Rule
3.10 (2) of the Listing Rules.

EEREARIIRERER

FREFSHNRFESEHRENET BREITE
ENBERCHEIERT RIMESY B
BAEE -SEFAESHEREVENARE
I BREHASBEMNESREEGEE TH-
WRSEBENBARIRRE T ARESNE
ENREE-

RETEEERTHEALLR RAFE AR
AERBREEERARTELMARRAESN
FERTNEIRE I XRAFAREFE S
& LASEFRHEAEFBLTRAINEMERES
RENBNREHER ABREFETEHAZE
B AR IR REH R EREAERIAR-

BYFUTESNE LM

BUFATEENABINESTSERTEBLLE
ENER RAKBERERHNGIA N FE X
RERERRAEEEEBNR - RENEFTENZ
FEFEZEeRABRREHBYREENER

RARIEER ETARAIE3.10(1) X3.10AK £ E
CRBYURNTEE hREFSAB - HZ—
Hf— 2B e TESAE ETRAIES1002)
GETRENEE S EEERNBBRYKERSE
Eo

44 Zhejiang Tengy Environmental Technology Co., Ltd  #i 1. K % BRBERH B0 15 LA 7]



Corporate Governance Report
A E AW

Each independent non-executive Director has submitted
an annual confirmation in writing on his/her independence
to the Company for the Year pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. Based on the contents of such confirmations,
the Company considers that all independent non-executive
Directors are independent and free of any relationship
that could materially interfere with the exercise of their
independent judgement.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Group has three non-executive Directors, being Mr.
Bian Jianguang, Mr. Zhu Xian Bo and Mr. Chen Jiancheng.
At the annual general meeting convened for the year ended
31 December 2015 and held on 1 June 2016, Mr. Bian
Jianguang was re-appointed. At the extraordinary general
meeting held on 5 December 2017 Mr. Chen Jiancheng
was newly appointed while Mr. Zhu Xian Bo was newly
appointed at the annual general meeting held on 31 May
2019.

Details of the biographies of Mr. Bian Jianguang, Mr. Zhu
Xian Bo and Mr. Chen Jiancheng are set out in the section
headed “Biographies of Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Management” above in this annual report. Directors
emoluments for Non-executive Directors are set out in note
13 to the Financial Statements.

The term of appointment of the non-executive Directors is
three years.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board is supported by a number of committees,
including the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee. Each Board Committee has its
defined and written terms of reference approved by the
Board covering its duties, powers and functions. Their terms
of reference are available on the Company's website.

All Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties, including access to management
or professional advice if considered necessary.
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The Audit Committee was established with terms of
reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing
Rules as well as paragraph C.3 of the CG Code. The
Audit Committee consists of three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Fung Kui Kei, Mr. Li
Jiannan and Mr. Zhang Bing. Mr. Fung Kui Kei, who has
appropriate professional qualifications and experience
in accounting matters, was appointed as the chairman
of the Audit Committee on 30 March 2018.

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee
are to assist the Board in providing an independent
view of the effectiveness of the financial reporting
process, internal control and risk management
systems and relationship with external auditor of the
Group, oversee the audit process and perform other
duties and responsibilities as assigned by the Board.
These include reviewing the Group's interim and
annual reports.

The work performed by the Audit Committee during
the Year includes:

(i) reviewing of the relationship with the external
auditors by reference to the work performed by
the auditors, its fees and terms of management,
and make recommendation to the Board on the
reappointment of external auditors;

(i) reviewing of the annual and interim results and
reports of the Company as to whether they are
in compliance with the accounting standards
and relevant requirements in relation to financial
reporting under the Listing Rules and other laws;

(i) reviewing of matters relating to risk management
and internal control systems, and the plans
and objectives of the internal audit function
established by the Company; and

(iv) reviewing of the Group's accounting principles
and practices, financial reporting and statutory
compliance matters.
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Pursuant to the meetings of the Audit Committee
on 31 March 2020 and 15 April 2020, the Audit
Committee has reviewed the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the Year (“Financial
Statements”), including the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group, the report prepared
by the external auditor covering major findings in the
course of the audit, and the selection and appointment
of the external auditor. During the Year, two meetings
of the Audit Committee were held. The respective
attendance records of individual committee members
are set out below:

%Fﬁﬁilﬁifﬁﬁﬁ EM‘% &i’«%( 8%
Bl (BRAKERMNEHRALE
) NI RS (BERRE
HEHNBZBETHTIERHEER) ARINE
BN BERET RAFE EREE
SRITMAEZ ENZEE@RBEEEMH
JEREERE ST :

Attendance/Number

of meetings

Name of member REESR HE BB RE
Mr. Fung Kui Kei (Chairman) SRR L A () 2/2
Mr. Zhang Bing SR A 5 2/2
Mr. Li Jiannan B S A 2/2
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(ii)
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established with
terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.25 of
the Listing Rules as well as paragraph B.1 of the CG
Code. The Remuneration Committee comprises three
Directors, namely Mr. Li Jiannan (independent non-
executive Director), Mr. Zhang Bing (independent non-
executive Director) and Mr. Chen Jiancheng (non-
executive Director). Mr. Li Jiannan is the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee are to review and make recommendations
to the Board on the overall remuneration structure
and policy for all Directors and senior management
as well as the specific remuneration packages for the
executive Directors and senior management and on
the establishment of a formal and transparent process
for developing such remuneration policy. No Director
takes part in any discussion on his own remuneration.
The Company's objective for its remuneration policy
is to maintain fair and competitive packages based
on business requirements and industry practice. In
order to determine the level of remuneration and fees
paid to the members of the Board, market rates and
factors such as each Director’s workload, performance,
responsibility, job complexity and the Group's
performance are taken into account.

Pursuant to the meeting of the Remuneration
Committee on 31 March 2020, the Remuneration
Committee reviewed the remuneration policy and
structure relating to, as well as the respective service
contracts/letters of appointment of, the Directors and
senior management of the Company.

(i) FMEES
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(iii)

During the Year, one meeting of the Remuneration RAFE FMEEERIT—RE& @5
Committee was held. The respective attendance ZEEKESENEELEIEINNT
records of individual committee members are set out
below:
Attendance/Number
of meetings
Name of member REER HE 3K E
Mr. Li Jiannan BERLE 1/1
Mr. Zhang Bing SRR AE 1/1
Mr. Chen Jiancheng PR T ST A 1/1
The remuneration of members of the senior BRAFEASBESRERENKBH M

management of the Group for the Year are set out in
note 13 to the Financial Statements.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established with
terms of reference in compliance with paragraph A.5
of the CG Code and comprises three Directors, namely
Mr. Zhang Bing (independent non-executive Director),
Mr. Fung Kui Kei (independent non-executive Director)
and Ms. Bian Shu (executive Director). Mr. Zhang Bing
is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination
Committee are to review the composition of the
Board, including its structure, size and diversity,
at least annually to ensure that it has a balance of
expertise, skills and experience appropriate to the
requirements of the business of the Group. It is also
responsible for considering and recommending to
the Board any suitably qualified person to become
a member of the Board, monitoring the succession
planning of Directors and assessing the independence
of independent non-executive Directors. For details
of the nomination policy adopted by the Nomination
Committee, please refer to the section “Nomination
Policy” in this corporate governance report. The
Nomination Committee also gives consideration
to the board diversity policy adopted by the Board
in March 2015 (“Board Diversity Policy”) when
identifying suitably qualified candidates to become
the members of the Board, and the Board reviews the
Board Diversity Policy, so as to develop and review
measurable objectives for the implementation of the
same and to monitor the progress on achieving these
objectives. The Board is reasonably diverse in terms of
age, professional skills and experience during the Year.
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Pursuant to the meeting of the Nomination Committee
on 31 March 2020, the Nomination Committee

FE=ZF[A=1—
ERSEEEN

REREZEEN_FT—
E'gﬁ%'f—fmawﬁé REZB®

reviewed the structure, size and composition of 2818 - ABURAERK  WE B IEMITE
the Board and assessed the independence of the ENELM -RAFE REZES8RT—
independent non-executive Directors. During the REZ-AREZEEKE R BN FELHEE
Year, one meeting of the Nomination Committee was T
held. The respective attendance records of individual
committee members are set out below:
Attendance/Number
of meetings
Name of member REHAE HE BB RE
Mr. Zhang Bing (Chairman) RIREE (F/E) 11
Ms. Bian Shu Bkt 1/1
Mr. Fung Kui Kei SR E ST A 1/1
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS EEERBEE
The Board is responsible for performing the functions set BEE&ABBITEEEATEIED.I1RAHNE

out in paragraph D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Board has reviewed the Company's corporate
governance policies and practices, training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management, and the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the
extent of compliance of the Company with the “Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers”
under Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (“Model Code”) and
the CG Code as well as the relevant disclosures herein.
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BOARD PROCEEDINGS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, the Board is required
to hold at least four Board meetings each year, to be
convened and hosted by the chairman of the Board. A notice
of at least fourteen days shall be dispatched for a regular
Board meeting.

The quorum for a Board meeting is the presence of at least
half of the total number of the Directors. A Director may
attend the Board meeting in person, or appoint another
Director in writing as his proxy to attend the Board meeting.
The secretary to the Board is responsible for preparing and
keeping the minutes of Board meetings and ensuring that
such minutes are available for inspection by any Director.

During the Year, four Board meetings were held and the

EEEREER

REAERAN EFESFARTHRIAR
HEFEEFA I?';EJ&?E%E*Ji%EEE "EFE

EHERARNED TORBA-

EEQRINEEABELRESHEN —F-
EETHELEESTERH AUEARAEE
AEERERZRRLFEZS R EFT
WERAREMMBTETE SR LE  LBRZ
FeFk I MEFERN-

SR
Lo

RAFE BEFGRTIRGE ERHEFEXE

respective attendance records of individual Board members & &/ E o8k 20T -
are set out below:
Attendance/Number
of meetings
Name of Director EEHA HE BFRE
Mr. Bian Yu BFEE 4/4
Mr. Bian Weican BEREE 4/4
Ms. Bian Shu BRI 4/4
Mr. Bian Jianguang BENEE 4/4
Mr. Zhang Yuanyuan®ete? BRIR S A 2/2
Mr. Chen Jiancheng PR 32 5 A 4/4
Mr. Fung Kui Kei KSR EL S A 4/4
Mr. Zhang Bing SRR A 4/4
Mr. Li Jiannan BS A E A 4/4
Mr. Zhu Xian BoMete 7 0t B R o A 2/2
Note 1: Mr. Zhang Yuanyuan resigned as the non-executive director of the  Afit7. ERBEELEB T —AFREA=T+—HERHIAQH

Company with effect from 31 May 2019 and he was replaced by Mr.
Zhu Xian Bo on 31 May 2019.

FNTES IR _F-NAFAA=1T—HEREK
AR R -
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GENERAL MEETINGS

During the Year, the Company convened one annual general
meeting held on 31 May 2019. The respective attendance
records of individual Board members are set out below:

TN

RAFE ARBAR-_ZE-NFHEA=+—HA
M—RBRRBAFARE EAEZEXEZEMNH
JRRCERELFI AT ¢

Attendance/Number

of meetings

Name of Director EEHA HE BB RE
Mr. Bian Yu BFEE 11
Mr. Bian Weican BEREE 11
Ms. Bian Shu BRI T 11
Mr. Bian Jianguang BENEE 1N
Mr. Zhang Yuanyuan®ete? BERIR S A 1/
Mr. Chen Jiancheng PR 32 5 A 1/1
Mr. Zhang Bing RIRAE A 1/1
Mr. Fung Kui Kei KSR E S A 1/1
Mr. Li Jiannan SR E AE 1/1

Note 1: Mr. Zhang Yuanyuan resigned as the non-executive director of the
Company with effect from 31 May 2019 and he was replaced by Mr.
Zhu Xian Bo on 31 May 2019.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, Directors shall be
subject to election at the Company's general meetings with
a term of office of three years and may be re-elected. The
Company has implemented a set of effective procedures
for the appointment of new Directors. The Nomination
Committee shall, in accordance with provisions of the
relevant laws and regulations and the Articles of Association,
take into account the practical situations of the Company,
consider the selection criteria, selection procedures and
terms of office of the Directors, and record and submit the
resolutions to the Board for approval. All newly nominated
Directors are subject to election and approval at general
meetings.

Hatl: BREZEB-E-NAFRA=ZT - HRBEALRF
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board adopted the Board Diversity Policy in March
2015. The Company recognises and embraces the benefits
of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its
performance. Selection of candidates is based on a range
of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length
of service. The ultimate decision is based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates is expected to
bring to the Board.

NOMINATION POLICY

The Company has a nomination policy of having a board
of directors with a diversity of skills and experience. The
selection and proposed appointment of the Directors
are submitted to the approval of both the Nomination
Committee and the Board, and the re-election of Directors
is conducted in accordance with the Articles. The criteria
of assessing a candidate include his/her reputation for
integrity, accomplishment, experience and reputation in
the business and industry and commitment in respect of
sufficient time, interest and attention to the businesses of
the Company and its subsidiaries. If a candidate is proposed
to be appointed as an independent non-executive Director,
his/her independence shall be assessed in accordance with
the requirements under the Listing Rules.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company will adopt a dividend policy subject to the
shareholders’ approval in the upcoming annual general
meeting.

The proposed dividend policy will provide the Board
the discretion to declare and distribute dividends to
Shareholders subject to the provisions of the constitutional
documents of the Company, and applicable laws and
regulations. In considering whether to recommend or
declare dividends, the Board will also take into account a
number of factors including but not limited to operations,
earnings, financial condition, cash flow situation, business
conditions and strategies, interests of shareholders, any
restrictions on payment of dividends and any other factors
that the Board may consider relevant. Any final dividend for a
financial year will be subject to shareholders’ approval.
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SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

The Supervisory Committee consists of three members.
The employee representative Supervisor, namely Mr.
Chen Xinhua, was elected by employee representatives,
whilst the remaining two Supervisors were elected by
the Shareholders. Mr. Chen Xinhua entered into a service
contract with the Company on 1 January 2016, and each
of Mr. Fu Jun and Mr. Fang Zhiguo signed a letter of
appointment on 31 May 2019. Pursuant to the Articles of
Association, the term of office of the Supervisors shall be
three years. The functions and duties of the Supervisory
Committee include, but are not limited to, reviewing and
verifying financial reports and, if in doubt, appointing
certified public accountant and practicing auditor to re-
examine the Company's financial information; monitoring
the business activities of the Company; supervising the
performance of the Directors, the chairman of the Board
and other senior management members, and monitoring
whether they had acted in violation of the laws, regulations
and Articles of Association in the performance of their
duties; requesting the Directors, the chairman of the Board
and senior management members to rectify actions which
damage the Company's interests; and exercising other
rights given to them under the Articles of Association.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Group adopted the Model Code as the code of conduct
on securities transactions entered into by the Directors
and Supervisors, in order to govern such transactions.
Having made specific written enquiries, all Directors and
Supervisors confirmed their compliance with the provisions
under the Model Code throughout the Year.
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Wong Hon Kit and Ms. Shen Qiong are the joint
company secretaries of the Company.

Being the joint company secretaries, Mr. Wong and Ms.
Shen serve an important role in ensuring good information
flow within the Board and that the Board policies and
procedures are followed. Both of them are responsible
for advising the Board on corporate governance matters
and facilitating induction and professional development of
Directors.

During the Year, the joint company secretaries of the
Company complied with the relevant professional training
requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. The
biographical details of each of the said joint company
secretaries are set out in the section headed “Biographies
of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management” above in
this annual report.

FINANCIAL REPORTING AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

Financial reporting

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the
Financial Statements which give a true and fair view of the
Group's state of affairs, results and cash flows for the Year
and in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the HKICPA, and the disclosure
requirements under the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622 of
the Laws of Hong Kong). The Company selected appropriate
accounting policies and applied them consistently based
on prudent and reasonable judgments and estimates. The
Board considers that the Group has adequate resources to
continue in business for the foreseeable future and is not
aware of any material uncertainties relating to any events or
conditions that may affect the business of the Group or cast
doubts on its ability to continue as a going concern.

The responsibilities of Zhonghui Anda CPA Limited, the
Company's external auditor, with respect to financial
reporting are set out in the section headed “Independent
Auditors’ Report” below in this annual report.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for the establishment and
development of the internal control and risk management
framework, as well as the regular review of the internal
control procedures and policies and risk management
practices of the Group. The Audit Committee is responsible
for advising on and overseeing the internal control and
risk management issues, and assuming an active role in
communicating the best practice in the aforesaid issues
to the Directors and senior management of the Group.
The senior management members are responsible for
the execution of internal control policies and procedures
as well as risk assessment practices implemented by
the Group. Amid the Group's set-up of its internal audit
department, the CFO and the joint company secretaries
of the Group are currently carrying out the internal audit
function and assisting the Board and senior management
to review, maintain and advise on the internal control and
risk management framework and the implementation of the
relevant policies, procedures and practices of the Group.

The Group's risk management practices are to manage the
risks that it internally and externally encounters. With the
assistance of the whistle blowing policies to be adhered to
by all staff, the Group's risks could be kept at a manageable
level.

During the Year, the Board or its representatives conducted
a regular walk-through examination on internal controls
and risk management throughout the Group, including
analysing the internal control and risk management system
as a whole, interviewing and discussing with managers on
issues in which their respective departments were involved,
assessing on the effectiveness of policies, procedures
and practices, and taking advices from the joint company
secretaries and CFO.

The Board also carry out a review of the enhanced internal
control policies and procedures as well as risk management
practices of the Group in accordance with paragraph C.2.1
of the CG Code annually, including financial, operational and
compliance controls as well as risk management functions
of the Group. During the Year, the Board reviewed the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control policies and
procedures as well as risk management practices, and
considered that they are adequate and effective.
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The Board, the Audit Committee, the Company’s senior
management will continue to review the relevant policies,
procedures and practices in order to maintain a high level of
corporate governance over the operation of the Group.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR AND AUDITOR’S
REMUNERATION

Zhonghui Anda CPA Limited was re-appointed as the
external auditor of the Company on 31 May 2019. During
the Year, the fees period to Zhonghui Anda CPA Limited in
respect of its annual audit services provided to the Group
was approximately HK$1.16 million.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the
Audit Committee on the selection and appointment of the
external auditor during the Year.

A summary of services provided by the external auditors for
the year ended 31 December 2019 and their corresponding
remuneration are as follows:

EXe BERZESNARARRERERSE
a HEARR BFLRERARARENZER
ek FHEEESG.
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Nature of service Amount

PR E +£5

HK$°000

FET

Audit service 1,157
ErT IR

Non-audit service 18

FEE RS
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The Company aims to, by virtue of its corporate governance
structure, enable all Shareholders an equal opportunity to
exercise their rights in an informed manner and allow them
to engage actively with the Company. Under the Articles
of Association, the shareholder communication policy and
other relevant internal procedures of the Company, the
Shareholders enjoy, among others, the following rights:

(i) Participation in general meetings

The general meetings of the Company provide an
opportunity for direct communication between the
Board and the Shareholders. The Company encourages
the participation of the shareholders through annual
general meetings and other general meetings where
the Shareholders meet and exchange views with the
Board, and to exercise their right to vote at meetings.
The Company shall arrange notices of meetings and
circulars containing details on proposed resolutions
to be sent to the shareholders no less than 45 days
before the meeting. At general meetings, separate
resolutions are proposed on each substantial issue,
including the election of individual Directors.

(ii) Enquiries and proposals to the Board

The Company encourages Shareholders to attend
Shareholders’ meetings and make proposals by
either directly raising questions on both operational
and governance matters to the Board and Board
Committees at the general meetings or providing
written notice of such proposals for the attention of
the Company secretary at the registered office of the
Company in the PRC currently at TENGY Industrial
Park, Paitou Town, Zhuji City, Zhejiang Province, The
PRC or the principal place of business in Hong Kong
at Room 1201, 12th Floor, Chung Ying Building, 20
Connaught Road West, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong.
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(iii) BARKERRAE

(iii) Convening extraordinary general meetings

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, the Board
shall convene an extraordinary general meeting
or class meeting as soon as possible where any
Shareholder holding, severally or jointly, 10% or more
of the Company’s issued shares carrying voting
rights requests in writing for the convening of an
extraordinary general meeting or class meeting. The
Shareholders holding, severally or jointly, 10% or more
of voting shares may request the Board to convene
an extraordinary general meeting or class meeting by
signing and submitting one or several written requests
with the same format and contents and specifying
the agenda of the meeting. An extraordinary general
meeting or class meeting shall be convened by the
Board as soon as practicable upon receipt of the
aforesaid written request. The aforesaid shareholding
shall be calculated on the basis of the date on which
the relevant Shareholders submit the written request.
If the Board fails to dispatch a notice of convening such
meeting within 30 days upon receipt of the aforesaid
written request, the shareholder who proposed to
convene the meeting is entitled to propose to the
Supervisory Committee to convene a meeting. If the
Supervisory Committee has not issued a notice of
the meeting within five (b) days after the passing of
the relevant resolution by the board of supervisors,
the Shareholders individually or jointly holding 10%
or more of the shares of the Company for more than
90 consecutive days may convene and hold such a
meeting by themselves. The procedures for convening
such meeting should follow those for convening a
general meeting or class meeting of Shareholders by
the Board to the greatest extent practicable.

RIBABERMAA EEBHAFFELAR
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REERIARN10% A ERIRER - AJUEE R
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Ko IREESEAHBRRE RS BRI
Ry THAgEMEE E5gx K3
AIEMERKEREECYENTHERARE
RE FERRRRE K BRI AR KE - Al
R ER AR IR HEMERE AatE -
IMEEESAWE AT ERZEKEIOKRNK
RAEBRLAREHERENBE BHZEX
MR BRERAEESRECH WRESS
EWEBBERAZERER (B) REEE
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All reasonable expenses incurred for the purpose
of convening and holding the aforesaid meeting by
Shareholders due to the failure of the Board to hold
such meeting in response to the aforesaid request
shall be borne by the Company. Such expenses shall
be deducted from the amounts due by the Company
to the Director(s) who have defaulted their duties.

(iv) Procedures for putting forward proposals at
a general meeting

In overseeing and monitoring the business operation
of the Company, the Shareholders have the right to
put forward proposals and raise inquiries. Shareholders
individually or together holding 3% or more of the
Company'’s voting Shares have the right to put up ad-
hoc proposals in writing to the Board ten days before
the holding of the general meeting, and the Board shall
notify other shareholders within two days after receipt
of the proposals and submit them to the general
meeting for consideration and approval.

The contents of the proposals to be raised shall be
within the scope of duties of the general meetings.
It shall have a clear topic and specific matters to be
resolved on, and shall be in compliance with relevant
requirements of the laws, administrative regulations
and the Articles of Association.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change in the Articles of Association during
the Year.

The Articles of Association are available on the respective
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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The Directors are pleased to present the annual report
together with the audited consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is a well-established integrated atmospheric
pollution control solution provider, with a primary focus
on particulate emission control by offering mega-size
precipitators to customers in various industries. During the
Year, the Group mainly offers three types of precipitators:
electrostatic precipitators, bag filter precipitators and
electrostatic-bag composite precipitators.

The principal activities and other particulars of the
Company's subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the Financial
Statements.

FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESULTS

The Group's financial position as at 31 December 2019 and
the Group's profit for the Year are set out in the section
headed “Financial Highlights” above in this annual report.

A discussion and analysis of the Group's performance during
the Year and the key factors affecting its financial position
and results are set out in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” above in this annual report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group's results, assets and liabilities for
the last five financial years is set out in the section headed
“Five-Year Financial Summary” below in this annual report.
This summary does not form part of the audited Financial
Statements.

DIVIDENDS

The Board does not recommend the payment of final
dividend for the Year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(I) Particulars of the transactions

Hereinbelow are a list of the connected transactions
entered into by the Company or members of the
Group with connected parties that continued upon
Listing and were disclosed in the prospectus dated
24 September 2015 prepared for the purpose of the
Listing (“Prospectus”) and circular of projection of
related party/connected transactions dated 15 April
2019 (“Circular”) with no further changes after
implementation except as provided herein otherwise.
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On 25 April 2015, the Company, as lessee, entered into a tenancy
agreement which renewed on 1 January 2018, the renewed
agreement ending on 31 December 2020 with TGL, as lessor
and the holding company of the Group, with respect to the office
premises with a gross floor area of approximately 2,700 sg.m.
situated at Xinle Village and Xinsheng Village, Paitou Town, Zhuji City,
Zhejiang Province, the PRC (“TGL Office Building"”) for use as office
building (“TGL Office Lease Agreement”). Reason for entering into
the TGL Office Lease Agreement was that the Company commenced
the use of the TGL Office Building four years ago mainly as its office,
and any relocation would cause unnecessary costs and disruption.
The annual rental payable by the Company under the TGL Office
Lease Agreement was determined on normal commercial terms
with reference to, and was reviewed by professional surveyors
and valuers independent of the Group to be fair, reasonable and
consistent with, the prevailing market rates of similar properties in
the locality. The Company would have the right to renew the lease
under the TGL Office Lease Agreement subject to compliance
with all applicable laws and regulations of the PRC as well as the
requirements under the Listing Rules. The lessor also granted the
Company an option to purchase the TGL Office Building subject
to the terms of the lease under the TGL Office Lease Agreement,
and such option is exercisable in whole or in part with respect to
such premises. The price of purchase, where applicable, of the TGL
Office Building shall be the higher of (i) the fair market value of the
relevant premises at the time of exercise of the option and (i) an
amount calculated by reference to the net book value of the relevant
premises at the time of commencement of the lease, the rental
amount, the leasing period as well as the Group's financing costs.
The amount of total rental payment to TGL for the Year is included
in note 34 to the Financial Statements. The Group expects the
total rental fees payable to TGL in 2018 under the TGL Office Lease
Agreement to be approximately RMB230,000.

RZZE—RFWNA-+HHB  ARa (1EAAFA) BALEEIER A G]
TGL (fEAEE A ) AL AR BT & 5 B 8 B SE T 44M N A
ARAMIBL2, 700 F KRB AETWE ([TGLI A KE | FTYEE
W BN - N\F—A—HEY BHNHABPHEE T _TF+=
A=+—HIb ERARERE ([TGLRAZEREWZE]) - 512 TGL
HAZHERZNERIS AR R NRUFRIFAFERTGLI AKE - £
DARERRE AMBBRBEETHEHOR A RERERHEH - AR
AINTGLRAZREHZ TENNFEERE NE—REEKERLL2E
EHEEYENENMEEE BUNAEENFEEIS AR LHE
MERESTGLHIAEHERE MHERNNFERSTRIZESER
FEEBEHEEHBEUDENERMEMRRM - ARREEETTGLHEA
EHERETHORLY AT BEEANPBIER AR LR
BIMRE-HHEAMEMARTRLEBETGLI A KNEREIERE
AXTGLPAEHEHE THHEERRTRER  mA QB B A gty
ITEEEH I HIRIEE - TGURAKRENEEE (EA)BAE TR
A ()VTHFEREER BEMES QT TENGZBEER IR
AMENEEFE He HEMAEEREMR AT EMETE - KAF
ERMERTGLY MMHERBEH NI IEREM T34 - NEBTEH =
E—N\FRETCLAAEHEMREMN FTGLNEEZRABLHAA
R #230,0007T °

For further details regarding the
TGL Office Lease Agreement,
please refer to the section headed
“Connected Transactions” in the
Prospectus.
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On 25 April 2015, the Company entered with TGL, the holding For further details regarding the
company of the Group, into a power supply agreement which TGL Power Supply Agreement,
renewed on 1 January 2018, the renewed agreement ending on please refer to the section headed
31 December 2020 ("“TGL Power Supply Agreement”), under “Connected Transactions” in the
which TGL would procure supply of electricity to the Company Prospectus.

in the premises on lease from TGL under the TGL Office Lease

Agreement and the TGL Industrial Lease Agreement in relation to

daily operation of the Company's office as well as the manufacturing

and processing of goods which include the outer casings of the

precipitators. Reason for entering into the subject agreement was

that the Company commenced the use of the premises under

the TGL Office Lease Agreement and the TGL Industrial Lease

Agreement four years ago, and such premises are owned by TGL

and accordingly the power supply services registered with the

relevant power enterprises are in the name of TGL. In light of the

foregoing circumstances, any procurement for alternate source of

power supply would cause unnecessary costs and disruption. Whilst

no additional costs would be charged by TGL, the amount payable

by the Company under the TGL Power Supply Agreement for the

provision of electricity supply was determined on with reference to

the fee scale implemented by the PRC Government. Payment would

be furnished to TGL on a cost basis on 25th day of each calendar

month in accordance with the actual amount of electricity consumed

by the Company of that particular month, and such consumption

amount should be confirmed by both parties to the TGL Power

Supply Agreement by jointly inspecting the readings on the relevant

meters on 5th day of each calendar month. The amount of total utility

payment to TGL for the Year is included in note 34 to the Financial

Statements. The Group expects the total utility fees payable to TGL

in 2018 under the TGL Power Supply Agreement to be capped at

approximately RMB5,000,000.
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On 25 April 2015, the Company, as purchaser, entered with Tianjie
General Machinery, as service provider and the wholly-owned
subsidiary of TGL, into a processing service agreement which
renewed on 1 January 2018, the renewed agreement ending on
31 December 2020 (“Processing Services Agreement”), under
which Tianjie General Machinery agreed to provide processing
services such as the processing of steel to the Group. Reason
for entering into the Processing Services Agreement was that
Tianjie General Machinery has been providing the Company with
processing services of consistent quality since January 2012 and
that Tianjie General Machinery is familiar with the Group's products
and requirements. Further, due to the geographical proximity
between Tianjie General Machinery and us, the transportation
costs are relatively low. In light of the foregoing circumstances,
the Directors considered it would be in the interests of the Group
to continue its relationship with Tianjie General Machinery on
sourcing of such processing services therefrom upon the Listing.
The amount payable by the Company under the Processing Services
Agreement would be ascertained through its regular contacts with
independent suppliers in order to keep itself abreast of the market
conditions and accordingly to ensure that its engagement with
Tianjie General Machinery for the supply of processing services
would be fair and reasonable as well as in line with prevailing
market practices. Furthermore, before placing any purchase order of
processing services, the Company would also obtain quotations from
comparable processing services that might be available from other
independent suppliers for the purpose of determining whether viable
alternatives of comparable quality could be obtained in a timely
manner and at the most competitive price. The amount of total
processing services payment to Tianjie General Machinery for the
Year is included in note 34 to the Financial Statements. The Group
expects the total service fees payable to Tianjie General Machinery
in 2018 under the Processing Services Agreement to be capped at
approximately RMB8,500,000.

R-ZZE—RAFNA-+EHAB ARa (tEAEH)ERATCLEEMER
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R 3 A M O Bl T B 4R BE_EBR 49 A A R 58,500,000

For further details regarding
the Processing Services
Agreement, please refer to the
section headed “Connected
Transactions” in the Prospectus.
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On 1 January 2019, the Company, as seller, entered with Zhejiang For further details regarding the
Yuyuan Machinery Technology Co., Limited, as purchaser and the Sales of Material Agreement,
wholly-owned subsidiary of TGL, into a Sales of Material Agreement please refer to the section
which renewed on 1 January 2019, the renewed agreement ending headed “Projection of related
on 31 December 2019 (“Sales of Material Agreement”), under party/connected transactions” in
which Zhejiang Yuyuan Machinery Technology Co., Limited agreed to  the Circular

purchase material such as the Mobile garage control box from the

Group. Reason for entering into the Sales of Material Agreement

was that Group has been providing Zhejiang Yuyuan Machinery

Technology Co., Limited with material of consistent quality since

January 2019 and that Zhejiang Yuyuan Machinery Technology Co.,

Limited is satisfied with the Group’s products and requirements.

Further, due to the geographical proximity between Zhejiang Yuyuan

Machinery Technology Co., Limited and us, the transportation costs

are relatively low. In light of the foregoing circumstances, the

Directors considered it would be in the interests of the Group to

continue its relationship with Zhejiang Yuyuan Machinery Technology

Co., Limited on sales of such material therefrom upon the Listing.

The amount receivable by the Company under the Sales of Material

Agreement would be ascertained through its regular contacts with

independent customer in order to keep itself abreast of the market

conditions and accordingly to ensure that its engagement with

Zhejiang Yuyuan Machinery Technology Co., Limited for the purchase

of material would be fair and reasonable as well as in line with

prevailing market practices. Furthermore, before placing any sales

order of material, the Company would also provide quotations to

comparable sales that might be available from other independent

customers for the purpose of determining whether viable

alternatives of comparable quality could be provided in a timely

manner and at the most competitive price. The amount of total sales

receivable from Zhejiang Yuyuan Machinery Technology Co., Limited

for the Year is included in note 34 to the Financial Statements. The

Group expects the total sales receivables from Zhejiang Yuyuan

Machinery Technology Co., Limited in 2019 under the Sales of

Material Agreement to be capped at approximately RMB500,000.
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() Confirmation opinion by independent
non-executive Directors on connected
transactions

()

66

The independent non-executive Directors (Note 1)
reviewed all connected transactions as mentioned
above and confirmed that:

(1)

Such transactions were conducted in the
ordinary course of business of the Company;

Such transactions were conducted on normal
commercial terms or, if transactions available
for comparison were insufficient to determine
whether the terms of such transactions are
normal commercial terms, from the perspective
of the Company, the terms of such transactions
were no less favourable than the terms offered
to or by independent third parties; and

Such transactions were conducted in accordance
with the terms of the agreements governing
relevant transactions, which terms were fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.

Note 1: All connected transactions have been confirmed by Mr.

Zhang Bing, Mr. Fung Kui Kei and Mr. Li Jianna.

Confirmation opinion from the Company’s
external auditor on connected transactions

Having reviewed the connected transactions disclosed
in this annual report, Zhonghui Anda CPA Limited
issued a letter to the Board to confirm nothing came
to their attention that caused them to believe such
connected transactions:

(1)

not having been approved by the Board,;

not having been carried out, in all material
respects, based on the pricing policy of the
Company (if the transaction involves provision of
goods or services by the Company);

not having been carried out, in all material
respects, in accordance with terms of
agreements governing the relevant transactions;
and

having exceeded the caps as disclosed in the
Prospectus.
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(IV) Related party/connected transactions in
note 32 to the audited financial statements

of the Company for the Year

Out of the list of the related party/connected
transactions set out in note 34 to the Financial
Statements, the following transactions constitute
connected transactions for the purpose of Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules under which the requirements
have been fully complied with. Details of the said

compliance are as follows:

(IV) AR B ARFEEER B RRME32
MRS BEXS

SRR ST H BB RER S
VEER THRZEAEMRAE A
ENRERS WEE2EETHEBRE %

BRI

Type of Agreement for

Whether or not
constituting connected
transaction or continuing

Whether or not in compliance with

connected the connected connected transaction Details of the connected the disclosure requirements under
Connected party  transaction transactions (connected relationship)  transaction Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
BERS REABRBERSBHE RAECHALTRAETTHAZ
HER kil BERS WS HERS (BERR) BERSZHE HERERE
TGL Lease TGL Office Lease  Continuing connected Lease of premises to the Yes
Agreement transaction (a Controlling Company for use as its office  (exempt from the circular and
Shareholder) building the independent Shareholders’

approval requirements but subject
to the reporting, annual review and
announcement requirements pursuant
to Rule 14A.76 (2)(a) of the Listing
Rules, having taken into account the
aggregated annual transaction amount
under the Zhejiang Qinuo Office Lease
Agreement, the TGL Office Lease
Agreement and the TGL Industrial
Lease Agreement in light of similarity
in their nature)

TGL HE TGLHAZEE  HEBRERS (R—EKRR FAFAENERERALE =

[iiE %) i3 (ERAMEEUMEETNITENA
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Whether or not
constituting connected

Type of Agreement for transaction or continuing Whether or not in compliance with
ted  the cc ted ted ti tion Details of the connected the disclosure requirements under
Connected party transaction transactions (connected relationship)  transaction Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
HERS REBREERZAFA RAERALTARAETOAR
BEAR kil BERZ NS BERS (BERR) BERSHF HEBHRE
TGL Supply of TGL Power Supply  Continuing connected Supply of electricity to the Yes
utilities Agreement transaction (a Controlling Company in the premises (being a continuing connected
Shareholder) on lease from TGL under the  transaction on buying of consumer
TGL Office Lease Agreement  services exempt from the reporting,
and the TGL Industrial Lease  annual review, announcement, circular
Agreement in relation to daily and the independent Shareholders'
operation of the Company's  approval requirements pursuant to
office as well as the Rule 14A.97 of the Listing Rules)
manufacturing and processing
of certain goods
TGL RENBEE TCLEHEHE HEBERS (R—ER  RARARBIGLHLZHEE =

Tianjie General
Machinery

KB R

Zhejiang Yuyuan
Machinery
Technology Co.,
Limited

HOT TR
ARRA

Provision of
services

RERS

Sales of
Material

HEMH

Processing
Services
Agreement

TR ek

Sales of Material
Agreement

MR EEBH

KER)

Continuing connected
transaction (a subsidiary of
a Controlling Shareholder)

RHEFERS (R—ER
BREMBAR)

Continuing connected
transaction (a subsidiary of
a Controlling Shareholder)

RERER S (B—HERK
ROMERR))

BERTGLIEREHER
TGLEABMMERMLEN - M
EADAPRAEAREENL
EERMIETERZSE

Provision of processing
services, such as the
processing of steel, to the
Group

MAKEREE TS NT
R

Sales of material, such as the
mobile garage control box
from the Group

HEMH IAKENBHE
EiEH 2

(RBBEHERBORENERS B
& EMRAIE14A 7R ER R H <P
B FERN D% BEHRBLRRL
ERE)

Yes

(exempt from the circular and

the independent Shareholders’
approval requirements but subject

to the reporting, annual review and
announcement requirements pursuant
to Rule 14A.76 (2)(a) of the Listing
Rules)

=

xE

(1B E 4 BE14A 7602 @) EEH
ST B R R T BAET
Bl FEEMRASHT)

Yes

(being continuing connected
transaction on selling of material
exempt from reporting. Annual review,
announcement, circular and the
independent Shareholders” approval
requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.76
(2)(a) of the Listing Rules).

=
E
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AR AIF14A.76(2) (@) FEF 28 57 &
B FERN 2% BERBLRRL
ERE)
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The registration of the transfer of Shares will be suspended
from Saturday, 30 May 2020 to Tuesday, 30 June 2020
(both days inclusive) in order to ascertain the Shareholders’
entitlement to the attendance in the annual general meeting
to be convened for the Year (“2019 AGM"). All Shareholders
who wish to attend the 2019 AGM must deliver their
properly completed H Shares transfer forms accompanied
by the relevant share certificates to the Registrar of H
Shares in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited,
Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong, no later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 29 May 2020, for
registration.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Year, the Group's sales to its five largest customers
and its largest customer accounted for 41.7% and 12.8%
(2018: 29.8% and 8.1%) of the Group's total sales,
respectively.

For the Year, the Group's purchases from its five largest
suppliers and its largest supplier accounted for 28.5% and
10.1% (2018: 23.6% and 8.0%) of the Group's total cost of
sales, respectively.

During the Year, none of the Directors, their close associates
nor the Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge
and belief of the Directors, owned more than 5% of the
Company’s issued capital) had any interest in any of the
Group's five largest customers and suppliers.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, AND
CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
and construction in progress during the Year are set out in
notes 16 to the Financial Statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Group
during the Year are set out in note 29 to the Financial
Statements.

RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE
RESERVES

Details of movement in the reserves of the Group during the
Year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on page 93 of this annual report.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group's reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions
of PRC Company Law (B QX &%), amounted to
approximately RMB331.8 million.

BANK LOANS

Details of bank loans of the Group as at 31 December 2019
are set out in note 27 to the Financial Statements.

RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE THE COMPANY'’S
SECURITIES

At no time during the Year was the Company, or any of
its holding companies or subsidiaries, or any of its fellow
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors, Supervisors or chief executive of the Company
or their respective associates or close associates (as
respectively defined under the Listing Rules) to have any
right to subscribe for securities of the Company or any of
its associated corporations as defined in the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
("SFO") or to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of
Shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.
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DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The Directors and the Supervisors being in office during the
Year and up to the date of this annual report were as
follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Bian Yu (Chairman)
Mr. Bian Weican
Ms. Bian Shu

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Bian Jianguang
Mr. Zhu Xianbo (appointed on 31 May 2019)

Mr. Chen Jiancheng
Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Li Jiannan
Mr. Fung Kui Kei
Mr. Zhang Bing

Supervisors

Mpr. Chen Xinhua (Chairman)
Mr. Fu Jun
Mr. Fang Zhiguo

BOARD OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of each of the Directors, the Supervisors
and senior management members of the Company are
set out in the section headed “Biographies of Directors,
Supervisors and Senior Management” above in this annual
report.
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CONFIRMATION ON INDEPENDENCE
OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation on independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, and the Company
considers all independent non-executive Directors are
independent pursuant to the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’
SERVICE CONTRACTS AND LETTER OF
APPOINTMENTS

Each of the executive Directors and non-executive Directors
entered into a service contract with the Company on the
respective appointment date.

Mr. Fung Kui Kei and Mr. Li Jiannan respectively entered
into a service contract with the Company on 30 March 2018
and 18 September 2018.The principal particulars of these
service contracts and letters of appointment are (a) for a
term commencing from the respective effective dates of
their appointment until the day on which the next general
meeting of the Shareholders for re-election of Directors is
held; and (b) are subject to termination in accordance with
their respective terms.

As required under the Opinions on Further Promotion
of Standardising Operations and Intensifying Reform of
Overseas Listed Companies (Guojingmaogai No. [1999]230),
the Supervisory Committee shall be with external
Supervisors comprising more than half of its composition,
among whom Mr. Fu Jun and Mr. Fang Zhiguo are
independent.

None of the Directors and the Supervisors had entered
into a service contract with the Company or its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’
INTERESTS IN CONTRACT, TRANSACTION
OR ARRANGEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

None of the Directors and the Supervisors or an entity
connected with the Directors and the Supervisors had a
material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract,
transaction or arrangement of significance to the business of
the Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party during or subsisted at the end of the Year.

Save as the related party/connected/continuing connected
transactions disclosed herein, no contracts of significance
(including those in relation to provision of services) between
members of the Group and the controlling shareholder of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries subsisted at the end
of the Year or at any time during the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the Year.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee were set up for, among others, reviewing and
making recommendations on remuneration policy and
scheme for directors, supervisors, senior management and
employees, taking into account salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the
Directors and performance of the Group.

The Company has not adopted any share award scheme or
share option scheme.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND FIVE HIGHEST-PAID
INDIVIDUALS

Details of the remuneration of the Directors, the Supervisors
and five highest-paid individuals are set out in notes 13 to
the Financial Statements, under which the bonuses paid
to or otherwise receivable by the relevant individuals form
part of the item “Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind".
During the Year, no amounts were paid to or received by
any of the relevant individuals (i) as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Company and (ii) as compensation for
loss of any office in connection with the management of the
affairs of any member of the Group.

PENSION SCHEMES

Particulars of the pension schemes of the Group are set out
in note 13 to the Financial Statements.

CHANGES TO INFORMATION IN RESPECT
OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Biographies of
Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management” above in
this annual report, there were no changes during the Year
to any information required to be disclosed by the Directors
and the Supervisors pursuant to paragraph (a) to (e) and (g)
of Rule 13.51 (2) of the Listing Rules.
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Directors’ and chief executive’'s interest and/or
short position in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions
of each of the directors and chief executive of the Company
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and any of its associated corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO")), as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
("Stock Exchange"”) pursuant to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing
Rules”) were as follows:

7. Long position in respect of domestic shares of the
Company (“Domestic Shares”) as at 31 December

EERERITHRAER

AQARIRAA - A
BARORESHESER AR

RZFB-NFT_A=1T—"H ARFAZTEER
BRTBAERAAT REEMEEEE (E&
REFMRPEED (EREIENE) ([EF
REE A |) EXVED) BB - BB R (B 55
REAREN AR RRIERE SN E G 5352
REVREFENE MO ER AR HERE
ERBMARGMERAR ([BRAF])ES LT
AN (T EWRA) S178MA R A 5B R
R IMORRIT

. RZFE-NFL+ZA=+—HRAXRAA
ER([AER])FERIHE

2019:

Approximate % Approximate %
Capacity/ Number of of total issued of Company’s
Name of Director Nature of interest Domestic Shares Domestic Shares share capital
HEE#T AR
REREHH R
304 5t/ ERME nERHA BRE D (%) BRE 2 (%)
Mr. Bian Yu Beneficial owner 13,266,032 13.27 9.83

BFEE EREEA
Interest in a controlled 46,169,147 46.17 34.20

corporation (Note 1)
R B ER (HiE1)

Mr. Bian Jianguang Beneficial owner 6,843,000 6.84 5.07

BRAKE EREEA
Interest in a controlled 46,169,147 46.17 34.20

corporation (Note 1)
REEE RS (fiE1)
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Approximate %

Approximate %

Capacity/ Number of of total issued of Company’s
Name of Director Nature of interest Domestic Shares Domestic Shares share capital
BT EARATR
RERBHH R K
EEfE 513/ RmHE RNEREE BAE 2L (%) BB 2L (%)
Mr. Bian Weican Beneficial owner 1,851,000 1.85 137
BERRE ExEBA
Ms. Bian Shu Beneficial owner 3,933,000 3.93 2.91
Bt ExEBA
Interest in a controlled 46,169,147 46.17 34.20
corporation (Note 1)
REEEER (A1)
Mr. Chen Jiancheng Beneficial owner 1,851,000 1.85 1.37
BREH L L ExEBA
Notes: Bt
1. According to the disclosure of interest filings, these 46,169,147 1. BEMBEENREFEEN AR2RNZSE

domestic shares in the Company are beneficially owned by
TGL which is in turn approximately 64.08% owned by Mr. Bian
Yu, approximately 22.81% owned by Mr. Bian Jianguang and
approximately 13.11% owned by Ms. Bian Shu. Pursuant to
Part XV of the SFO, Mr. Bian Yu, Mr. Bian Jianguang and Ms.
Bian Shu are deemed to be interested in TGL's interest in the
Company.

46,169,147 N E W ATGLE m A - M TGL
Al FREBF AR #64.08%MIER  HBEN
S EA 2281 %M Em RBEBKZTHAL
13.11 % B 25 o IRIRFE FH KA B EHIEXVED - 8
FhA BENXEERBRIZIWEARTGLAT
BFRAARER TR EEELR-
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Substantial shareholders’ interests and/or short
position in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company

According to the register of substantial shareholders (not
being a director or chief executive of the Company) required
to be kept under section 336 of Part XV of the SFO shows
that as at 31 December 2019, the Company had been
notified of the following substantial shareholders’ interests
and short positions. These interests are in addition to
those disclosed above in respect of the directors and chief
executive of the Company.

7. Long position in respect of Domestic Shares as at 31

FTERRRAQTNRG RAEAER D HE
wRRKA

IR 5 55 T B0 ) S XV D 336 4R KE 77 2
TERR (EHAANEELBRTRAR) S
MERE R_F—AF+=A=+—0 &2
RV AT 51 E BARR A2 ROA R o Ut SRS
TEEN L BBOAATEERBRTEABL

. R-ZFE-NFL+ZA=1+—HRAZR

December 2019: BHIZFE -
Approximate %  Approximate %
Capacity/ Number of of total issued of Company'’s
Name Nature of interest Domestic Shares Domestic Shares share capital
HERT RN
RERAHMN R
A8/ HA 5/ RRtE nEKREAR BREDL(%)  BHED(%)
TGL (Note 1) Beneficial owner 46,169,147 46.17 34.20
TGL (#t1) ERERA
Ms. Bao Guo (Note 2) Family interest of spouse 59,435,179 59.44 44.03
R+ (H7t2) BN RkER
Ms. Xu You (Note 3) Family interest of spouse 53,012,147 53.01 39.27
wahm+ (H723) RBHRkER
Mr. Zhang Yuan Yuan (Note 4)  Family interest of spouse 50,102,147 50.10 371N
BERESE (Wit4) RBHRkER
ZRIBLFETBREEEZE)  Beneficial owner 5,727.200 5.73 4.24
BRERBEREE EREAA
(ARAR)
MMhBREABLE Beneficial owner 5,318,200 5.32 3.94

(BR&%)

ESRAA
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Notes:

Long

TGL is directly interested in approximately 34.20% in the
Company.

Ms. Bao Guo, the spouse of Mr. Bian Yu, is deemed to be
interested in Mr. Bian Yu's interests in the Company by virtue
of the SFO.

Ms. Xu You, the spouse of Mr. Bian Jianguang, is deemed to be
interested in Mr. Bian Jianguang's interests in the Company by
virtue of the SFO.

Mr. Zhang Yuan Yuan, the spouse of Ms. Bian Shu, is deemed

to be interested in Ms. Bian Shu's interests in the Company by
virtue of the SFO.

position in respect of H Shares of the Company

(“"H Shares”) as at 31 December 2019:

At -

TGLE#E A AR A434.20% KIS

RIEEZFRPEGD @B LtE CaFE
EREE) HERRETREMFHAR
AT A

RIBEZRAE GRS Rt Ca@k
SEAERECAS) R AR BRI EE IR
KRR S M-

BEES RSN SERELE R
L MR BARAHIB IR K L A
NGRS S

2. R-IE—NF+-A=4+—HRER

AIHAR ([HER ) 15 B HI4F & -

Approximate %

Approximate %

Capacity/ Number of of total issued of Company'’s
Name Nature of interest H Shares H Shares share capital
HERT R N
HR B Z R A H
A8/ KA 5/ RRtE HR & B BREDL(%)  BHEI(%)
Shou Erjun Beneficial owner 6,000,000 1714 4.44
1 b2 EREAA
Hong Kong Joint Financial Beneficial owner 5,504,400 15.73 4.08
Investment Ltd ERBEBA
Zhao Kaiyuan (Note 5) Interest in a controlled 5,504,400 15.73 4.08
corporation
R (H725) XEHEE RS
Notes: Kaz -
5. Mr. Zhao Kaiyuan, the controlling shareholder of Hong Kong 5. i F9R %% £ BHong Kong Joint Financial

Joint Financial Investment Ltd, is deemed to be interested in
Hong Kong Joint Financial Investment Ltd's interests in the
Company by virtue of the SFO.

Investment LtdfZ % iR - RIEF H K H
EEB) - R E R AR Hong Kong
Joint Financial Investment Ltdffi&# 7z
AR PR R -
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Purchase, sale or redemption of listed securities

From the date of listing of the shares of the Company in
the Stock Exchange up to 31 December 2019, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company'’s listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles of Association or the PRC Company Law, which
would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro rata
basis to the existing Shareholders.

Audit Committee

The Group's audit committee (“Audit Committee”) has
reviewed with the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group, and discussed with the management
the internal control and financial reporting matters. The Audit
Committee also reviewed and confirmed the unaudited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year.
The relevant financial information are prepared under the
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

Events after the reporting period

On 1 April 2020, the Company entered into a Processing
Services Agreement with Zhejiang Tianjie New Material
Co., Ltd.* (I REFH MK BR A F) ("Tianjie New
Material”) for a term of three years. Pursuant to the
Processing Services Agreement, Tianjie New Material
agreed to provide processing services of rock wool to the
Company. The annual cap for the service fees under the
Processing Services Agreement will not exceed RMBS3
million throughout the term of the agreement.

Tengy Group Limited, also known as Tianjie Group Co., Ltd.*
(REZ2EEARLF) (“TGL") is the controlling shareholder
of the Company. Tianjie New Material is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of TGL. Therefore, Tianjie New Material is a
connected person of the Company under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. The transactions contemplated under
the Processing Services Agreement constitute continuing
connected transactions of the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules, but are exempt from the circular
(including independent financial advice) and Shareholders’
approval requirements as required under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. For details, please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated 1 April 2020.
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Major customers and suppliers

The information in respect of the Group's sales and
purchases attributable to the major customers and suppliers
respectively during the year ended 31 December 2019 is as
follows:

TEREFRHER

FREREEFPRHEANBE_T—NF+=A
i;—ﬁtif‘i DRIBIEARBHEE REXENA
B

Percentage of the Group's
total revenue

mAEEAKET 2
2019 2018
—E-hE — N\
The largest customer SONCYS 12.7% 8.0%
Five largest customers in aggregate AREFEAH 41.5% 29.5%

Percentage of the Group’s
total purchase

HAEEARER L
2019 2018
—Z-hE —E-)\F
The largest supplier AR ER 10.0% 10.6%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate AAREEEEH 23.2% 28.2%

So far as the Directors are aware, the Directors, their close
associates or any shareholder of the Company (which to
the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the
Company'’s total number of issued shares) do not have any
interest in these major customers and suppliers during the
year.

Distributable reserves

As at 31 December 2019, the Company had the following
reserves available for distribution, calculated in accordance
with the provisions of the PRC Company Law:

RMB331.8 million
Sufficiency of public float

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at
the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual
report, the Company maintained a sufficient public float as
required under the Listing Rules.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors or controlling shareholders of the
Company and their respective close associates (as defined
in the Listing Rules) has any interest in a business which
competed or might compete with the business of the Group
or has any other conflict of interest with the Group during
the Year.
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COMPLIANCE WITH NON-COMPETE
UNDERTAKING

Each of Mr. Bian, Mr. Bian Jianguang and Ms. Bian Shu (the
Controlling Shareholders) has confirmed to the Company
that he/she has complied with the non-compete undertaking
given by them to the Company on 20 October 2014. The
independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
status of compliance and enforcement of the non-compete
undertaking and confirmed that all the undertakings
thereunder have been complied with for the Year.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

For the Year, the Company complied with all code provisions
as set out in the CG Code.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION OF
HOLDERS OF LISTED SECURITIES

The Company is not aware of any tax relief or exemption
available to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of
the Company's securities.

SIGNIFICANT LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

For the Year, the Company was not engaged in any litigation
or arbitration of material importance and no litigation or
claim of material importance is known to the Directors to be
pending or threatened against the Company.

AUDITOR

The Financial Statements have been audited by Zhonghui
Anda CPA Limited, who shall retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-
appointment of Zhonghui Anda CPA Limited as auditor of
the Group is to be proposed at the 2019 AGM.

By order of the Board

Bian Yu
Chairman

Zhuji City, Zhejiang Province, the PRC, 15 April 2020
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In 2016, the current session of the Supervisory Committee
was established in accordance with the PRC Company Law
and resolutions of general meetings. The current session of
the Supervisory Committee comprises three Supervisors,
namely Mr. Chen Xinhua, Mr. Fu Jun and Mr. Fang Zhiguo.

In the Year, for the Company’s long term interests and
Shareholders’ interests, the Supervisory Committee
acted in strict compliance with relevant laws, regulations,
rules, regulatory documents, the Articles of Association
and Listing Rules and earnestly performed their duties
of supervision as to the acts of the Directors and senior
management of the Company. The main area of work of the
Supervisory Committee in 2019 is summarised as follows:

. MEETING CONDUCTED BY THE
SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

The Supervisory Committee convened two meetings
in the Year.

. WORK OF THE SUPERVISORY
COMMITTEE

The work of the first session of the Supervisory
Committee mainly comprised the followings:

1. Inspection over implementation of
resolutions of the general meetings

The Supervisory Committee exercised
supervision over and inspection of the
implementation of the resolutions in general
meetings by the Board and the senior
management through observation and
attendance at the Board meetings and general
meetings. The Supervisory Committee is
of the opinion that the Directors and senior
management of the Company have diligently
performed their duties in compliance with
resolutions of the general meetings. No
violation of any laws or regulations or Articles
of Association or any act which jeopardises the
interests of the Company or Shareholders has
been found in the performance of the Company’s
Directors and senior management.
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Inspection over legal compliance of the
Group’s operations

The Supervisory Committee exercised
supervision on a regular basis over the legal
compliance and rationality of the Group' s
operation and management in its ordinary
work. It has also exercised supervision over
work performance of the Board and senior
management. The Supervisory Committee is
of the opinion that the Group’s operation is
sound and rational, and is in compliance with
all applicable laws, regulations and rules and
the Articles of Association. The members of the
Board and senior management of the Group have
conscientiously and diligently performed their
duties, and none of their act would prejudice the
interests of the Group or the Shareholders.

Inspection over the Group’s daily
operating activities

The Supervisory Committee exercised
supervision over the Group’s operating activities.
The Supervisory Committee is of the opinion
that the Group has maintained a sound internal
control system and made a great progress in the
formulation and implementation of its internal
work procedures, thus effectively controlled its
exposure to various operating risks. The Group's
operation is in compliance with the PRC laws and
regulations and the Articles of Association.
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Inspection over the Group’s financial
condition

The Supervisory Committee reviewed the
Financial Statements, supervised and inspected
the Group’s implementation of relevant financial
policies and legislations as well as details
on the Group’'s assets, financial income and
expenditure. The Supervisory Committee is of
the opinion that the Financial Statements fairly
reflected the Group’s financial position and
operating results.

Looking forward, the Supervisory Committee
will continue to carry out its duties in strict
compliance with the Articles of Association and
the relevant laws and regulations and protect the
interests of the Shareholders.

Chen Xinhua
Chairman of the Supervisory Committee

Zhuji City, Zhejiang Province, the PRC, 15 April 2020

84

BERKEHFHARR

EFSCERUBHRE BEERRE
AEBEBNTHENBRR AR
BRAR AR B E E K B WS 1 =%
AR - BZERE MBEHRERTF
2 BR N 5 [E] 9 B S AR e A AR

RERNK HEESHEBRRIZRA
BERMRMABREZERER BT
HBTS - MU RS

EFETE
PR 7 5

REIEFEEN — T _ZFFMA
+HHA

Zhejiang Tengy Environmental Technology Co., Ltd  #i 1. K % BRBERH B0 15 LA 7]



Independent Auditor’s Report
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ZHONGHUI

To the shareholders of Zhejiang Tengy Environmental
Technology Co., Ltd

(A joint stock company incorporated in the People’s Republic
of China with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Zhejiang Tengy Environmental Technology Co., Ltd (the
Company) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the Group) set out on pages 90 to 159, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2019, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2019, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (HKFRSs) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the HKICPA)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (HKSAs) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

(i) Inventories
Refer to Note 20 to the consolidated financial statements

The Group tested the amount of inventory for
impairment. This impairment test is significant
to our audit because the balance of inventory of
RMB325,135,000 as at 31 December 2019 is material
to the consolidated financial statements. In addition,
the Group's impairment test involves application of
judgement and is based on estimates.

Our audit procedures included, among others:

Assessing the Group's procedures on ordering
and holding of inventory;

- Evaluating the Group's impairment assessment;
- Assessing the marketability of the inventory;

- Assessing the budget cost of inventory;

- Assessing the ageing of the inventory;

- Assessing the net realisable values of the
inventory; and

- Checking subsequent sales and usage of the
inventory.

We consider that the Group's impairment test for
inventory is supported by the available evidence.
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(ii)

Trade and bills receivables

Refer to Note 21 to the consolidated financial
statements

The Group tested the amount of trade and bills
receivables for impairment. This impairment test
is significant to our audit because the balance of
trade and bills receivables of RMB800,542,000 as at
31 December 2019 is material to the consolidated
financial statements. In addition, the Group's
impairment test involves application of judgement and
is based on estimates.

Our audit procedures included, among others:

- Assessing the Group’s procedures on granting
credit limits and credit periods to customers;

- Assessing the Group's relationship and
transaction history with the customers;

- Evaluating the Group's impairment assessment;
- Assessing ageing of the debts;
- Assessing creditworthiness of the customers;

- Checking subsequent settlements from the
customers; and

- Assessing the disclosure of the Group's
exposure to credit risk in the consolidated
financial statements.

We consider that the Group's impairment test for
trade and bills receivables is supported by the available
evidence.

(ii)
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company (the Directors) are responsible
for the other information. The other information comprises
all the information in the Company’s annual report, but does
not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon. The other information is expected
to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s
report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we will not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the Directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
Directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Hib & #

BERAES([E2%]) AHEMBENAE -HME
HERE BEARFHRANMEER BETEELR
EUBHRRRBEENRUEN RS - LM ERTAH
RAZBENRE R RRERTES-

=Ry

EEHRAVBRERNERL NREEMER
BEENTERUBEREMTANETER -

RESEAGAMBREAME EENEETAE
RS EXABERIME M ER S HELMER X
HiBiRT ZREMEHNES BGEMBHREK
RESZHEBEHERTHTENENFEEAEE
HUFEFEEAHERRANBER

EERGEVBRBRAXKENEE

EFARARBELGHRSRMONET BN
BEEAREEARRPINBEERERUEER
RINFEETBHRER REBEETR AL ENK
FNEES AEARENGEEWBRR TR
EAAT B O R RE X 88 R T B B Y B K S5 AR R At

ERESAMBHRRE EFRAMNE E5H
FABKEMREN  WHEBERERL T HEREFEL
LERNFR URERAFELERSTER
BRIEFEAEL EEEBRIEFLELE F5
BHEMEROERTR-

88§ Zhejiang Tengy Environmental Technology Co., Ltd  #i 1. K % BRBERH B0 15 LA 7]



Independent Auditor’s Report

¥ 1A S i

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’'s report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit
of the consolidated financial statements is located at the
HKICPA's website at:

http://www.hkicpa.org.hk/en/standards-and-regulations/
standards/auditing-assurance/auditre/

This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Fong Tak Ching

Audit Engagement Director
Practising Certificate Number P06353
Hong Kong, 15 April 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

EoF—NEF A=t —ALFE

2019 2018
—B-NF —E-N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B ek AR¥T R ARBTF T
Revenue Wz 7 726,647 858,817
Cost of sales $H & P AR (601,333) (717577)
Gross profit EH 125,314 141,240
Other income HAn g A 8 11,333 3,726
Distribution and selling expenses SIERHERX (20,922) (20,690)
Administrative expenses TBRAEZ (63,455) (71,580)
Other expenses Hmk (247) (10)
Finance costs BE KA 10 (6,909) (6,278)
Profit before tax i A 5 Al 45,114 46,408
Income tax PR % 11 (10,825) (15,172)
Profit and total comprehensive EAREEAELER
income for the year attributable to &F| R ZEU A%
owners of the Company 12 34,289 31,236
Earnings per share BREF 15
Basic and diluted (RMB per share) HARR B (F5]
AR#) 0.25 0.23
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

At 31 December 2019

_R=FE—NF+=—HA=+—H

At At At
31 December 31 December 1 January
2019 2018 2018
R=Z-h& | RZZ-N\F
+=A +=ZR RIZ-N\F
Er=Ig =1=F —R—H
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
{3 ARETR ARETTT ARETT
(Restated) (Restated)
(RE7) €27
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment WE - HE NRE 16 77,495 81,629 86,906
Right-of-use assets FREEE 17 43,020 45,001 46,982
Intangible assets BREE 18 65 193 389
Deferred tax assets ERERIEEE 28 40,147 33,887 25,479
Deposit paid for intangible asset ENEFEELRS 1,292 1,292 -
Pledged deposits BEAFR 24 4,255 1,871 3,577
166,274 163,873 163,333
Current assets REEE
Inventories BE 20 325,135 324,280 470,939
Trade and bills receivables EHRWFENEREE 21 800,542 653,581 619,345
Contract assets & cost ERBERKK 22 200,005 261,028 193,201
Prepayment, deposits and other BRFE ZEER
receivables Hfth e 5038 23 25,558 45,771 44,544
Investments at fair value through BOTEFABENRE
profit or loss 19 1,077 - -
Tax receivable JE U Fi 18 - = 14,323
Pledged deposits EERER 24 40,782 39,323 86,169
Bank and cash balances RITNBE & Ea 24 39,307 16,432 47706
1,432,406 1,340,415 1,476,227
Current liabilities nBAE
Trade and bills payables BORMNTIERENRE 25 366,417 363,337 419,709
Contract liabilities ERABE 22 233,103 202,284 310,482
Other payables and accruals HA N B RET &R 26 106,944 108,185 109,379
Bank loans RITER 27 126,207 109,000 110,000
Tax payable FEf IR 10,494 256 =
843,165 783,062 949,570
Net current assets RBEEFE 589,241 557353 526,657
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B WA R LR
At 31 December 2019
RZFE-NFF+=A=+—H

At At At
31 December 31 December 1 January
2019 2018 2018

R-ZB-RE | RZE-N\F
+=A +=-8 RIZ-N\F
Er=F =1=F —H—H
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BizE ARET R ARETTT ARETTT
(Restated) (Restated)
(/m&E5) (mE7)
Total assets less current liabilites BEAERADAE 755,515 721,226 689,990
NET ASSETS EEFE 755,515 721,226 689,990

Capital and reserves EXR G

Share capital [y 29 135,000 135,000 135,000
Share premium BinaE 239,064 239,064 239,064
Reserves i 30 (a) 381,451 347162 315,926
TOTAL EQUITY BRAE 755,515 721,226 639,990

The consolidated financial statements on pages 90 to 159
were approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 15 April 2020 and are signed on its behalf by:

Bian Yu

=

BT

92
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“EHENATAREEESMERIRENE X
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Bian Weican

BREE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE—E—NFF+_A=1+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

. UNGE 2PN L
Statutory Safety
Share Share surplus  production Retained

capital premium reserve reserve profits Total

EE  RREE
BRE  ROEE BHEE mE REOEA wE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETE ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETRH
At 1 January 2018 RZZ-NE—-F—8 135,000 239,064 35,366 6,006 274,554 689,990
Total comprehensive income for the year FREERALE - - - - 31,236 31,236
Appropriation to statutory surplus reserve BT RHBERE - - 3,172 - (3,172) -
Appropriation to safety production reserve HEEZR2EERE - - - 855 (855) -
At 31 December 2018 RZZE-N\E+=ZA=+—-H 135,000 239,064 38,538 6,861 301,763 721,226
At 1 January 2019 RZZ-NE—-F—H 135,000 239,064 38,538 6,861 301,763 721,226
Total comprehensive income for the year FRE2EAMALE - - - - 34,289 34,289
Appropriation to statutory surplus reserve ez RHEE - - 3815 - (3,815) -
Appropriation to safety production reserve HRER2EERE - - - 39 (395) =
At 31 December 2019 RZE-AE+ZA=+—H 135,000 239,064 42,353 7256 331,842 755,515
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE—F-hFE+=A=+—HILFE

2019 2018
—B-NF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBTF T
Cash flows from operating activities RETHRESRE
Profit before tax 754 Al v A 45,114 46,408
Adjustments for: BLLA TN B I 2
Finance costs A& A 6,909 6,278
Interest income FIE WA (713) (1,197)
Foreign exchange difference, net SNEE Z= FEF FR (285) (258)
Depreciation on property, Y- BEREREITE
plant and equipment 5,224 6,756
Amortisation of intangible assets EREEEH 128 196
Depreciation on right-of-use assets FREEERE 1,981 1,981
Changes in investments at fair value EATEGFAERERN
through profit or loss wEE 78 =
Impairment loss on trade receivables 5 RN IEREEE 18,803 30,590
(Reversal of)/impairment loss on FEU =A% (#8m)
bills receivables REEE (2,345) 4,673
Impairment loss on other receivables H b W IR (E BT 18 403 159
Operating cash flows before working EEECEFINLE
capital changes RenE 75,297 95,486
Change in inventories GFE# (855) 146,659
Change in trade and bills receivable Z 5 FE YR IE K I
TR E ) (163,419) (69,399)
Change in prepayment, deposits and TEBRRIE He REM
other receivables FE Y 5K E 19,810 (1,386)
Change in trade and bills payables B SR FERERS
E3t4 40 3,080 (56,372)
Change in contract assets HREEZD 61,023 (67,827)
Change in contract liabilities HRBEE 30,819 (108,198)
Change in other payables and accruals HAth FE A SR8 R BT
ERED (1,241) (1,194)
Cash generated from/(used in) operations  #& & EEFTEE
(FrA)RE 24,514 (62,231)
Interest received B U F B 713 1,197
Interest paid SRS (6,909) (6,278)
Tax paid SRR (6,847) (9,001)
Net cash generated from/(used in) RESEETES,
operating activities (FTR)BE&FE 11,471 (76,313)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

22 AP =N
HOBESHHE
For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE—E—NFF+_A=1+—HIFE

2019 2018
—E-NF —Z-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Cash flows from investing activities REZHEESHKE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (& E Y12  B=E M % B (1,100) (1,479)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE BB K&E
plant and equipment FT1S 308 10 -
Deposit paid for intangible asset ENEFEERS - (1,292)
Change in pledged deposits BEBTRE (3,843) 48,552
Net cash (used in)/generated from BEEE (FTA)/
investing activities FMEXRSFE (4,933) 45,781
Cash flows from financing activities AMEIBHRERE
New short-term bank loans raised IR HRITE R 276,140 185,200
Repayment of bank loans EEIRITER (260,088) (186,200)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BMETBFREE
financing activities (FTR)BR&FE 16,052 (1,000)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and ReERBESEEYEM
cash equivalents (D) #88 22,590 (31,5632)
Cash and cash equivalents at FYReRREEEY
beginning of year 16,432 47706
Effect of foreign exchange rate MR BB BF R
changes, net 285 258
Cash and cash equivalents FERASRBESEEY
at end of year 39,307 16,432
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents BERBEEEBEYWIF
Bank and cash balances RIT RN R 39,307 16,432
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE - NEFE+_H="+—HIFE

96

GENERAL INFORMATION

Zhejiang Tengy Environmental Technology Co., Ltd
(the” Company”) was incorporated in the People's
Republic of China (the” PRC”) as a joint stock
company with limited liability. The address of its
registered office is TENGY Industrial Park, Paitou
Town, Zhuji City, Zhejiang Province, PRC. The
Company'’s shares are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”) were principally engaged in design,
development, manufacturing, installation and sale of
environmental pollution prevention equipment and
electronic products. The principal activities of the
Company'’s subsidiaries are set out in note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company (the
" Directors”), Tengy Group Limited, a company
incorporated in the PRC, is the holding company.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new
and revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the "HKICPA")
that are relevant to its operations and effective for
its accounting year beginning on 1 January 2019.
HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRS"); Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKAS"); and Interpretations. The adoption
of these new and revised HKFRSs did not result in
significant changes to the Group's accounting policies,
presentation of the Group's financial statements and
amounts reported for the current year and prior years
except as stated below.
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2.

F-NFT-A=F—HIFE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (“HKFRS 16”)

On adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group recognised right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities in relation to leases
which had previously been classified as "“operating
leases” under HKAS 17 “Leases”.

HKFRS 16 has been applied retrospectively and
resulted in changes in the consolidated amounts
reported in the financial statements as follows:
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31 December 1 January
2018 2018
= — N\F
+=A T —\F
=t+—H —H—H
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT
Assets BE
Increase in right-of-use assets FREEELN 45,001 46,982
Decrease in prepaid land lease TR T H 18 & SRR
payments (45,001) (46,982)

The Group has not applied the new HKFRSs that have
been issued but are not yet effective. The application
of these new HKFRSs will not have material impact on
the financial statements of the Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs, issued by the
HKICPA and the applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the investments at fair value through profit
or loss and derivative instruments which are carried at
their fair values/fair values less costs to sell.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of
key assumptions and estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgments in the process
of applying the accounting policies. The areas involving
critical judgments and areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to these consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The significant accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 31 December. Subsidiaries are
entities over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. The Group has power over an
entity when the Group has existing rights that give it
the current ability to direct the relevant activities, i.e.
activities that significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its
potential voting rights as well as potential voting rights
held by other parties, to determine whether it has
control. A potential voting right is considered only if
the holder has the practical ability to exercise that
right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date the control ceases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Consolidation (Continued)

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that
results in a loss of control represents the difference
between (i) the fair value of the consideration of the
sale plus the fair value of any investment retained in
that subsidiary and (i) the Company’s share of the net
assets of that subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill
relating to that subsidiary and any related accumulated
foreign currency translation reserve.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised
profits are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Foreign currency translation
(a)  Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’'s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Renminbi, which
is the Company's functional and presentation
currency.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b)

Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated
into the functional currency on initial recognition
using the exchange rates prevailing on the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
in foreign currencies are translated at the
exchange rates at the end of each reporting
period. Gains and losses resulting from this
translation policy are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
values in foreign currencies are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates when the fair
values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in other comprehensive income,
any exchange component of that gain or loss
is recognised in other comprehensive income.
When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in profit or loss, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different
from the Company's presentation currency are
translated into the Company's presentation
currency as follows:

- Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated
at the closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position;

= Income and expenses are translated
at average exchange rates (unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which
case income and expenses are translated
at the exchange rates on the transaction
dates); and

- All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in the foreign currency
translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment in
foreign entities and of borrowings are recognised
in the foreign currency translation reserve.
When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are recognised in consolidated profit
or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and
translated at the closing rate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Buildings comprise mainly factories and offices.
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance
are recognised in profit or loss during the period in
which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost less
their residual values over the estimated useful lives on
a straight-line basis. The principal annual rates are as
follows:

Buildings 4.75%
Plant and machinery 9.50%
Office equipment 19%-31.67%
Motor vehicles 23.75%

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation
method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at
the end of each reporting period.

Construction in progress represents buildings under
construction and plant and machinery pending
installation, and is stated at cost less impairment
losses. Depreciation begins when the relevant assets
are available for use.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation (where
the estimated useful life is finite) and impairment
losses.

Patents and computer software are stated at cost
less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives of 10 years and 3 years
respectively.

Leases
The Group as lessee

Leases are recognised as right-of-use assets and
corresponding lease liabilities when the leased assets
are available for use by the Group. Right-of-use assets
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Depreciation of right-of-use assets
is calculated at rates to write off their cost over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on
a straight-line basis. The principal annual rates are as
follows:

Land use rights 2% - 3.33%
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising
the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liabilities, lease payments prepaid, initial direct costs
and the restoration costs. Lease liabilities include the
net present value of the lease payments discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease if that
rate can be determined, or otherwise the Group's
incremental borrowing rate. Each lease payment is
allocated between the liability and finance cost. The
finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease
term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the lease liability.

Payments associated with short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets are recognised as expenses
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease
terms. Short-term leases are leases with an initial
lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value assets are
assets of value below US$5,000.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using the
weighted average basis. The cost of finished goods
and work in progress comprises raw materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of all production
overhead expenditure, and where appropriate,
subcontracting charges. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the statement of financial position when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the
contractual rights to receive cash flows from the
assets expire; the Group transfers substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the assets; or the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the assets but has
not retained control on the assets. On derecognition
of a financial asset, the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid is recognised
in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised on
a trade date basis where the purchase or sale of an
asset is under a contract whose terms require delivery
of the asset within the timeframe established by
the market concerned, and are initially recognised at
fair value, plus directly attributable transaction costs
except in the case of investments at fair value through
profit or loss. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of investments at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets of the Group are classified under the
following category:

(1)

(i)

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets (including trade and other
receivables) are classified under this category if
they satisfy both of the following conditions:

(a) the assets are held within a business
model whose objective is to hold assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows; and

(b)  the contractual terms of the assets give
rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

They are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method less loss
allowance for expected credit losses.

Investments at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets are classified under this
category if they do not meet the conditions
to be measured at amortised cost and the
conditions of debt investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income unless the
Group designates an equity investment that is
not held for trading as at fair value through other
comprehensive income on initial recognition.

Investments at fair value through profit or loss
are subsequently measured at fair value with any
gains or losses arising from changes in fair values
recognised in profit or loss. The fair value gains or
losses recognised in profit or loss are net of any
interest income and dividend income. Interest
income and dividend income are recognised in
profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Loss allowances for expected credit losses

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected
credit losses on financial assets at amortised cost
and contract assets. Expected credit losses are the
weighted average of credit losses with the respective
risks of a default occurring as the weights.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument
at an amount equal to the expected credit losses
that result from all possible default events over the
expected life of that financial instrument (“lifetime
expected credit losses”) for trade receivables and
contract assets, or if the credit risk on that financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition.

If, at the end of the reporting period, the credit risk
on a financial instrument (other than trade receivables
and contract assets) has not increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group measures the loss
allowance for that financial instrument at an amount
equal to the portion of lifetime expected credit losses
that represents the expected credit losses that result
from default events on that financial instrument that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting
period.

The amount of expected credit losses or reversal to
adjust the loss allowance at the end of the reporting
period to the required amount is recognised in profit or
loss as an impairment gain or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents represent cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term highly liquid investments
which are readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and subject to an insignificant risk of change
in value. Bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group's cash
management are also included as a component of
cash and cash equivalents.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are
classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of
a financial liability and an equity instrument under
HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any contract
that evidences a residual interest in the assets of
the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. The
accounting policies adopted for specific financial
liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net
of transaction costs incurred, and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method unless the effect
of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives (including contingent considerations under
business combinations) are initially recognised and
subsequently measured at fair value with any gains or
losses arising from changes in fair values recognised in
profit or loss.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is measured based on the consideration
specified in a contract with a customer with reference
to the customary business practices and excludes
amounts collected on behalf of third parties. For a
contract where the period between the payment
by the customer and the transfer of the promised
product or service exceeds one year, the consideration
is adjusted for the effect of a significant financing
component.

The Group recognises revenue when it satisfies a
performance obligation by transferring control over a
product or service to a customer. Depending on the
terms of a contract and the laws that apply to that
contract, a performance obligation can be satisfied
over time or at a point in time. A performance
obligation is satisfied over time if:
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

(@) the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group's
performance;

(b)  the Group's performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the asset is
created or enhanced; or

(c) the Group's performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and
the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.

If a performance obligation is satisfied over time,
revenue is recognised by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of that performance
obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point
in time when the customer obtains control of the
product or service.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

(c)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and
long service leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made for
the estimated liability for annual leave and long
service leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the at the end of the reporting
period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the time
of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by
the Group and employees are calculated as a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The
retirement benefit scheme cost charged in profit
or loss represents contributions payable by the
Group to the funds.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier
of the dates when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and when
the Group recognises restructuring costs and
involves the payment of termination benefits.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets,
until such time as the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible
for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally
and used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying
asset, the amount of borrowing costs eligible
for capitalisation is determined by applying a
capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that asset.
The capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the
borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the
Group that are outstanding during the period, other
than borrowings made specifically for the purpose of
obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to it and that the grant will be
received.

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Taxation (Continueqd)

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in
profit or loss because it excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and it further excludes items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses or unused
tax credits can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax is
recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax
assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Segment reporting

Operating segments and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Group’'s most senior executive
management for the purpose of allocating resources
and assessing the performance of the Group's various
lines of business.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of productions processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to
the Group.

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or
(i) is a member of the key management

personnel of the Company or of a parent of
the Company.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity and the Company are members
of the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the Group.
If the Group is itself such a plan, the
sponsoring employers are also related to
the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Company or to a parent of the Company.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets other than deferred tax assets, investments,
inventories and receivables, to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of any impairment loss.
Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-
generating unit is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset or cash-
generating unit is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of amortisation or depreciation)
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
or cash-generating unit in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

FESIBE (2

EERE

AEERSREDRBITEEVRELE
E(REERREE RE F&ENMEKKA
BIMNMEEE NBEEBSTRBTRZE
BELBREERR HEETAZFIR
BfEEt B E Y A Y @ & 78 A B ERDRUE
EIERE - WA ERNEENATKE S
B AARKEAEEMBREEE BN
A e e

AU O R SRR A AR B R B
EMETHNREE - A EREER - &5
AEBRERESRRARRERMISHEE
BRREREERERROFANTAR
BE PREHRE.

WEENREELEMH R E R A
EREREE MEEXRSELEMMR
T BB 2 L FT W () 8 - R RS 1R BB N8
SFER - AR EEAEHEEIR £
HER NREBBRFEREEREE -

R ERBER BEED - IEESRESES
BUMRmEEEESHEAKRESELER R
&t MR IR HREE T SRR RRBEF
EYEAREENRSEL FMERRERS
BmEEMREE (FRREHFEHITE) <R/
BERRONSNERER  EHBEEE
UEHEETIR ELER R ER R
BIFE[EEEMEE -

Annual Report2019 43t 117



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

s B U 05 3 0 B i

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_F-NF+_A=1—HIFE

35

118

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditures expected to settle
the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability
of outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group's position at the end of
the reporting period or those that indicate the going
concern assumption is not appropriate are adjusting
events and are reflected in the financial statements.
Events after the reporting period that are not adjusting
events are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements when material.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
discussed below.
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4,

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Allowance for slow-moving inventories

Allowance for slow-moving inventories is
made based on the ageing and estimated net
realisable value of inventories. The assessment
of the allowance amount involves judgement
and estimates. Where the actual outcome in
future is different from the original estimate,
such difference will impact the carrying value
of inventories and allowance charge/write-back
in the period in which such estimate has been
changed.

Impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts

The Group makes impairment loss for bad and
doubtful debts based on assessments of the
recoverability of the trade and other receivables,
including the current creditworthiness and
the past collection history of each debtor.
Impairments arise where events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the balances
may not be collectible. The identification of
bad and doubtful debts requires the use of
judgement and estimates. Where the actual
result is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of the
trade and other receivables and doubtful debt
expenses in the year in which such estimate has
been changed.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused
tax losses to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the
losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount
of deferred tax assets that can be recoginsed,
based upon the likely timing and the level of
future taxable profits together with future
tax planning strategies. Further details are
contained in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(@)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

The Group determines the estimated useful
lives, residual values and related depreciation
charges for the Group's property, plant and
equipment. This estimate is based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives
and residual values of property, plant and
equipment of similar nature and functions. The
Group will revise the depreciation charge where
useful lives and residual values are different to
those previously estimated, or it will write-off or
write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold.

Additional depreciation is made if the estimated
useful lives and/or the residual values of items of
property, plant and equipment are different from
the previous estimation. Useful lives and residual
values are reviewed at each financial year end
date based on changes in circumstances.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial

risks: foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and
interest rate risk. The Group's overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group's financial performance.
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign
currency risk as most of its business
transactions, assets and liabilities are principally
denominated in the functional currencies of
the Group entities. The Group currently does
not have a foreign currency hedging policy in
respect of foreign currency transactions, assets
and liabilities. The Group will monitor its foreign
currency exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. Receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis. For
transactions that are not denominated in the
functional currency of the relevant operating unit,
the Group does not offer credit terms without
the specific approval of the executive directors.

The credit risk of the Group's other financial
assets, which comprise cash and cash
equivalents, pledged deposits, and other
receivables, arises from default of the
counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to
the carrying amounts of these instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised
and creditworthy third parties, there is no
requirement for collateral. Concentrations
of credit risk are managed by analysis by
customer/counterparty. There are no significant
concentrations of credit risk within the Group
as the customer bases of the Group's trade
receivables are widely dispersed.

5. BIRABER &)

(a)

(b)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_F-NF+_A=1—HIFE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

117275

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Further quantitative data in respect of the
Group's exposure to credit risk arising from trade
and bills receivables and prepayments, deposits
and other receivables are disclosed in notes 21
and 23, respectively, to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group considers whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk of financial
assets on an ongoing basis throughout each
reporting period by comparing the risk of
a default occurring as at the reporting date
with the risk of default as at the date of initial
recognition. It considers available reasonable
and supportive forwarding-looking information.
Especially the following information is used:

- internal credit rating;

- actual or expected significant adverse
changes in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause a
significant change to the borrower’s ability
to meet its obligations;

- actual or expected significant changes in
the operating results of the borrower;

- significant changes in the value of the
collateral or in the quality of guarantees or
credit enhancements; and

- significant changes in the expected
performance and behaviour of the
borrower, including changes in the payment
status of borrowers.

5.

BERRER (&)

(b) EERMR (&)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A v S8 B Mk

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE—E—NFF+_A=1+—HIFE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5. B&RERERE &)

(Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) ESERMK (&)
The Group uses two categories for non-trade AEEBGHEEFHEENERERD B
loan receivables which reflect their credit risk MEERN UREEEERR NETE
and how the loan loss provision is determined EENEFEBEEEN TR - NEtE
for each of the categories. In calculating the EHEEBERE AEEZERESH
expected credit loss rates, the Group considers BRI L B EE R ATIE SURETTH
historical loss rates for each category and adjusts o

for forward looking data.

Category Definition Loss provision
k]| B EEEE
Performing Low risk of default and 12 month expected losses
strong capacity to pay
- EHERR BN REE DR 1218 A 7B HAfEs 18
Non-performing Significant increase in credit risk Lifetime expected losses
TR ZE R K &8 00 FHITE R AR
Others Total
Hth Mt
RMB RMB
AR AR
At 31 December 2019 R=B-—NHF
+=—B=+—H
Advance and deposit to others M E A A T EL A
AR RIE S 26,009 26,009
Provision for loss allowance E i B (2,718) (2,718)
Carrying amounts BRAE 23,291 23,291
At 31 December 2018 —E—N\F
+=-—A=+—8
Advance and deposit to others mEM A LEE A
BRREE 22,544 22,544
Provision for loss allowance EEE R (2,315) (2,315)
Carrying amounts BREE 20,229 20,229
All of these advance and deposit are considered BT 5% S 2R AT R AR A KR b2 e
to have low risk and under the ‘Performing’ BRRTES] A RRERKESERE
category because they have a low risk of default HRERR R EITE TR 158 -

and have strong ability to meet their obligations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

EoF—NEF A=t —ALFE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5. B¥RRERE &)
(Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) FERER %)
Others Total
Hh st
RMB RMB
AR # AR
Weighted average expected credit figFHEHEEEE R
loss rate
2019 —E-NEF 10%
2018 —E-N\F 10%
Loss allowance at 1 Jan 2018 RZZE—-NF—A—HHN
E B 2,156 2,156
Increase in provision in 2018 R — N\ A F & 38 00 159 159
Loss allowance at 31 Dec 2018 RZZE—NF+=A
=+ HMEIBEE 2,315 2,315
Increase in provision in 2019 RZZT— NLF A N 403 403
Loss allowance at 31 Dec 2019 RZE—NF+=A
=T —BHEEER 2,718 2,718

124

The increase in loss allowance is due to increase

in expected credit loss rates.

(c) Liquidity risk

(c)

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure
that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term. All of the Group’s financial liabilities

are due within one year.

BR80T e O TE BB S 1
L

REE @R

AEBENBR B EMERRA LA
MBESHFR EREAFTHRE
fE UhRERRENRBESS
K- AKEMESRABHN —FR
25 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A v S8 B Mk

For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE _—FE—NF+_A=1T—HIFFEZF

5.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5. B¥EKRERE @)

(Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The maturity analysis of the Group’s financial

liabilities is as follows:

(c) RBEZRMR (&)

AEESREENIHAIFIT

Total
contractual
Carrying  undiscounted
amounts cash flow
BHRREH
IREE HeRE48
Less than
Total 1 year
Ll DE
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR%T R AR T

31 December 2019 —E-NF+ZA=+—H
Trade and bills payables B 5 RN FIEREMNER 366,417 366,417
Other payables and accruals H A e T 508 R FEEH B 106,944 106,944
Bank loans RITEN 126,207 131,305
599,568 604,666

31 December 2018 - N\F+=-A=+—H
Trade and bills payables B S ENFIERENER 363,337 363,337
Other payables and accruals Hib B R ERT & A 108,185 108,185
Bank loans RITER 109,000 111,230
580,522 582,752

Interest rate risk

The Group's bank deposits and bank borrowings
bear interests at fixed interest rates and

(d) FIREk

therefore are subject to fair value interest rate

risks.

Fair values

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial
assets and financial liabilities as reflected in

(e) RF¥E

the consolidated statement of financial position FEES -
approximate their respective fair values.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
P _E-NFF+_H=+—HIFE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5. HMERERBRERE &)

(Continued)

(f) Financial instruments by category (f) ZERESHNEMITE
The carrying amounts of each of the category of AEEZER T AERRERD
the Group's financial instruments at the end of BREEWT :

the reporting period are as follows:

2019 2018
—ZE—-hEF —E-)N\F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR T ARET T
Financial assets SREE
Investments at fair value through 1R A FEFT ABZRH
profit or loss (mandatorily ®E (BElIETE)
measured) 1,077 -
Financial assets at amortised HEEK AT EN SR
cost (including cash and cash BE (BREAESK
equivalents) REEEY) 908,177 731,598
Financial liabilities kA=A -RE
Financial liabilities R AFTTER
at amortised cost TRAE 599,568 580,522
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A v S8 B Mk

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE—E—NFF+_A=1+—HIFE

6.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The following disclosures of fair
value measurements use a fair value hierarchy that
categorises into three levels the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that the
Group can access at the
measurement date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted
prices included within level
1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly
or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of any of the three levels as of the date
of the event or change in circumstances that caused
the transfer.

AT EIE

RFEERFTEARTS2EE 2 H#ET
MBFRZH s EEEMPEREERER
BN Z B - FEA TR EFTEWER
ERAAFEERT  ARGFERFENMEE
Bl ABERE D S =EFRK:

F-BBARE: ARETRHERHN
B2 AR AELE R
RS2 B R
/) -

F_RBABE: BRE-REBRIHRE
S BERBEREEK
FEEBR 2B AR
e

E-RBARE: BERABZTURR
AR -
A EBHEE AR FER LSRR KB

SHEMEBEH R A = EERT O EN
—EERNEAREL -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE T NFT_HA=1T—HIFE

6. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

(Continued)

(a)  Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 31

6. AFEFE (&)

@ M-TBE-NAFt+-_A=+—HZRF

December 2019: BEERFE:

Fair value measurements using: Total
ERANTHAREZ A TERE: st
Description Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2019
Btk R 1 £ZH =ET-1F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETR

Recurring fair value e YN

measurements:

Investments at fair value through R AFEH ABHNILE
profit or loss

Derivatives - Ferrous metal TE-ERLBHELRY
future contract

1,077 - - 1,077

7. REVENUE

The Group's revenue represents sales of
environmental protection equipment for installation
and sale of environmental pollution prevention
equipment and electronic products; the invoiced value
of material sold and the value of services rendered
during the Year.

7. W=

AEENBSEAFELZRMHERRS
RPERBERETEMNWRREGEHE
EMRNBEREBERMIRHRENEE-

2019 2018
—E2-hEF —T-N\F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARMT AR T T

Sales of environmental protection HEIRIRE
equipment 696,284 848,815
Sale of materials SHEM R 10,596 8,002
Rendering of services R 19,767 2,000
726,647 858,817
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A v S8 B Mk

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE—E—NFF+_A=1+—HIFE

7

REVENUE (continued)

Disaggregation of revenue from sales of

7 WHE (&)
DIHREHEBERREHIE :

environmental protection equipment:

2019 2018
—E-NF —ZE-)N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T
Geographical markets B 5
Mainland China R B A 4l 672,454 840,786
Other countries HMBEx 23,830 8,029
Total #Et 696,284 848,815
Major products TEEmM
Electrostatic precipitator FFERERS 458,886 537173
Electronstatic-bag composite precipitator & &4 AR EE2S 78,916 132,711
Bag filter precipitator A BRERS 101,844 71,093
S02 and Nox emission reduction BL—ElmERELY
(desulfurisation and denitrification PERR (BRER R AR E )
devices) 53,157 84,496
Others (e.g. Pneumatic ash conveying — H i (205 H &K Z4t)
system) 3,481 23,342
Total FEEy 696,284 848,815
Timing of revenue recognition i 5 T R B BE
At a point in time R — R
— Sales of environmental —HERRRK
protection equipment 696,284 848,815
— Sale of materials —SHEM R 10,596 8,002
— Rendering of services — R AR 19,767 2,000
Total #ET 726,647 858,817
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_F-NF+_A=1—HIFE

7

130

REVENUE (continued)

Disaggregation of revenue from sales of
environmental protection equipment:
(Continued)

Sales of Environmental protection equipment

The Group manufactures, sells and installs
environmental pollution prevention equipment to the
customers. The customers pay the contract prices
to the Group according to the payment schedules as
stipulated in the contracts within one month. Sales
are recognised when control of the products and
services have transferred, being when the products
are delivered to a customer. If the service rendered
by the Group exceeds the payments, a contract asset
is recognised. If the payments exceed the service
rendered, a contract liability is recognised.

If a contract includes the installation of hardware,
revenue for the hardware is recognised at a point in
time when the hardware is delivered, the legal title has
passed and the customer has accepted the hardware.

The contract price is allocated to the performance
obligations based on the relative stand-alone selling
prices of the performance obligations. The stand-alone
selling prices are determined by applying the expected
cost plus a margin approach.

Sales of materials

The Group sells environmental pollution prevention
equipment to the customers. The products amount
is repayable within one month. Sales are recognised
when control of the products has transferred, being
when the products are delivered to a customer,
there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect
the customer’s acceptance of the products and the
customer has obtained legal titles to the products.

A receivable is recognised when the products are
delivered to the customers as this is the point in time
that the consideration is unconditional because only
the passage of time is required before the payment is
due.

sk &)
DIFEEBRRENKRE: (&)
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AEBRERATFHERLERRTR
Prami - TP RIES RETHANMNRERE
R—EARRAEE LN A RER - FER
KEEFmEtIEEEE (MERZXMNTE
P2 i) HER I E - i AR B IR e R
B SEEREREE Wi KB
PriR it IR Rlg R ARAE-

&R emL KRN B RER R
Nz EEEMAERCEBEBEUREPER
IR 1 2 I RERR,

ERERERENEENBBBILIEEDE
EROEME - BILEBTIEBIEHKA A
BIEEE

HEM#

AEEREPHERR SATARME - EM
TRAR—EARER - EERNEFED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A v S8 B Mk

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE—E—NFF+_A=1+—HIFE

8. OTHER INCOME 8. HayA
2019 2018
—E2-hEF —E-N\F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®T ARBTT
Bank interest income RITH B M A 713 1,197
Government grants T 4 B 7,796 2,103
Reversal of impairment loss on FENE R EEEER
bills receivables 2,345 -
Gain on disposal investments at HEZEAFEFABEN
fair value through profit or loss &z W= 35 -
Foreign exchange gain PE 3 W 285 258
Others H A, 159 168
11,333 3,726
9. SEGMENT INFORMATION 9. oHER

The Group's revenue during the Year was mainly
derived from environmental protection equipment
contract revenue for installation and sale of
environmental pollution prevention equipment and
electronic products; the invoiced value of goods sold
and the value of services rendered. The products of
the Group are subject to similar risks and returns and,
therefore, the Group has only one business segment.

AEERAEENREEBERALRKIEE
RRBAARBELETFERNRRRE
BRYE  HEERMEREELMEHRR
BEEE - NEBEMERARRNAASE
WAL Fitt NEBEER —EXK B

Geographical information i EER
Revenue Non-current assets
Y = RBEE
2019 2018 2019 2018
—®-hE |ZT-N\F [ZB-NEF |2 N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R | ARET | ARBTR | ARETTT
(Restated)
(ge&E75)
Mainland China elleaspi 702,817 850,788 166,274 163,873
Other countries HEmBER 23,830 8,029 = -
Consolidated total IR 726,647 858,817 166,274 163,873

In presenting the geographical information, revenue is

based on the locations of the customers.

REFEERE WS IRIEETF AT

£75°
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
P _E-NFF+_H=+—HIFE

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 9. DEER &)
Revenue from major customers: REXEEFHWKE:
2019 2018
—E-hF —F—N\F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T
Customer A =FEA 92,881 N/AZ 38 A *
Customer B =FB 72,975 N/AZ 38 A *
@ Customer did not contribute more than 10% of the total & BEWEMAEEFRNLEESBABEEIO0%A L -
consolidated revenue of the Group for the year.
10. FINANCE COSTS 10. @& KA
2019 2018
—E—-hF —E-N\F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARET T
Interest on banks loans IRITERMF S 6,909 6,278
11. INCOME TAX 1. FBH
2019 2018
—E-hF —T-N\F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTT
PRC Enterprise Income Tax for the year & A B TS 17,085 23,580
Deferred tax (note 28) FRIEFEIE (M7E28) (6,260) (8,408)
10,825 15,172

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax was required
since the Group has no assessable profit in Hong Kong
for the years presented.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE _—FE—NF+_A=1T—HIFFEZF

11. INCOME TAX (Continued) 1. FTEH &)

PS5 B2 75 A s A B S BR AN T

The reconciliation between the income tax and the
profit before tax is as follows:

2019 2018

—E-NF —ZE-)N\F

RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARMT T AREF T

Profit before tax TR A& 45,114 46,408
Notional tax on profit before tax BHBEEMEGTER

calculated at the PRC statutory rate Al I HY 2 IR 11,279 11,602

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 7B 1 B S B0t 16 52 & 132 3,570

Tax effect of non-taxable income BANBRANT B E (586) -

Income tax for the Year REEZFEH 10,825 15,172

12. PROFIT FORTHE YEAR 12. FREA

The Group's profit for the year is stated after charging/ AEENF RGN EHNR, (GTA) U TE
(crediting) the following: IBIEER:
2019 2018
—E2-hEF —E-N\F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARMT AR T T
Auditor's remuneration 1% ELR B & 1,055 1,000
Cost of inventories sold Fr & B F B/ KA 601,333 717577
Depreciation e 5,224 6,756
Depreciation on right-of-use assets ERAEEENE 1,981 1,981
Amortisation of intangible assets EmEE#E 128 196
Impairment loss on trade receivables E SR IERERSE 18,803 30,590
(Reversal of impairment loss)/impairment #&EREUWEE CREEE
loss recognised on bills receivables B|),REERE (2,345) 4,573
Impairment loss on other receivables H e W SR IE R BB 1B 403 159
Impairment loss on contract asset BRNEEREEE 4,950 -
Changes in investments at fair value BATEGFARRER
through profit or loss &L E 78 =
Research and development expenditure  fff 25 i 5% 2,186 2,927
Staff costs (including directors’ BIRA(BREES
remuneration — note 13): B & — B 5E13) -
Wages and Salaries TERES 47,650 50,067
Retirement benefits RINEETEI K
scheme contribution 3,076 312
Staff welfare expenses BTENAXZ 6,144 5,898
56,870 59,477
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13. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID

134

i ey Vi S

INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS

13. EER T BEREFMALTHE

The emoluments of each Director were as follows: ZXEENEST
Retirement
Salaries benefits
and other scheme
Fees benefits contributions Total
HeR EREF
ue HiBF FHEIf R @st
Notes RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
MzE AR¥Tx ARBTx AR¥Tx AR®Tx
Executive Directors HITEE
Bian Yu BF - 515 27 542
Bian Weican BER - 260 27 287
Bian Shu Bk - 357 27 384
Non-Executive Directors F#{TES
Bian Jianguang BEN - 150 - 150
Zhang Yuanyuan ERE - 110 - 10
Chen Jiancheng bR 22 - 60 - 60
Zhu Xianbo nE) 3 - 91 - 91
Independent Non- BIYFHTES
Executive Directors
Zhang Bing KR - 60 - 60
Feng Juji bokik= - 168 - 168
Li Jiannan B2 - 60 - 60
Supervisors =3
Chen Xinhua PR - 177 13 190
Fu Jun #19 - 60 - 60
Fang Zhiguo R E - 60 - 60
Chief executive BRITBAE
Qiu Jinxing g - 348 13 361
Total for the year ended HZE-T—NF
31 December 2019 +Z-A=+—H
FFEHEE - 2,476 107 2,583
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE—E—NFF+_A=1+—HIFE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 13. EEREEREFMALTHE

INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS (Continued) (#)
Retirement
Salaries benefits
and other scheme
Fees benefits  contributions Total
ek RINIEF
we H 2%l HELES #BEr
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
fzZ AREBTT ARETRT ARETE ARETT
Executive Directors BITES
Bian Yu BF - 490 87 577
Bian Weican BEE - 238 87 325
Bian Shu B - 339 87 426
Non-Executive Directors F#TESE
Bian Jianguang BEX - 130 - 130
Zhang Yuanyuan ERE - 166 83 249
Chen Jiancheng bR 22 - 66 14 80
Independent Non- BIYFHTES
Executive Directors
Zhang Bing R/ - 60 - 60
Feng Juji SIRE - 116 = 116
Li Jiannan Bzt - 15 - 15
Tam Hon Shan Celia HE 1 - 22 = 22
Jiang Yan 2 1 - 10 - 10
Yu Zhaofei REF 2 - 28 - 28
Supervisors BE=
Chen Xinhua ik - 170 43 213
Fu Jun f#19 - 60 - 60
Fang Zhiguo 7 - 60 - 60
Chief executive BRITBAE
Qiu Jinxing ¢ & - 277 41 318
Total for the year ended #HZE=-ZT—N\F
31 December 2018 +-A=t+—8H
EFEE B - 2,247 442 2,689
Notes: B 5 :
1 Resigned with effect from 30 March 2018. 1 HEEB-_ZT-N\F=-A=THBE®
2 Appointed as independent non-executive director with effect 2 BE-Z-—\G=A=1THBREZTABIIEH
from 30 March 2018 and resigned with effect from 3 August TEERE=FE—\FN\A=-BHEHT-
2018.
3 Appointed as non-executive director with effect from 31 May 3 BE-Z - hFRA=1T—"BREREZERIENT
2019. EEo
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13. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID

136

INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

The five highest paid employees during the year
included two directors and the chief executive (2018:
three directors and the chief executive), details of
whose remuneration are set out in information above.
Details of the remuneration of the remaining two
(2018: one) non-directors, highest paid employees for
the Year are as follows:

13. EER L EBRESFMALTHES

(#&)

AEE TERESFHNEETERE_RE
EREBRITRAB (ZE—N\F =Z£EF
REBITHAR)  HHFMFBRR LXE
B-ARFE -HHB-_H(ZT-N\F:—%)
FREFESFMMEESOFIFEMT

2019 2018

—ZE-hEF —ZE-N\F

RMB’'000 RMB’000

ARET T ARET T

Salaries and other benefits He REMER 650 306
Retirement benefits scheme RORAEFIETEI 5K

contributions 25 49

675 355

The number of non-directors, highest paid employees
whose remuneration fell within the following bands is
as follows:

HWN T T HBERNNIFES R HE
EMHBBEWNT:

Number of employees

EE%A
2019 2018
—E-AE —ZE-N\F
Emolument band: s :
HK$nil - HK$1,000,000 Z 21,000,000/ 7T 2 1

During the years ended 31 December 2019 and
2018, no emoluments were paid by the Group to
the five highest paid individuals, and directors, as an
inducement to join the Group or as compensation for
loss of office other than those disclosed above. In
addition, during the years ended 31 December 2019
and 2018, no directors waived any emoluments.

REBEE-_Z—NER_ZE—NE+_A
Zt—HULFEE BEXHBEEEN K&
EMEnAZaaMA T RES ST
S fERREEMANEE S IEAHE
BOBE - REE-ZT-—NAFR-ZF
—NE+-A=Z+—BIFE BEZER
ETEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE _—FE—NF+_A=1T—HIFFEZF

14. DIVIDENDS

15.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018:
Nil).

EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share attributable
to owners of the Company is based on the profit
for the year of approximately RMB34,289,000
(2018: RMB31,236,000) attributable to owners of
the Company and the weighted average number of
135,000,000 (2018: 135,000,000) ordinary shares in
issue during the Year.

Diluted earnings per share

No diluted earnings per share is presented as the
Company did not have any dilutive potential ordinary
shares during the two years ended 31 December 2019
and 2018.

14. RE

15.

EETEEMBE_Z-NFt-A=1+—
AIEFERNEMBRE (ZF-N\F: &) -

BREF
BREXER

AR A A SREARITREAD
RIFEA A (575 P33 L0 A R ¥%34,289,000
T (=F— \%F: AKR%31,236,0007T) -
AL LEEGEE VLR BT
135,000,0000% ( —= — /4 : 135,000,000
S ETSEEE

BREBERF
REE-_ZE—NhER_ZTE—NE+=_A

=+ HLEMEFE AR AHEEMELE
BEEER UHMEZ)SRETAN -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE T NFT_HA=1T—HIFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. ME BERRKRE
Plant and Motor Office  Construction
Buildings ~ machinery vehicles  equipment in progress Total
BF HEREE RE  BAERE HEIR @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AR%ETn ARETr ARETT ARETR AR%TR
Cost A
At 1 January 2018 R=E-\f-HF—-H 90,863 30,160 1,095 1,616 - 123,59
Additions NE - 1,049 12 204 214 1479
Transfers e 214 = = - (214) =
At 31 December 2018 and R=E-N\E+-A=1-H
1 January 2019 k=Z-h%&-F-H 91,077 31,209 1,067 1,720 - 125,073
Additions AE - 1,006 - 9% - 1,100
Disposals e - - (204) - - (204)
At 31 December 2019 R=E-AE+ZA=1-H 91,077 32214 863 1815 - 125,969
Accumulated depreciation and 3t TERHE
impairment
At 1 January 2018 RZE-\E-A-H 21,99 12,89 863 934 - 36,688
Charge for the year TEEXH 3757 2548 140 311 - 6,756
At 31 December 2018 and R=E-\F+-f=1-H
1 January 2019 kZZ-NE-F—-H 25,752 15,444 1,003 1,245 - 43 444
Charge for the year AEEY 3483 1470 3 268 - 5,204
Disposals e - - (194) - - (194)
At 31 December 2019 RZB-AE+ZB=t-B 29,235 16,914 812 1513 - 48474
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2019 RZB-hF+=B=1-H 61,842 15,300 51 302 - 7749
At 31 December 2018 RZZ-\+-A=1-H 65,325 15,765 64 475 - 81,629

138

As at 31 December 2019, certain of the Group's
buildings with a carrying amount of approximately
RMB9,594,000 (2018: RMB11,217000) were pledged
to secure bank loan facilities granted to the Group
(note 27).

R-E-NF+ZA=1+—8 KAEBER
BBEY A ANRKEB4,000T (ZFE—N
F£: AR¥11,2170000) E TEFEE
U AEEERNRITEREBE RN
8 (Ff7E27) »
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE—E—NFF+_A=1+—HIFE

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 17. EFREEE
Disclosures of lease-related items: HEASEHEENEEEE:
2019 2018
—®-nE | —E-)\F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARMT T AREF T
At 31 December: R+=—A=+—8:
Right-of-use assets EAEEE
- Land use rights — i {5 43,020 45,001
2019 2018
—®-nE | —T-N\F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®T AR T T
Year ended 31 December: HE+T-_HA=1T—8H
LEFE:
Depreciation charge of FRAEEENERS
right-of-use assets
- Land use rights — i fE A 1,981 1,981
As at 31 December 2019, the Group's leasehold lands RZZE-—hLF+ZA=+—H ~&EEK
with an aggregate carrying amount of RMB 15,200,000 {4258 5 AR ¥15,200,0007T (ZZ— )\
(2018: RMB16,434,000) were pledged to secure bank F: AR #16,434,0000) A E T E &

loan facilities granted to the Group (note 27).

# (F7E27) ©

U AREERNRTERBERMEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

EoF—NEF A=t —ALFE

18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

18. B EE

Patent Software Total
4| B4 @et
Cost AR RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETT ARETT
At 1 January 2018, RZZE-NF-—A—H"
31 December 2018, —Z-N\F+-A=+—8"
1 January 2019 and —E-NEF-A-Bk
31 December 2019 —E-NF+=-RA=1+—H 110 670 780
Accumulated amortisation and ZEH# R EEFE
impairment loss
At 1 January 2018 RZZE—N\FE—HA—H 64 327 391
Amortisation for the year REFHE 11 185 196
At 31 December 2018 and RZZE—NF+=ZA=+—BK
1 January 2019 —E-NF—H—H 75 512 587
Amortisation for the year REZH# 11 117 128
At 31 December 2019 R-ZZE-AE+=ZB=+—H 86 629 715
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2019 R-ZB-hE+=A=+-—-H 24 41 65
At 31 December 2018 RZZF-\F+ZA=+—H 35 158 193
19. INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE 19. AV ETABENEE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Ferrous metal future contract, at BB ARKEY BHAF
fair value — current asset EEfE-RBEE 1,077 S
20. INVENTORIES 20. Z&
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Raw materials R 33,135 31,209
Work in progress R m 11,004 13,704
Finished goods BIRK @ 280,996 279,367
325,135 324,280
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE—E—NFF+_A=1+—HIFE

21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 21. ESEWRERERERE
2019 2018
—E2-hEF —T-N\F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARMT T AREF T
Trade receivables g 5 W FIE 780,694 606,985
Less: provision for loss allowance W BRI (128,299) (109,496)
652,395 497489
Bills receivable eSS 150,375 160,665
Less: provision for loss allowance W B (2,228) (4,573)
800,542 653,581
Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing, and the BoRWKZRIEAEB N ERE—RAE
credit period is generally 1 month. The Group seeks to o 286 B S s H AR MK B KRR TR A R
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables. Bl DB S B SR E R E T Bk
Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior e AEBWEREE FREWRIALRIES
management. The Group does not hold any collateral E T4 47 Gh ok E 15 FR 3G 98 58 e o
or other credit enhancements over its trade receivable
balances.
The Group's bills receivable are all due within one year. REBEMRMBERERKEBREHER —FAEH-
As at 31 December 2019, the Group's bills receivables R_E—NF+_A=+—H XEEA
of RMB52,158,000 (2018: RMB41,590,000) were KR #52,158,000c (ZE—NF: ARK
pledged to secure the Group's bills payable (note 25). 41,590,0007T) W E K EHR D E I - AAR

S B A REE AR (K RE25)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE T NFT_HA=1T—HIFE

21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 21.

(Continued)

The aging analysis of trade receivables, based on the

ESRRFERENREE #)

ENBZAH25I0E 5 R KR (KA

invoice date, and net of allowance, is as follows: BE)MERRS T
2019 2018
—g-NE | ZFT)N\F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR T ARET T
Within 1 year 15" 361,537 146,250
1 to 2 years 15824 136,516 236,700
2 to 3 years 2E3F 136,092 96,157
3 to 4 years 3FEAF 18,250 18,382
652,395 497489
Reconciliation of loss allowance for trade receivables: B S5 RrINGIEEERENER
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETx ARET T
At 1 January w—H—H 109,496 78,906
Increase in loss allowance for the year  ZN4E & [E548 B & 1% N 18,803 30,590
At 31 December ®R+=—A=+—8 128,299 109,496
Reconciliation of loss allowance for bills receivable: RN E B EBEN YR
2019 2018
—E-hEF —F—N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARET T
At 1 January ®n—H—H 4,573 s
(Decrease)/Increase in loss allowance for 4 [E EEE®E (R )
the year #10 (2,345) 4,573
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H” 2,228 4,573
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE _—FE—NF+_A=1T—HIFFEZF

21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 21. ESEWREREWERE (&)

(Continued)

The Group applies the simplified approach under REBERBEBYBMELENESR [ 5
HKFRS 9 “Financial Instrument” to provide for TE|BEBTINNES AR EE S EWKEIE
expected credit losses using the lifetime expected FAREREEREHRTERREERE
loss provision for all trade receivables. To measure the %E‘l‘ﬁi‘ﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬂgﬁé B Z NGRS IRIE
expected credit losses, trade receivables have been HEEERBEHIKRSH -BEEES
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and BB SAIEEER-

the aging. The expected credit losses also incorporate
forward looking information.

1t02 2t03 3tod
Current years years years Total
L 1228 253E 3B4E @t
At 31 December 2019 RZE-AE+ZA=t+-H
Weighted average expected loss rate MEFHEAEEE 0% 8% 2% 81% 16%
Receivable amount (RMB'000) BUHE (ARETT) 361,537 148519 176,394 94,244 780,694
Loss allowance (RMB'000) BRAE(ARETT) - 12,003 40,302 75,994 128,299
At 31 December 2018 R-E-N\E+-A=t+-H
Weighted average expected loss rate MEFRBEER 0% 3% 14% 82% 18%
Receivable amount (RMB'000) RUHE (ARETT) 146,250 243,953 112,422 104,360 606,985
Loss allowance (RMB'000) BEER (ARETT) - 7253 16,265 85,978 109,496
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_F—NF+_A=1—HIFE

21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

144

(Continued)

At 31 December 2019, the Group endorsed certain
bills receivable accepted by certain banks in the PRC
(the”Endorsed Notes”) to certain of its suppliers in
order to settle the trade payables due to such suppliers
(the”Endorsement”). Subsequent to the Endorsement,
the Group did not retain any rights on the use of the
Endorsed Notes, including the sale, transfer or pledge
of the Endorsed Notes to any other third parties. In
accordance with the Law of Negotiable Instruments
in the PRC, the holders of the Endorsed Notes have a
right of recourse against the Group if the PRC banks
default (the “Continuing Involvement”). The total
carrying amount of the Endorsed Notes of the Group
as at 31 December 2019 was RMB221,691,000 (2018:
RMB162,601,000). In the opinion of the directors, the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards relating to certain Endorsed Notes accepted
by large and reputable banks (the “Derecognised
Notes”) with an amount of RMB38,729,000 as at 31
December 2019 (2018: RMB69,411,000). Accordingly,
the Group has derecognised the full carrying amounts
of these Derecognised Notes and the associated
trade payables. The maximum exposure to loss
from the Group’'s Continuing Involvement in these
Derecognised Notes and the undiscounted cash
flows to repurchase these Derecognised Notes is
equal to their carrying amounts. In the opinion of the
directors, the fair values of the Group’s Continuing
Involvement in these Derecognised Notes are not
significant. The Group continued to recognise the full
carrying amount of the remaining Endorsed Notes
and the associated trade payables settled with an
amount of RMB154,371,000 as at 31 December 2019
(2018: RMB62,973,000), because the directors believe
that the Group has retained the substantial risks and
reward, which include default risks relating to such
remaining Endorsed Notes.

During the year, the Group has not recognised any
gain or loss (2018: Nil) on the date of transfer of
the Derecognised Notes. No gains or losses were
recognised from the Continuing Involvement, both
during the year or cumulatively. The Endorsement has
been made evenly throughout the year.

21.

ESRRFERENREE #)

R NAEFE+_A=+—H A&EMH
EETHERESERTEE TRITEMAD
ETREREE([BEEEE]) UEBFER
E%%Lw’éﬁm%%ﬂéﬁmlﬁ(ribin
REER AEBTERBEIMERES
ZEMEN BRERRETANEMLE=FE
% HRIEHEEZB-BE (REA
HAMBEEEE WP BRORITED
EIJ%“%E%FE’JWEA%ZK%EE%E%%
([FEEESENH]) RZZE—NF+=ZA
—+—H FAEENEERBENERAEAL
B8 AR ¥221,691,000T (—F — \4F:
AR #162,601,00070) cEFRAE K=
Z-NFE+ZRA=+—RH XxEEC#EZR
HAMRMARITEANETEEREA
R #38,729,000t (ZE—N\F: ARK
69,411,0007T) ([ IEERZEE])BEH
BARED R RER Bt AEEEKRIE
ﬁﬁ;ﬁiiﬂﬂﬁmT}FE’\J%%BEEWEWE
BESENRE AEERZSRIEER
EBRTHEEESHNRRNEERR AR
BEHZER IIERAEBENARAMBERSRE
EERERMAE-EERA AEERZS
BIBREENFEEESFHHATET
R RZE-—NF+ZA=+—H F&H
BEEREKBEZEN 2 REE LA
BMEHEE S ENHRIBEAR154,371,000
T (ZE—N\F: AR¥62,973 oooﬁ) )3
HREZHRE AEERBBARID
N [al5R - ﬁ%ﬁ,\&%ﬂﬁ%%%ﬁﬁﬁ%m@
R o

ilﬁ K’EIE’\L%M&T@M—J—T ERWE
R FHEE —N\FE) R

EW&E%;HriE $E£4HEH7TU’E%’E§T5§%

BEBSHTEI - FRAHIELEE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE—E—NFF+_A=1+—HIFE

22. CONTRACT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

22. CREERERE

Disclosures of revenue-related items RIS HEHENEREE
As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 1 January
2019 2018 2018
RZB-N%E R=ZE—N\F R-E-N\F
+=ZA=t+-8 |+t=A=f-H —A—8
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETT ARET T
Total contract assets BERARE 200,005 261,028 193,201
Total contract liabilities BERAE 233,103 202,284 310,482
Contract receivables (included in trade and bills A FIEKZIE (st AE 5
receivables) ERFERERER) 800,542 653,581 619,345
Transaction prices allocated to performance D E ZF K H AR THH)
obligation unsatisfied at end of year and BHEETEHR T
expected to be recognised as revenue in: FERRABUENRHER:
-2019 -ZZ-NF - 960,180
- 2020 -“Z-%F 1,209,565 689,546
-2021 i 761,230 377943
- 2022 ——g--f 270,224 -
2,241,019 2,027669

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1T—-HLEE

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR® T AREF T
Revenue recognised in the year that FHFAERBELR
was included in contract liabilities REERRH M
at beginning of year 112,888 192,155
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE T NFT_HA=1T—HIFE

22. CONTRACT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 22. EREERERE (&)

(Continued)
Significant changes in contract assets and rEEEREEREREBNERS
contract liabilities during the year: B
2019 2019 2018 2018
“E2-NE | ZB-NE | 22N\ ZZT-N\F
Contract Contract Contract Contract
assets liabilities assets liabilities

AREE | AAAM | AREE ARAR
RMB'000 | RMB'000 | RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR | ARTR | ARBETT ARETR

Increase due to operation AAFELEMmIL

in the year 61,771 185,005 91,037 170,050
Transfer of contract assets to EREREER

receivables e IR (117,844) - (23,210) -
Impairment on contract asset AREERE (4,950) = - -

Transfer of contract liabilites to ~ EAARBEZE W

revenue - (154,186) - (278,248)
A contract asset represents the Group's right to EREEEASERATFPERERIR
consideration in exchange for products or services that T mULE R BRI o

the Group has transferred to a customer.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to ARAaEEASERNEFEZRAEEER
transfer products or services to a customer for which EPWEINRE (ERRESE)WERK
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of RRTGHI B AT

consideration is due) from the customer.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE—E—NFF+_A=1+—HIFE

23. PREPAYMENT, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 23. Ef{RIE - Z& R H it BUFKIE
RECEIVABLES

2019 2018
—g-NE | ZFT)N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBFT
Other receivables H b W s 8 26,009 22,544
Less: impairment losses B OREEE (2,718) (2,315)
23,291 20,229
Prepayments TEfT5RIE 2,267 25,380
Due from holding company (note) FEMIERR A R SRIE (FIEE) - 162
25,558 45,771
Note: The amount due from the holding company is unsecured, non- MIEE: FEMIERARFIAAEEE 28 NERTER
interest bearing and have no fixed repayment terms. Hio
Impairment of other receivables H ih JE WK IE R B
The movements in impairment losses of other H b U IB R EEERNEZEH T
receivables are as follows:
2019 2018
—E—-hEF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT
At beginning of the reporting period S H ) 2,315 2,156
Impairment loss on other receivables H b & W BB (B B 18 403 159
At the end of the reporting period mEHIR 2,718 2,315
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

24.

25.

148

BE-F-—AF+=A=+—HILFE

BANK AND CASH BALANCES AND
PLEDGED DEPOSIT

At the end of reporting period, the bank and
cash balances of Group denominated in RMB
amounted to approximately RMB$39,150,000 (2018:
RMB$16,161,000). Conversion of RMB into foreign
currencies is subject to the PRC's Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations.

Pledged deposit with banks have been placed as
security for bills payables issued by the Group. Bank
guarantees are performance guarantees and made for
varying periods ranging from several months to five
years depending on the agreement of the contract,
and earn interest at the respective short term time
deposit rates. The bank balances and pledged deposits
are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent
history of default.

24.

RITRRESEHREEFEFR

RIFER  AEBIUARBTENRITR
ReEHRES LN AR39,150,0007T (=&
—)\F : AR¥16,161,0007T) ° AREE H 2
RN R ST R ER) CINEBIRED]) o

RITEERFERCEN  URAREE LD
N RIBRMEA - RITEFRFEQERIL
FBEAZRFHREANTRIMRIEL -8R
FA R M E - WIRE 858 EHFER
RF KRGS - RITEBREEERFERIFA
MBI R RN EEEEMNRTT

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 25 EZENRERENERE
2019 2018
—E-hF —ZE-N\F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®T ARBTT
Trade payables g S ENFIE 320,618 338,831
Bills payable R RE 45,799 24,506
366,417 363,337

Bills payable were secured by the pledge of bank
deposits of RMB27121,000 (2018: RMB27130,000)
and the Group's bills receivables of RMB52,158,000
(2018: RMB41,590,000).

FERT =B ARITIE RA R #27,121,0007T
—E—-N\F: AR¥27130,0007T) KA K

A& B EREE A R52,158,0007T (=

Z— \F: AR¥41,590,0007T) R °
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE—E—NFF+_A=1+—HIFE

25. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (Continued)

An aging analysis of the trade payables at the end
of the reporting period, based on invoice dates, is as

25.

BEZRNRERENRE #)

RBER - B 5 RN RIAENER A HH
BRie AT an T

follows:
2019 2018
—E—-hF —F—N\F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARET T
Within 1 year 1R 243,468 242,905
1 to 2 years 1227 48,433 75,466
2 to 3 years 2E3F 16,738 15,729
Over 3 years 3F LA E 11,979 4,731
320,618 338,831
26. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 26. HttENSRERESTER

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARET T
Other payables H e FOE 99,579 102,151
Due to related companies (note) FE A BB RS A B 5RIE (FIEE) 7,365 6,034
106,944 108,185

Note: The amount due to related companies are unsecured, non- BeE: FEMEE A RFIEAEER £ 8 RERETEENR

interest bearing and have no fixed repayment terms.

He
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE T NFT_HA=1T—HIFE

27. BANK LOANS 27. SRITER
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZT-)N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET R AERETIT
Bank loan — secured IRITER—HEF 125,052 109,000
Margin loan RESERK 1,155 =
126,207 109,000

150

The secured bank loan of the Group amounting
to RMB46,500,000 (2018: RMB49,000,000) were
secured by (i) the Group's building situated in
the Mainland China, which had an aggregate net
carrying value of RMB9,594,000 as at 31 December
2019 (2018: RMB11,217.000); and (ii) the Group's
leasehold land situated in Mainland China, which had
an aggregate carrying amount of RMB15,200,000
as at 31 December 2019 (2018: RMB16,434,000).
The remaining amount were secured by corporate
guarantee. The margin loan was secured by the
investments at fair value through profit or loss.

The effective interest rates per annum at the end of
the reporting period were as follows:

AEBMNBEHERFARTERESEAAR
#46,500,000 (ZZE—N\F: AR
49,000,0007C) A LA T & IBEHE |« ()
EEMRFPEAMHEF RN
F+Z_A=Z+—BNEEFERAEAA
R #9,594,000 (ZZE— NF: AR
11,217,0007T ) & Mz (i) A 52 B iz 72 A B (A i
MEELH R-Z—NF+_A=+—8H
RBRA(E % A AR 115,200,000 (=F
— )\ AR%16,434,0007T) ° #6 ~N& 58
AR EEREER - RESERUEAFE
FFABIRAIEE (B E -

RI|BEMHROERFENROT -

2019
—E-NEF

2018
—E-N\F

Short-term bank loans:

Fixed-rate & F F) =R

FHIRITER

£ .
A

4.79% - 5.66% | 4.35% - 6.00%
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE—E—NFF+_A=1+—HIFE

28. DEFERRED TAX 28. IEIEHIE
The following are the details deferred tax liabilities and AEECHRREEREAEREENFE
assets recognised by the Group. IR e
Changes in

investments  Impairment  Impairment

at fair value  of Property, of trade  Impairment
through plant and and bills of other
profit or loss equipment receivables receivables Accruals Tax loss Total
RAYE EZRRE
FABEN ¥ HE  REUEE EpER
RE%H  RRREEE A HERE &R HEES &t

RVMB000  RMBO00  RMBO00  RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMBO0OO  RMB'000
ARETR  ARETR  ARETE ARETR ARETR  ARETRT  AR%TR

At1 January 2018 - 1422 19726 539.25 1,887 1,905 25479
- Credit/(debit) to consolidated —tNGABER/
statement of profitor loss (BRABERNR) . = 8791 40 (335 (68) 8.408
At 31 December 2018and 1 January R =F—-N\E+-FZ+-Hk
2019 “T-AE-A-R = 1422 28517 579 1552 1817 33,887
- Credit to consolidated -HAGERRE
statement of profit or loss 19 - 5319 101 52 769 6,260
At 31 December 2019 R=B-AE+=A=+-A 19 1422 33,836 680 1,604 2,586 40,147
29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. [
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZE-)N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARET T
Authorised: SEIE :
135,000,000 ordinary shares of 135,000,0000% & i& I (&
RMB$1.00 each AR #1.007T 1 3 i A% 135,000 135,000
Issued and fully paid: BERITEHBRE:
135,000,000 ordinary shares of 135,000,0008% & f& EI (B
RMB$1.00 each AR #1.0070 B & 58 A% 135,000 135,000
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29.

30.

152

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)
Capital management

The Group's primary objective when managing capital
is to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern, so that it can continue to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing
access to finance at a reasonable cost. The Group's
objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to
maximise the return to the shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the payment of dividends, issue
new shares, buyback shares, raise new debts, redeem
existing debts or sell assets to reduce debts.

RESERVES
(a) The amounts of the Group’s reserves and
movements therein are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income and consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

29.

30.

&N D)
EAEE

AEBEEEANTIERREREARHE
AIRHRRERRE N BB ERE R K TR R
B EE m R AR TS TE (B IA K 1S & B R AN HO
B BEEABRREHRE R AR MERRH
AREN R AEEEREAN B RRRE
AEBERFEL LN N REBENLE
BREEES RRRGERZADR -

AEBRBEEERANES EREENER
WHEAEHRE - RERHARERERE
AEEHGHBREIRN  BHTHK EE
By BEMER BRRAEBILESR
E AR T o

R
(a) Kﬁlmfﬁﬁi%&ﬁ;@m?éﬁ
SN EMEEmRERMGA RS

KHPE5e

Zhejiang Tengy Environmental Technology Co., Ltd  #i 1. K % BRBERH B0 15 LA 7]



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A v S8 B Mk
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BE-—F-AF+-A=+—HIFE

30. RESERVES (continued)

(b) Reserves of the Company

30. #E (@)
(b) A E#ME

Statutory
Share Capital surplus Retained

premium reserve reserve profits Total

RiEE  BARE LTRHRERE  REERA @t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT  ARETT AREBTR ARETR ARETx

At 1 January 2018 RZZ2-\§-F—-H 239,064 3303 35,262 275,523 553,152

Profit for the year FREH - - - 31,724 31,724
Appropriation to Statutory HREATRBER

surplus reserve - - 3172 (3172) -

At 31 December 2018 RZZ-N\F+ZA=+—H 239064 3,303 38,434 304,075 584,876

At 1 January 2019 RZZ-n%-A-H 239,064 3303 38,434 304,075 584,876

Profit for the year EREH - - - 38,163 38153
Appropriation to statutory HEZEERBRERE

surplus reserve - - 3815 (3,819) -

At 31 December 2019 R-B-NE+ZA=+-8 239,064 3,303 42,249 338413 623,029

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves of the

Group

(1) Share premium

Pursuant to the PRC Company Law and the
respective entities’ articles of association,
the Company and its subsidiaries
established in the PRC shall appropriate
10% of their annual statutory net profit
(determined in accordance with the PRC
accounting principles and regulations and
after offsetting any prior years' losses) to
the statutory surplus reserve until such
reserve fund reaches 50% of the share
capital of these entities. The statutory
surplus reserve can be utilised to offset
prior years’ losses or to increase capital.
However, except for offsetting prior years'
losses, such reserve must be maintained
at a minimum of 25% of the share capital
after usage.

(c) XEERBEHEERE®N

(1)

B i 18

REFEAREREEBNELS
SRAR ARF RENPEIK
M HIM R AR AR EFRIAE

AEFIE10% (REBEHBEIEERA

FOERBE Y KB EMBAE
FEBRR)ZEAERRFHE

BEEZRBESEDNZTERR

REI50% ° AT BB AR
EIHBEFEREIBIILE - A
i BRIKERAEFEEEIN A
TR % TR A 18 TME R AR AR
#125% e
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30. RESERVES (continued)

154

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves of the
Group (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Statutory surplus reserve

Pursuant to the PRC Company Law and the
respective entities’ articles of association,
the Company and its subsidiaries
established in the PRC shall appropriate
10% of their annual statutory net profit
(determined in accordance with the PRC
accounting principles and regulations and
after offsetting any prior years' losses) to
the statutory surplus reserve until such
reserve fund reaches 50% of the share
capital of these entities. The statutory
surplus reserve can be utilised to offset
prior years’ losses or to increase capital.
However, except for offsetting prior years'
losses, such reserve must be maintained
at a minimum of 25% of the share capital
after usage.

Safety production reserve

Pursuant to the regulation of Administrative
Measures for the Withdrawal and Use
of Expenses for Safety Production of
Enterprises in the PRC relating to the
construction industry, a subsidiary of the
Group, Tianjie Installation Engineering,
is required to transfer an amount to the
reserve account as safety production
reserve. The amount is calculated based
on the revenue of construction each year
and at the applicable rate of 2%. The
safety production reserve will be used for
modification and maintenance of safety
equipment in accordance with the rules of
the Company Law of the PRC and is not
available for distribution to shareholders.

30. #E (@)
AEERBREBEHEEREWN (2)

()

(ii)

(iir)

A JE BB 1

RIEFREQRNE RS EEMAL
ERMA ARE REAFBIAK
MR BARAREEFEET
MHE10% (RIEBEFEEFTRA
FOEIRET W ERE T MBE
FEEBBR)EETRBREE
HEZREBEESEIZEERR
KHI50% o AT BERFEER AR
EHBTEFEMNEIBIILE - A
BRI R A FEERI A
TR 5% R TE R 18 TME R AR AR
#125% o

LZEEE M

REBEFRERZETEARAN (B
XA EZRRIMEAER
PR MRE AEBERKEQ
ARBLEIRARHERFE
A—ERBRERREEERME -
ZRERBEFRERRIZ2%
HERLL R E L2 ERHE
RIRERBERRIENRERRLK
EREOIGEREE ATAR
PR DK ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE—E—NFF+_A=1+—HIFE

31. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 31. ZEHERERMT
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(a) Changes in liabilities arising from (a) ERMETBMELENEEES
financing activities
The following table shows the Group's changes TRHBIAEBERAARFEEAMEEE
in liabilities arising from financing activities during MEENEESE):
the year:
Bank loans
RITER
RMB'000
ARBFT
At 1 January 2018 RZZE—NF—HA—H 110,000
Changes in cash flows RenE22H (1,000)
At 31 December 2018 RZBE-NFE+=ZA=+—H 109,000
Changes in cash flows RERELE) 16,052
At 31 December 2019 R=B-hE+=A=+—H 125,052
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32. SUMMARISED FINANCIAL POSITION 32. A RIBBERABE

156

OF THE COMPANY

2019 2018
—ZE—-hEF —E-)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARET T
(Restated)
(&&=75))
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment in subsidiaries KRB R ANKRE 34,620 34,620
Property, plant and equipment VI BB R& B 67,364 70,635
Right-of-use assets FREEE 41,926 43,882
Intangible assets EREE 65 193
Deferred tax assets EIETRIEE E 34,081 29,367
Deposit paid for intangible asset REFEELNNES 1,292 1,292
Pledged deposits BEBTR 4,255 1,871
183,603 181,860
Current assets REBEE
Inventories BE 311,638 306,224
Trade and bills receivables B 5 R WGIE K e E & 746,867 605,895
Contract assets aREE 200,005 261,028
Prepayment, deposits and TENRIE e REAM
other receivables FEU FRIR 76,858 65,999
Investments at fair value through BAVEFABEHNRE
profit or loss 1,077 -
Pledged deposits BEEAFH 40,782 39,323
Bank and cash balances RITRR B EHR 5,673 15,339
1,382,900 1,293,808
Current liabilities =R
Trade and bills payables I RNFERENERE 338,298 339,182
Contract liabilities aRAE 229,735 199,179
Other payables and accruals H b RIE L ERTE A 30,003 32,790
Bank loans RITER 126,207 109,000
Other tax payable H b~ R IE 84,231 75,641
808,474 755,792
Net current assets REBEEFE 574,426 538,016
NET ASSETS BEFE 758,029 719,876
Capital and reserves BERK#1E
Share capital fiie 135,000 135,000
Share premium % 17 % B 239,064 239,064
Reserves e 383,965 345,812
TOTAL EQUITY TS HRER 758,029 719,876
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33. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 33. IAREE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group and REEER  AEERARRWEEAMEKXR
the Company did not have any significant contingent FARBE(ZE—N\F &)

liabilities (2018: Nil).

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 4. BB AR5
2019 2018
—E-hF —ZT-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T R AR®ETT

Transactions with the holding HERATRNRS

company
Rental paid Hex (i) 238 238
Electricity charges paid by TRARRERAEE
the holding company TRMESE
on behalf of the Group (ii) 2,423 3,299
Transaction with other HEMBBINXRS
related parties
Sales of materials HEM B
AT FREREHEBR AR T F i A BHE
BRAF (iii) 273 2
T RZHMUEMEROERAR T RZH MR D
AR AT (iii) 86 -
Purchase of materials REEM R
AT K2 M E AR AR AT RRFM B ERAE (i) - 733
Services received: B2 R
AT KRB AR AR A AT R 2 3 A A
BRAF (iv) 7,282 6,130
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

158

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere
in these financial statements, the Group had the
following transactions with related parties during the

year:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

The rental fee was charged and the rental
income was received based on mutually agreed
prices.

The payments were made on behalf of the Group
based on the actual costs incurred.

The sales of materials to the related parties and
purchases of materials from the related parties
were made based on mutually agreed prices and
terms.

The services received from the related parties
were based on mutually agreed prices and
terms.

Key management personnel remuneration

The emoluments of the Company’s Directors, who are
also identified as members of key management of the
Group, are set out in Note 13.

4. BEBAERS (&)

BR % R 154 %E’r& DEHBORHIN K
FE - AEEEBEBOEATRS:

() MHEERRESKRARETHENE
1% ST R URER o

(i) WEEENEERTIRAEE TR
15 o

(i) ) AR 7T i E BR Ke (R A R %ﬁﬁﬁfﬁ
FHG IR 8 77 15 € M B8 R AR ETT o

(iv) BEXBEBAIORSIIRESHENE
& B AGFRETT -
TEEEAEMNHM

ARRER (RABTEASEETREEEN
AR ) BN S M 13K EE -
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35. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 35 AQRIEEMBARINGFE
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 RZE-NF+ZA=T—RHXZEMNER
December 2019 are as follows: AIMEEIRMT -
Percentage of
Place of the Company's
incorporation/ indirect ownership
registration and  Kind of legal Issued and interest voting
Name operation legality paid-up capital power/profit sharing Principal activities
EMAL/BR FRAEEEERERER
£R REXBE ARER BRETRARER REE/BASREAL TEEH
2019 2018
“E-NE —2N\E
Tianjie Installation Engineering * The PRC Limited liability RMB4,500,000 Provision of installation
AEMAZERIRBRAR company 100% 100% services
Gl BRAA AEH4,500,0007 REZERE
Tianjie Electronic and Technology * The PRC Limited liability RMB2,000,000 Manufacture and sale
HAEMAZETRBBRAR company of electronic
100% 100% products
i BRAR AR2,000,0007 HERHEETEM
Turpan Environmental and Technology * The PRC Limited liability RMB20,000,000 Manufacture and sale
HEERZRERBERDA company of environmental
pollution prevention
equipment and
100% 100% electronic products
M ARAA AR 20,000,0007C HEREERRTEN
RREREFER
@ The English name is for identification purpose only. 3 B EBEHRBR -
36. APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED 36. #tEHRESMEHREK
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The consolidated financial statements were approved HRAEVERRER-_ZE=_ZTFMA+HH
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on EEESoH ERIRET -
15 April 2020.
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For the year ended 31 December

BEt-A=t-BLEE

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
ZE-hE | ZE-\& ZET—tF ZE-E ZCZT-1f
RMB'000 | RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR | ARETT ARETRT ARETT ARET:

Revenue Wiz 726,647 858,817 792,152 956,432 919,975
Gross profit EFl 125,314 141,240 199,102 234,033 186,576
Profit before tax BAn & Al 45,114 46,408 114,483 136,314 134,399
Income tax expense FEHRAY 10,825 15,172 31,319 30,817 37934
Profit for the year AEEEF 34,289 31,236 83,164 105,497 96,465

Profit and total comprehensive R I 2 E I A 258

income for the year 34,289 31,236 83,164 105,497 96,465
Earnings per share attributable to ~ ERAD AR EE SR B
owners of the Company (LBBRARETIR)

for the year
(expressed in RMB per share)

— Basic and diluted -EXREE 0.25 023 0.62 078 09
Gross profit margin Ef= 17.25% 16.45% 25.13% 24.47% 20.28%
Net profit margin H % 4.72% 3.64% 10.50% 11.03% 10.49%

As at 31 December

R+=R=t-H
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
“B-0E | 2B \F Bt “T-RF _"B-IF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR | ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
Non-current assets ERBEE 166,274 163,873 161,352 103,730 104,748
Current assets MBEE 1,432,406 1,340,415 1,478,208 1,687611 1,422,808
Current liabilities mEEE 843,165 783,062 949,570 1,084,535 1,026,227
Net current assets MEEEFE 589,241 557353 528,638 503,076 396,581
Total assets less current liabilites BEZEMLHEE 755,515 721,226 639,990 606,826 501,329
Net Assets BETE 755,515 721,226 689,990 606,826 501,329
Capital B 135,000 135,000 135,000 135,000 135,000
Share Premium BiniafE 239,064 239,064 239,064 239,064 239,064
Reserves 1 381,451 347162 315,926 232,762 127,265
Total equity ERBE 755,515 721,226 689,990 606,326 501,329
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